SOUTHLAND

Notice is hereby given that an Ordinary meeting of Southland District Council will be held on:

Date: Wednesday, 23 October 2024
Time: 9.30am
Meeting room: Council Chamber
Venue: Level 2
20 Don Street
Invercargill
Council Agenda
MEMBERSHIP
Mayor Rob Scott
Deputy mayor Christine Menzies
Councillors Jaspreet Boparai
Don Byars
Derek Chamberlain
Paul Duffy
Darren Frazer
Sarah Greaney
Julie Keast
Tom O'Brien
Margie Ruddenklau
Jon Spraggon
Matt Wilson
IN ATTENDANCE
Committee advisor Fiona Dunlop

Chief executive

Cameron Mclintosh

Contact telephone: 0800 732 732
Postal address: PO Box 903, Invercargill 9840
Email: emailsdc@southlanddc.govt.nz

Website: www.southlanddc.govt.nz

Online: Southland District Council YouTube

Full agendas are available on Council’s website
www.southlanddc.govt.nz

Note:

The reports contained within this agenda are for consideration and should not be construed as Council policy
unless and until adopted. Should Members require further information relating to any reports, please contact

the relevant manager, Chairperson or Deputy Chairperson.


mailto:emailsdc@southlanddc.govt.nz
http://www.southlanddc.govt.nz/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCpO3JGaJAQpQzYbapwx7FLw/videos
https://www.southlanddc.govt.nz/my-council/meeting-schedule-and-agendas/

Health and safety

Toilets — The toilets are located outside of the chamber, directly down the hall on the right.

Evacuation - Should there be an evacuation for any reason please exit down the stairwell to the
assembly point, which is the entrance to the carpark on Spey Street. Please do not use the lift.

Earthquake — Drop, cover and hold applies in this situation and, if necessary, once the shaking has
stopped we will evacuate down the stairwell without using the lift, meeting again in the carpark on
Spey Street.

Phones - Please turn your mobile devices to silent mode.
Recording - These proceedings are being recorded for the purpose of live video, both live streaming

and downloading. By remaining in this meeting, you are consenting to being filmed for viewing by
the public.
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Apologies

At the close of the agenda no apologies had been received.

Leave of absence

At the close of the agenda no requests for leave of absence had been received.
Conflict of Interest

Councillors are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision-making
when a conflict arises between their role as a councillor and any private or other external
interest they might have.

Extraordinary/Urgent Items

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass a resolution to permit the Council to consider any
further items which do not appear on the Agenda of this meeting and/or the meeting to be
held with the public excluded.

Such resolution is required to be made pursuant to Section 46A(7) of the Local Government
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987, and the Chairperson must advise:

(i) The reason why the item was not on the Agenda, and

(i) The reason why the discussion of this item cannot be delayed until a subsequent
meeting.

Section 46A(7A) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 (as
amended) states:

“Where an item is not on the agenda for a meeting,-
(@ thatitem may be discussed at that meeting if-

(i)  thatitem is a minor matter relating to the general business of the local
authority; and

(i)  the presiding member explains at the beginning of the meeting, at a time
when itis open to the public, that the item will be discussed at the meeting;
but

(b)  noresolution, decision or recommendation may be made in respect of that item
except to refer that item to a subsequent meeting of the local authority for further
discussion.”

Confirmation of Council Minutes
51 Meeting minutes of Council, 16 October 2024

Public Participation

Notification to speak is required by 12noon at least one clear day before the meeting.
Further information is available on www.southlanddc.govt.nz or phoning 0800 732 732
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OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of Council held in the Council Chamber, Level 2, 20 Don Street, Invercargill on
Wednesday, 16 October 2024 at 9.31am. (9.31am - 10.37am)

PRESENT

Mayor Rob Scott
Deputy mayor Christine Menzies
Councillors Jaspreet Boparai (video link)
Don Byars
Derek Chamberlain
Paul Duffy
Darren Frazer
Sarah Greaney (video link)
Julie Keast (9.31am — 10.25am)
Tom O'Brien
Margie Ruddenklau (10.01am — 10.37am)
Jon Spraggon
Matt Wilson (9.34am — 10.37am)

APOLOGIES
Councillor Ruddenklau (for lateness)
IN ATTENDANCE

Chief executive Cameron Mclintosh
Committee advisor Fiona Dunlop

Minutes Page 6
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Mayor Scott opened the meeting with a karakia timatanga as follows:

Ma te whakarongo Through listening

Ma te korero Through talking

Ma te ngakau From the heart

Ma te wairua From the spirit

Ma te manaaki mai Through giving

Ma te manaaki atu And receiving respect

Ka puawai te maramatanga Understanding will bloom
Tihei mauri ora This is the essence of life

1 Apologies
There were apologies for lateness from Councillor Ruddenklau.
Moved Cr Duffy, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies and resolved:

That Council accept the apology.

2 Leave of absence

Councillor Chamberlain requested a leave of absence for the Council meeting scheduled
for 6 November 2024.

Moved Cr Frazer, seconded Cr Spraggon and resolved:

That Council agrees the leave of absence request.

3 Conflict of Interest

There were no conflicts of interest declared.

4 Extraordinary/Urgent Items

There were no Extraordinary/Urgent items.

5 Confirmation of Council Minutes

Resolution
Moved Cr Keast, seconded Cr O'Brien and resolved:

That the Council confirms the minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2024 as a true
and correct record of that meeting.

Minutes Page 7
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Public Participation

There was no public participation.

Reports

7.1

7.2

Great South quarterly update to Southland District Council
Record No: R/24/10/63546

Great South chief executive Chami Abeysinghe and GM regional strategy — Bobbi Brown
were in attendance for this item.

Council were updated on the Great South 2023/2024 business year. They had seven focus
areas, all with key performance indicators.

The focus areas, key performance indicators and achievements were as follows:

. Beyond 2025 Southland Implementation Plan with 3 KPIs (all achieved)

. Attraction of visitors to Murihiku Southland with 4 KPIs (all achieved)

. Tourism sector development with 2 KPIs (1 achieved and 1 partially achieved)
. Alternative land use with 1 KPI (achieved)

* Business engagements with 1 KPI (partially achieved)

. Data and Dashboards with 2 KPIs (all achieved)

. Carbon emissions reduction with 3 KPIs (1 achieved and 2 partially achieved)

(During discussion, Councillor Wilson joined the meeting at 9.34am.)
(During discussion, Councillor Ruddenklau joined the meeting at (10.01am.)
Resolution

Moved Mayor Scott, seconded Cr Chamberlain and resolved:

That the Council:

a) receivesthe report titled “Great South quarterly update to Southland District
Council” and expresses it thanks for the update.

Adoption of Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023 and
Notification Proposed Plan Change 2

Record No: R/24/8/50326

Graduate environmental planner policy — Ashton Mismash and PlanRight principal
consultant - Peter Constantine were in attendance for this item.

The purpose of the report was for the Council to adopt the Code of Practice for Subdivision,
Land Use, and Development 2023 as recommended by the hearing panel in June 2023 and
approve for notification the proposed plan change to the Southland District Plan and the
Evaluation Report under Schedule 1 of the Resource Management.

(During discussion, Councillor Keast left the meeting at 10.25am.)

Minutes
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Resolution

Moved Cr Duffy, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies and resolved:

That the Council:

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

Receives the report titled “Adoption of Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land
Use, and Development 2023 and Notification Proposed Plan Change 2 “.

Determines that this matter or decision be recognised as significant in terms of
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

Determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the
Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision;
and in accordance with Section 79 of that Act determines that it does not
require further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of
costs and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision
on this matter.

Adopts the Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023.

Adopts proposed plan change 2 to the Southland District Plan and the
Evaluation report prepared pursuant to Section 32 of the Resource
Management Act 1991.

Approves proposed plan change 2 to the Southland District Plan and the
Evaluation Report prepared pursuant to Section 32 of the Resource
Management Act 1991 for public notification on 24 October 2024, for a period
of no less than 20 working days.

Notes that the group manager strategy and partnerships and strategic planning
and policy manager have delegated authority to amend the proposed plan
change in accordance with Clauses 16(1) and 16(2) of the First Schedule to the
Resource Management Act 1991, to make alterations of minor effect, or correct
minor errors.

The meeting concluded at 10.37am. CONFIRMED AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD OF A

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON WEDNESDAY
16 OCTOBER 2024.

Minutes
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Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space
Operations New Zealand Limited Statement of Intent

2024/2025
Record no: R/24/8/54545
Author: Jayson Trent, Democracy Advisor

Approved by: Vibhuti Chopra, Group manager strategy and partnerships

Decision O Recommendation O Information

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to present the Great South statement of intent 2024/2027 and the
Space Operations New Zealand Ltd statement of intent 2024/2025 to Council. Council will
decide whether or not to receive the statements of intent.

Executive summary
On 30 October 2023 the Great South Joint Shareholder Committee provided direction and
general priority areas for Great South through a joint letter of expectation (LOE).

On 6 March 2024 Council considered the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027 and
the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent 2024/2025.

Council resolved to acknowledge receipt of the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027
and delegated authority to the mayor to provide feedback on the discussions held by Council.

Council resolved to acknowledge receipt of the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent
2024/2025 and provide positive feedback.

The Great South Board has adopted a Statement of Intent (SOI) for the reporting years 2024-
2027. This is presented as attachment A.

Staff are recommending that Council receive and acknowledge receipt of the Great South SOI
2024-2027.

The SpaceOps NZ Board has adopted a Statement of Intent (SOI) for the reporting year 2024-
2025. This is presented as attachment B.

Staff are recommending that Council receives and acknowledges receipt of the SpaceOps NZ
SOI 2024-2025.

7.1 Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Page 11
Statement of Intent 2024/2025
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Recommendation

That the Council:

a) receives the report titled “Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space
Operations New Zealand Limited Statement of Intent 2024/2025.

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised not significant in terms of
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

C) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in
accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require further
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter.

d) receives and acknowledges receipt of the Great South statement of intent
2024/2027.

e) receives and acknowledges receipt of the Space Operations NZ Ltd statement of
intent 2024/2025.

Background

The Local Government Act 2002 (the act) requires Great South and SpaceOps NZ to prepare an
annual SOI. All SOI's must comply with the requirements set out in clauses 7 and 9 of Schedule

8.

Council and its partner shareholders set the direction and general priority areas through a joint

letter of expectation (LOE). This was produced by the Great South Joint Shareholder Committee

and provided to the chair of the Great South Board on 30 October 2023. This is presented as
attachment C.

Council considered the Great South draft SOl 2024/2027 on 6 March 2024 and provided the
following feedback:

Council acknowledges receipt of the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027 and
provides feedback through the mayor on the discussions held, including discussion of the

status of Great South as a council control organisation (CCO) or council controlled trading

organisation (CCTO).

Council agrees to delegate to the mayor the authority to provide Council’s feedback to the

Great South Joint Shareholders Committee and to reach agreement with the Committee on

the feedback to be provided to Great South.

Feedback from Council and its partner shareholders was considered by Great South before it
delivered its final SOI.

7.1

Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Page 12
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Council considered the SpaceOps NZ draft SOI 2024/2025 on 6 March 2024 and provided the
following feedback:

Council acknowledges receipt of the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent 2024/2025
and provides positive feedback, including a statement of appreciation for the preparation
of a legally compliant SOI.

Council agrees to delegate to the mayor the authority to provide Council’s feedback to the
Great South Joint Shareholders Committee and to reach agreement with the Committee on
the feedback to be provided to SpaceOps.

Under the Great South constitution, the final SOI’'s must be presented to Council to receive.

Issues

The Great South Joint Shareholders Committee granted a one month extension under Schedule
8, Part 1, s 4 of the act for the delivery of the final SOI on the basis that the Great South Board
intended to undertake an organisational realignment and reprioritisation. The presentation of this
report to Council was delayed due to this extension.

Under the act, a request to amend a SOl may be made by a resolution of the Great South Joint
Shareholders Committee at any time.

The final Great South SOI 2024/2027 includes changes from the draft to the marketing,
destination management and our sustainability programmes of Great South. These changes to the
KPI's (“Our Work™) are as follows:

Regional development leadership — deletion of the section ‘feasibility assessment’

Business support and diversification, under the section ‘economic diversification’ — deletion of
‘facilitate feasibility studies to assess opportunities for new market development...” and
deletion of ‘creates a regional industry capability profile’

Business support and diversification, under the section ‘support the agriculture sector’ —
deletion of ‘feasibility studies on opportunities to support industry through skills development’

Net Zero Southland — deletion of the section ‘support the business section to reduce carbon
emissions’

There are also changes to the performance measures to reflect the changes to these KPI's.
The final SpaceOps NZ SOI 2024/2025 does not include any changes from the draft.

The Great South 2024/2027 SOI and SpaceOps NZ 2024/2025 SOI are compliant with the
requirements set out in clauses 7 and 10 of Schedule 8 under the act.
Factors to consider

Legal and statutory requirements

Part 5 of the act refers to CCOs/CCTOs and Schedule 8 contains the SOI requirements. The
process being undertaken is guided by the obligations and responsibilities under the act.

7.1 Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Page 13
Statement of Intent 2024/2025
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Schedule 8 Part 1 clause 6 of the act allows Council to modify any part of the SOI, if requested
by resolution of the shareholders.

As well as complying with the act, the parties also have responsibilities under the Southland
Regional Development Agency Ltd constitution and shareholders’ agreement.
Community views

Council has previously consulted on the establishment of the Joint Shareholders Agreement, the
Southland Regional Development Agency and associated areas of focus for regional
development.

Council funding allocations to Great South were included as part of the LTP 2024-2034 process.

Costs and funding

Council has committed to $701,527 in contract funding for Great South projects/initiatives for
2024/2025. Council supported the proposed core funding amount of $1,981,000, with SDC’s
share being $581,047.

Council’s total cost for 2024/2025 is $1,282,574. This is within the budget allowed for
202472025 in the Long Term Plan 2024/2034 of $1,296,827.

The core funding contributions are currently under review by the Invercargill City Council, in
accordance with a resolution of the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee. The current
calculation of core funding contributions is contained within schedule 4 of the shareholders
agreement.

Staff costs associated with this work have been met within current budgets.

Policy implications

There are no identified policy implications.

Analysis

Options considered

Great South and SpaceOps are required to produce a SOI each year. Council can then choose to
receive each or to not receive each.

Analysis of Options

Option 1 - Council receives the Great South SOI 2024-2027 and Space Operations NZ Ltd SOI
2024/2025

Advantages Disadvantages
aligns with the shareholders’ agreement (for | - no known disadvantages.
Great South)

provides Council with the final SOI's as
delivered by Great South and SpaceOps NZ.

7.1 Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Page 14
Statement of Intent 2024/2025



33

34

35

Council
23 October 2024

Option 2 — Council does not receive the Great South SOl 2024-2027 and Space Operations NZ

Ltd SOI 2024/2025

Advantages

Disadvantages

no known advantages.

does not align with the shareholders
agreement (with Great South).

Assessment of significance

The decision of whether or not to receive the Great South SOI 2025/2027 and the SpaceOps
NZ SOI 202472025 is not considered significant under Council’s Significance and Engagement
Policy. This matter has a low level of impact/risk in relation to people, services, facilities and
infrastructure as the regional development priority areas and funding commitments have already

been decided.

Recommended option

Staff recommend that Council receives the Great South SOI 2024/2027 and SpaceOPs NZ SOI

2024/2025.

Next steps

If received and acknowledged, staff will inform Great South and SpaceOps NZ that Council have
received their respective SOls and notify the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee.

Attachments
A Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027

B Space Operations New Zealand Ltd Statement of Intent 2024/2025

C Great South Letter of Expectation 2024/2025

7.1 Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Page 15
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GREAT SOUTH

Southland Regional Development Agency

Statement of Intent

7.1 Attachment A Page 16
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SOUTHLAMND RECIOMAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY LIMITED
TRADING AS GREAT SOUTH

AUDITORS

SHAREHOLDERS

MEMBERS

LOGAL STATUS

th Spatement of Intent
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Matai ki te Tonga
Te mahirahira a Tamarereti
Whakawhiti Te Moana Tapokapoka a Tawhaki
Ara te Kurakura o Hinenui te po
Whakahoki ma te hau nui a Rakamaomao
Ki te muramura a Rakitamau
.Whitianga Te Ara a Kiwa

Anei te mahi a Tuterakiwhanoa

Ki uta, ngd puna o Rikaihautii
Kiuta, nga ngahere a Kahukura

Ki tai, nga mahinga kai a Marokura
Te mana o Murihiku

There are the quivering lights of the Aurara

Return on the great wind Rakamaomao
to the blushing isle of Rakiura
Cross the pathway of Kiwa
Here are the works of Tuterakiwhanoa
inland are the waters of RakaihautQ
the forests of Kahukura
Return to the bountiful foodbaskets of Marokura
Alas this is Murihiku

ith Statement of Intent
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Foreword

We are pleased to present our Statement of Intent
for 2024 - 2027,

thet woll oo pecple telong about aur region and

-

-
i f Tk Pl
=iy
- lan Coller
] ‘ﬁ - ¥
real Soddh Boart i
th Statement of Intent 3
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About Us

Great South, Southland Regional Development
Agency, is responsible for economic
development and pramotion of Murihiku
Southland,

Thiginvohaes managqeg Muriniku Southland's Regional
CEriral TR
Hegional Business Partner (HBP) network, Callaghan
Inrenation RED Experience grin
arange of events, regional inital

I a5 delivening
0 QOErrITIEn
funded contrmacts that pave the way for developr

Throuoh the essential susoot provided 1o hMunhaky
Soutkland, Great Scuth providas a united volce for the
region, establishes a sirong pHaiorm for regionsl success

and takes sirdes towenrda its vision of even bet

s

throwgh sustanable regional cevelopment

Great South iz @ councikcontrolied organis:
owreed by Irvercargill G il Sodihland Distrct
Couwncil, Gore District Counce, Emvironment Soutiiand,
Imyarcargill Licensing Trust, Mata
Soutkland Bussness Chamber, SIT | Te Pikenga, and
member orgenisation Community Trust South

on, fantly

a Licensging Trusi

Establizhed in March 20719, we began full operations n
July that year We receive funding from our sha

alging
Councils 1o pover core opentional costs as well as
coniracl service delvery. Great South also works with
Central Govermmen! agencies g wall 55 prvate sector

partnars to delver on contracted services

We have a memoranduem of understanding which
underping our refationship with sl four Papatipu Riinaks
m Murihiku Southland — Awarua, Hokomui Orake-agarima

and Waihdpal, which was signed on 8 August 2022

WHO WE ARE

Great South wholly owns Space Dperations New Zealand
Lid., whichiz 3 counci-coniraded trading organisation as
dafingd n section & of the Local Gowsnmenl Act 2022

It has it= own board of directors and CED and produces
a5 own Satement of intent. Greal South akso has a 49%

shane in New Zealand Functional Foods

CONSTITUTION OBJECTIVES

he objecties of our shareholders, b
commercial and non-commerncial, a3 specifed in thia

Statement af mtent
2. Be agood engloyer

A, Exhibit o sense of social and envdiromnental

rRs RO Ty

4. Conduct owr 2ffadrs n acoomdance with sound business

praclice
GREAT SOUTH GOVERMNANCE

A board of up 1o seven ndependent drectors are
tespormible for the sirategic ol Great South and
The iriiLiatives i i 1 Thie Board teer seos 1he
busziness underioken by Greal Sowth in ptcordance with
The Lacal Government Act 2007, Companses Act 13 1he

dire

Compary's Constiution and the Staternent of Intent.

The Chiel Exeoutive is responsitde for the day-lo-day
epemtions of Great South, inch ding the EINAGLMSTE af
stall and répoaeg 10 dfechors on the perfanmance

against set prionties

7.1

Attachment A
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What we value

KAITIAKITANGA

We sot ourschves 03 -]-.IJ';::
i

5 of this region we call
haul aur respongibidi

W and are Seficus

our home for future generations. We ane committed to

ENEFUN] QU DD, [(Feie and anvirchment continue 10

1B

HERITAGE

kiurthiku Southland has a rich histony It ie this Pestory that
s e us 1 wihere we dre iodey antd, &5 we move Torwand
wee will comtirue 1o recogrise and poy respect 10 our
heritage and the purney we have taken

50 far

SOUTHLAND PROUD

a1 ihe oore of every suceessiul reqglon, you wi | fird qredt
people who passionately contniute to the growih of the
placa they call homa. Murihike Southland is no diffsrent

We are prowd of whene we come from, what we stand for
ond are ewcited to play a past in belping Murihibu Southland
achieve its potantia

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Wi kencw thind o i onby with the support of oue

cormLinities iat we will achisee our ambifious goals
syt ted 10 working togeiher to deve
& and thriving rago

6o wbrant

and [0 provide our communibiss

walls o strong foundaton for e fulee

BEING REAL

W will embrace the region's strong entrepecnewral spint
wihan i o
the flashy stuf?, we're real, cown to earth, and committed

Jriarm i1, W A da i We'ra nod about

o makang greal things happan

QUALITY OVER QUANTITY

e ol focus on dorg & smaler ngmber of things

wel, rather than spreading ourselves toa thinly across

everyihing. Thse ralure

[ our invobwement miay vary azoss
deffierent regional Initiathaes, but we will ot ol tees be
COoMmmitied 1o e ’lr‘\""'ll'lrln'l:"": of the place we call home

SUSTAINABILITY

Ot naturnl environment i unigue, attracting people from
all drver the world Were raalistic ahdn our Tuture and

know that adopting a sustaineble approach, from both an
arviranmanial and longesly perspective, 1S fundamenial

{or the fuiure suocess of thes region

SHAREHOLDER CONFIDENCE

W are commitiiad B working with our Shanshaldaers

sl in them a conlidenis in bolh Gieal South and 1he

{uAure of 1his regon To

geiher, will make great things
nmappen for Muriniky Soomidand

WHO WE ARE

7.1

Attachment A
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Our vision "

Even better lives through
sustainable regional development

Cur vizaon of ‘even better Ives through sustmnablz
regional development’ framss all the wok we do, ensuring
Southland is the beat pl to livie, wiork and wisit. W
want our region o be best place to start and sustan
lace to travel in, o hast an event of
conference, to study, rmigrate bo, or imest in. By creating

a region that = e best place in Mew Tealand ta live, visil
ate @ platform for the regéon to proaper
eoonomically and i terms of vibrancy and lneabilicy

a business, the best p

and work, we oo

New Zealand has soen a shift in govemmiant, which maans
thare will be changes (o government policies THES will

Eely provide opportunities for regional development which
Great Soulh v

pursue on behalf of the region. Hawever,
miaje sty changes driven by climate effects will
continue Lo force a shift in actvity and taking a sustanable

1cAch in i wides! sense

rvronmental ar

and socal), will continue to be critically important

L] WHO WE ARE
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Southland snapshot

4,947,505 tCO.e

14.8% decreass from 2018 baseline

S oo

GEMMEAPHIC AREA

31,218 km?

) o

FEGIONAL GOE AVERAGE HMOUSEMGLD INCOME UNEMPLOYMENT RATE

$8.271b $97,382 3.2%

BAAIN IMDUSTRIES BASED DN NUBMEER OF EMPLOYEES

& i ¥

Agriculture Retail Health Care

O

Manufacturing Construction

h Statement of Intent WHO WE ARE
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bl ddmimta or oo bbbt of
the Srermetent Tha inclides {he
Higona! fusiness Partne

arid fhe Wnyovel Task F

(xwract witle Souhid

Cinnch We a0 rmamge the
PRgEafiA L e cegan =i

oxp ainn Tor Floriand and Suiand
e e mesorastod deptal charneis
o aannrs  Addsiorglly we ranage
the dmostnpemnnd of kay stmtoges
ek bt off I ppen, st 2 o
Boulhiland Mueihibii Pegonal Energy
Steatery e fhvé b Bouithlaned
Deringbion Siratoqy 2023 - 2029

WHO WE ARE

How we operate

Great South works for the benafit of the
whaole region, placing equal Importance on
Southland’s people, place, environment and
economy.

Wil 1he future of Mew Zealands Alurminim Sreiber

a1 Treval Point now confirmed far the next 20 years, we
understand this will be a tme of unprecedentad change for
Soulkiand and strong leacershy |5 required

ROLES OF GREAT SOUTH

O ol waries depending on the natire of the paject

of intiative we gre myvolved withe We are always buldding
on relationships with sector representatives and LE"'
Soulbdand stakeholders. and now thal we ane mone
estabiished os on I:I-'I;CIF.I:,]“I:II'I. Increas |'C_|:|' our roha iz to

eard
Our roles may be:

Facilitate

Manage

PARTMERING FOR SUCCESS

The future success al Murihiku depercds on parinershiog
Greal South warks closely with stakeholders and the wider
eammunity and is cormmiad to :-"|'I'I_',| thie shared s10mes
of Murihiky Sauthland - people and place Great South

s commitied 1o meating its obdgations under Te Tinl o
Waaitangi and collaborates with The Tour Mo bike-baged
Riinaka on numenes phojects

SUSTAINABLE FOCUS

Greal Souh s @ cenified CRIoDn ConSoous ganis
and 18 teking pogitne a0hon 1wards beconin
neutral and rteqratng sustansble cons:iderations into al
actvities, inchackng purchasang decizeaons and cperasonal
practises. We will cet an examrple for the region incheding

lor businesses, slakeholders and communities we work

walh
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TE REO MAORI

W wilf zeek opportunities o support and 2
presence of Te Reo Maorni through our activities and our
day-to-day operations. This inchudas

A comimitment 1o facilitating the woskilng of our
team in both Te Reo and Tikanga Mo

« Inbroducing Te Reo imo commurications and
rmasketing matensl where appropriate

+  Incoiporating Te Ao Maon nta our business growth
work a5 apvopriate

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

The moast vahuabio saceet ot Groat Sauth o our poophe

We are comamilied 10 Cresting a posithe work

ervamgnment and ersuring stalf skills ase relevant and up
16 date, plovwang Dur paophe 1o three A ey Fooss will be

1o embed our ntemal organisation values

« respect sach others contriousion
+  wik fogether 1o achieve greal thengs Ior o regan
« gare lor egch ciher and our Hace

+ enjoy workand have fun

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Great South will 1akes svary practicable step 10 ensuns the
health and zafety of cur employées, contractons, wislocs
and atfendees 51 events wa manage

OPERATIOMAL EFFICIENCIES

In Eing wath best mansgéement praclics, we sask
CONNIAUOUE TRIOVEMEn], iIMproving processes and Il
systems, o alow s1all 10 operate in he most ellectve
ITs3innes

Ve cOontinue o ARSESS fach |"-C':|'I|"|F.;in." necision &

ent of Intent

conkrac] negobiathon 10 ensure i can withstand a level of
sCTutiryy BS expectsd in the pubiic seqtor

HOW WE ARE FUNDED

Geeat South recerves its prmary funding from its
shareholding councis. it has also successiully secured
funding from commerzal and government partners
Examples of this inchide

+  MBIE and Caliaghan Innowvation foe the Regonal
5% Partrer Network (RBF)

+  Commerncial engagomenis

Gragt South also receyas 11.-':d.':_.i froem Commursty Trust
Soulh to undertake impetus and mvestigation activiles

Dur revenus sounces for 2024-2025

WHO WE ARE
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Our priorities

Regional development
leadership

| L

f

|
Greal South provipes leadesship for 1he regeon _
by faciviating the implementation of the I
Beyond 2025 Ssathdand Long Tenm Fian and , L]
hrengh acvedacy, willing Submissions and - /

e o e “
"

representing Munhixu Scuthiand nationalhy

-

el hﬂ{,
Rt -_\-_ o

Regional
promotion

Greal South promates Murhiku Southlansd

a5 & great place 1o lve, woek and visil We
pronilise estindlen management and work
[0 desralon our recional Tounism Saelorin a way
that brings beaefil to our people and place We
algo menage and support events that atiract

WISIRONS 10 Our Tegice

OUR WORK Statement of [anent
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Business support
and diversification

Greal Souwnh supports the giwh of 1he busi

ness secier m Munhiu Southland end inves

economy We sl support the atiracton and

workioroe 1o our red

retenlion of askilled

winch will Suppert rew and exsting mousines

Net Zero
Southland

Sterement of Intent OUR WORK i | .
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Regional development leadership

Advocote Facilitate | Manoge

Regional strategic planning

th dnll cantinue to Faciitate imperment ion of

25 Southland F‘H;: arsal Lang Tesm Plan

wth & fodus on aligning regional de

sl the rules and Pdrastaestute thal will eriabibe |
Fagpen, Aquacaiiure, Housing eivd Data will continue 1
bt areas of locus and Grem Soul
ris

MGIOnal waice

T

et of regional planmir

As requeed by shareholders, Great South vl facilitate
and

Go5e

er new regeonal strategies, feasibility
and plans. and will seek to.al gn thes
y and funding

e

centrad and kacal government planneng, pali

85 81

Advocate Facilitote

Manoga

Data and insights

Uprterdate deta is essential for successful regional

planning and for attr = investment to the region

egional data and insights that
it will continue Lo share with region'wide decision makers

Greal South has eroess to

L vl also cantinue to anabyse regicnal irends amd i

with Central Government on areas of cur ec ongimy that

require support

prformptecd voll be Svalable 1o decisiar 2 Data
and insights Southlond Hub (DESE PUCh 138 Sing

poind of referance dala reposiony Including midiipls

dashboants Development of thes ool which will be

available via a website will comnue over Lme and as

Tfunding allow

Murihiku Southland
representation

Great Soarth i an ambasaador for Murihiku Southland,

participating on variods regicna! and national forums

crganisatons and boards. We aso attend conferences

and trade shows to promole the region

OUR WORK

Facilitote

Communications

Greal South shares mformation about our activities
and services witf
wider cormmenity
website gre: ocial media, r
presentaticns. We se0 this o5 an abssd

thers and va
& prE Ty

itk

The Graal South webgite will be redesigned 1o ensuee

up-to-date and accwrate iInformalion i easily atcessible

Stotement of Intent
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Adwvooote

Advocacy

0

sehel of the reghon, Great South will continue 1o
advocale 1o government and reguation setting bodes
an tesuss withen s prorty 5, o engare Munhiku

nd iz resourced appropeiaiely and that the
nuances of the ragion are understood We will continee 1o
advocate for agricaiture, housing, roading. poticy changes

io urrestricted lorestry, snd sdrastiuctune @

el

LT

Wi hope 1o ergade with cantral go BN Agenci=s
biannualy. ncluding with MEIE, NZTE Menistry of
Haasing and Urisan Deyel

e, hmisiry for the
Enviranent and Minisiry for Primany g
Subanisscns will also be cormafeted on nsues thal arlge

In the aloremention

-

el eas

OUR WORK
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Regional promotion

Murihiku Southland
regional story

Great Saurh will continue to devslop The Murhki Sounhland

regcaal 51 tafd regcnends

iy B ensuee a cohd

rakon to anract peapis o e, study, work

Lifirg 1hee recpon’s @ssenis, 1S peor

ik, this story will B used 1o suboor

Tourism product and
destination development

sshing urfky Sounthland a5 a food ioirisrm

destination, Fiordland Matonal Park as an Internationad Des
Sy SEneclusn
destnaton snd toursm developmesd withn MolupGhue
Bludt

Juiiilog Son

and 45 4 susisnable [ouEsm

OUR WORK

Stotement o

Facilitate  Maonage

Deliver and support
major events

Major and konic events ane a key neason why Mew
Zeakanders Iravel Dependenl on fu
rilends o delnees onic fanly evend, ILT Kidzone
Festival and hopes continue 18 o

15 1 Byt Munra Challenoe

W, ressl South

de delevery support

iGOne evenl

age. We will continue ta

4 Murihikcy Evérrt

'.""|-_'!'I.-":-II'I._'| our reg

Shrategy with

ks Ca sabiility anc event

t thie

v focus on building event o

s keing

Advorate Facilitate

Manage
Business events

Buitsr

Southland, periculary 1o atlract visiors dutng loursm

% EYents A an important apnortundy for Kurhik

all seagens Ton
complete a bugn

Ewents Southilane

i this cpp

ot -fa]

alédy. Acting as B

F vl Sarhifd 50 prossect

fad nptanal and intermatonal eeems thal Cou i) in

Sar ragion. We & 10 i Munhiku Seuthland on the map

v 6 BuRiness peenls destrnion
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¢

Focilitote

Monoge Advocote Focilitote . Monoge

Invercargill City Centre Destination marketing
activation

i imvercangil city centne 19 es

witohe of Munhiku Southiand. In parinershio with

Ve CE Coundil, Greal South delives

actiities and events. We alsa pant

De2 DN reacun

of o
S Australa, Mo

Comtirape (o ity Comire Southlancn oom s our iy 100! 1o prormiale kurifitk

evenils widely and | stakeholthas inforrned about Sauthland a9 2 gread ploce 1o ee, work and wisi Lis

therm All meerts will Be lsbied on our promobonal websile a valued promaotonal platfonm fio

southlardng corm and ever] organisers who sy on thes 5

5] formation &3 58 il s
rravel for mternational and domeste dgitors. We will

conbnpe Lo work clos
] Tons

I Mew Ze.

ibh ke nateonal 1

¥ wil] comtnus Lo

partnes

d and lrevercargill Aapodl 19
wercangll, 25 the gateway 1o
1ing &nd trade inmatves will

pariner w
aovoCate fof Tights inko
Munkiku Soutnl
be tameted

wedl a5 domestic vistors. Famibarisation op)

national markets as

qibors fromm key i

LINIMes

will continue ta be held for toursm operain vel madia

s and Dusiness events organsers

Statem [ OUR WORK
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Business support and diversification

Adwocate Facilitate

Business diversification

Great South vall support BusInesses withm hurisku

Soutklasnd ¥ apapartunit for diwersiltation

and 1o develop plans o implerns

Thiougl ilrached wocke v will alsa wrnderak

Ty Bludmes 1o allract ew and comp 1y

s apporiunities

31 SuppOrt existing andror naw

Adwocate Facilitate

Economic diversification

While continuing o support Space Oserations Mewy

Jealand Lirmited, hydiogen, aguacuiiure and dala cenine
cpporturals, Great Souil's Focus will be on encouraging

W INYESIMENT [D SupDort i and exesting bussessen

OUR WORK

Advocate Facilitate

Support the
agriculture sector

Arkndwriedging that agnsuliune i the main scondos

coniribton 10 our region, wie Wil conlinue working 1o

1 Inngd-use chisnge o

making, ok

3L (urther invest

Facilitaie = Manoge

Support CBD businesses

Artreations in e .:|'|_;|'I s CAD will support business

FChivily i hal areg {50

urider Regaonal Promaotion)

Tvercargill city centre activation,

Stotement of Intent

7.1 Attachment A

Page 33



Council

23 October 2024

K

Adwocate Facilitote

Building business
capability
Greal Soulh supports small o mediumest

in Southlan ry of the Regional Business

Partner Programme. We woek on behatf of MBIE and

rad Dusingssas

Callaghan Innovation, building capabiity thoos

gonnections to expertise and resources, and oocask

alfer N W wkshops anef 1r1aini W eopelunities Wei

work in partnership with COIM South and Southland

s Lunibes ahd

g 1o idendily their

Business Chamber 1o delver th

et wiith busir OWIreEng ore

needs and how hey can best be supporied

Statement of Intent

Southland Youth Futures
and the Mayoral Taskforce
for Jobs

& 0 Funding, Great South sms 10 continoe 16

#f he Southland Youth Futures Programené in 2024

FTUTIE S ITpolta i YEUNG peosie 10.08

PG LE 10 T vasanty of johs avaiable wit the regioe

arid 15 o Berel 10 empleriers in o i vk ma k]

future workforee

The Mayoral Task ks (MTFD) 1= 0
contract
Council MTEl iz aT

admini=tere: |||:,- GMA who work together lowarrs

t South entered into with Southiand Distnct

tweek of New Zealand's Mayors,

tha vizion of all young people under 25 being engaged
m employrment, education, raining and other poside

activibies m theair communities

OUR WORK
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Net Zero Southland

CO

Encourage low impact
industry

TE ALURPAT The: regicon toWArTS MEsting nat 260
¢ 2050, Gregqn

rialile o ¢

and Fgights 1F
Ehall of the
addeess chmate ¢

1 NCOUrSGE new ingdugine

TANQE Il €IS SONS MeQustic

Facilitate  Manoge

Monitor emissions

The region’s srnga!l dmissions have bean monitored by

zreat zouth since 2018 We will continue 1o measu

4 i

regional emiss

Crrr progress will be shaned vath regional leaders and the

reparling against the 2018 baseding

OUR WORK

Sustainable tourism
destination management

Sustaimability 5 cne of the key pillars of e Mursboy

10 SLrale [

i e Murihiow Southbssd

Southlsr Mk will

i and Gie

Susiainable

riLie b 0
Tounsm Programm, Thié programmie lakes a holstic
Bopeach, SUBBSrIng DUSINEESS 10 100k ot reduting
haeir Gart s imGeowing their

1 EMusSons, whil

L COCTHTILITHRY, Mg

1o this Graat Soutk

wiel st with ey gariners 1 implernenl sanrommental
arckship projects withim e BMuribiku Southlwnd

Deslirateon Strategy 2023 - 3029

2t South will continue o

Energy Strafegy &

facilitate snplamentalion of the straledy

Reparts will be pregared on hiogens caplure and Wse. as

viell &5 W _'-'I;,: blamass awall ability

Stotement of Intent
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Performance measures

DESCRIPTION LTPF CONNECTION KP12024-25 KP| 2025-26 KP| 2026-27

& Bl senic
. i
orcgasal fos

i

WE
e

af Ty

coungily ang

Dl Bwaty iither

Erressions e
2T

OUR WORK
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DESCRIPTION LTF CONMHECTION KPR 2024-25 KP12025-26 KP12026-27

= Showtase |

FARCE 0

Business in Bupmness Dewsiogmnent
Southdand - A
negianal guide
Ragnuros dociment
Fal eridlin
milornalo

= Devalap and publksh *I
Arsgional guic

| The PG "
O BT
HESEEE I

arkiets on M
e, Mot

+ 3 Marketins + 3 Warketing coldten
uprdased ir

W

« 3 Marketing oo
Wt

+ 3 madia famis

=15 meedlin remd + 15 meda resuila TE meclia e

b niurmbers

Showcasing cur . ALl Aflend 5 trade
< Jp ssilopgll lpeiesiome _

= driend 7 pait
larnils

Opeoriuries Fro

» Dyl 1 P o

EXDEHeris

conledence

Businpas Everls 3 Eapipnpace

sap L4

OUR WORK
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DESCRIPTIDN LTP CONMNECTION KPl 2024-25 KPI 202E6-26

the Mugilabin
and Cestinaten
Sirategy (MS0S

Waretng o + Klareetirg of

SIS 3O CYTNRD ST ST

= Prodhice §

i plesran i at ey
ol thie FReghonal
Erergy Strabegy

oeaont lor reresable
SNy QENeranan

OUR WORK
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Space Operations New Zealand

Great South founded Space Operations New Zealand Limited (SpaceOps NZ)
in 2021 as a standalone company that now owns the Awarua Satellite Ground
Station. As a 100% subsidiary of Great South, SpaceOps NZ is a Council-
Controlled Trading Organisation (CCTO) and as such will present its own
Statement of Intent and associated financials to the shareholding councils.

Space0ps NZ's role is 1o meet demand from rapid growth in the international small satellite (smallsat)
commumnity.

The Awarua Satellite Ground Station hosts antennas for intermational customers and has its own
antennas o ]errldﬁ snulhern hemlspher&* gruund .';T.E[_]rﬂE!l'll 5I,I|)r.||:|:"| fnr sSpace Hgf‘n(‘.iﬂ!—; :Lnd I;;DH'IFHPH’.{.EH
satellite operators

Customers” satellites are used for all manner of purposes, including tracking shipping containers,
measuring the atmosphere, imaging the Earth, calibrating satellite navigation systems and providing
internet services.

Some of the antennas provide downrange support for international launch companies, including Rocket
Lab, founded by Invercargill's Peter Beck. It is the first station with spacecraft visibility on the westem
gide of the Pacific Ocean and is New Zealand's only commercial low Earth orbit satellite ground station

On the strength of its services, there are now twa international space businesses based in Invercargill

Two new 11 metre antennas have been added to the station as part of a collaboration with Lockheed
Martin Australia. This is part of the broader Trans-Tasman SouthPAN (Southemn Positioning
Augmentation Netwark) project, that will allow Mew Zealanders and Australians centimetre accuracy
positioning from their smartphones. The antennas are supported by a mission operations centre in
Invercargill

In July 2023, SpaceOps NZ took over Auckland University of Technology's radio astronomy operations
at Spark’s Warkworth Satellite Earth Station. As a result, it now operates a 12 metre and a 30 metre

in diameter antenna. The 12 metre antenna is used to pinpoint New Zealand to within 2 couple of
millimetres by tuning into radio waves emitted by some of the most distant objects in the universe.
Space0ps NZ's core business has until now been providing telecommunications to spacecraft orbiting
400 to 600 km above the Earth but the 30m antenna is used for radio astronomy and communicating
with spacecraft in deep space

¥ A

OUR WORK ral h Statement of Intent
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Statement of comprehensive
revenue and expense

For the T2 months to June

20248725 2025726 2026527

Budiget Bardiget Budiget
Tharshoder invectreert
[+ 1. S M) FLAS RN 2. 150049
CaormBen seant - er] 1608027

Total 950027 3,653,110 32,764,054

T Paverue 53ETS
Pragact Hperon T
Total Osher Revenue 1331050 131,675
Tiskal Mevetius 4922677 4,404,085

Prijest ind Serves Expenditure

ool Econarie Cenarbogeart LAY 1 Cul 20
ELETWES HIDNT SHTIDES 534,068 Hah BSa3
Fegaonal Toung Devcpoant TRTE TaLTEs THLATT
Regnonal Evert Debvery L ke ] BEIT
Tolal Preject Enpendinsre 2,074,585 2,495,652 2,564,126
Cora snpendiiue
Do Fews 1 Mgy 191,841
.Er::n,--*-'.:rﬂ'u:-- -} e crzea
Deprecatiun srt Amonvaaton oo ET
Onerfepeemes T3R8 B3 47328
Total Cors Expend turs 1,550,087 1576720 2,040,120

Tiotal Expndiiune 4§84 TR AL 4554244

Tt

Mt Grapbon § (Daflaint) Afer Teation [4z2,905) 185 044 {93 515)

mant of Intent
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Statement of financial position

As-at 30 June

2024725 2025726 2026727
Budiget Bardiget Budiget

Currery! Avorts

Y ATESAD 1A60 A 1540807
Ml B IS B 408 B B0
E . !-:i'.lc.f.. 1 l'-..:'.l.-.: i L
Total Current Aseels 3532572 2309108 aTas2
t Avunty
R TSR V072 S
14 107 207
o epatrresn 1A ARD 14 i 114,555
Total Mo -carest Aassty 1,286,140 1240512 1,220,108

Total Ranets 1E7T) 1637710 2,400,047

135441 167654 1%
41,201 4127 41201}
£31.088 31 55 LTER
EES JBLEE3G 285535
CHnwer evarect ke TEAN Yy ] EichT L 139454

Total Cunnent Lisbdiies 1,433,482 1297978 1,257 826

Cantribned cipay

T

.'?-l.--'.-'-wJ-'m-ﬁ RN ]
oLl e 405231 243735 ESE T
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Statement of cash flows

For the 12 months to June

20248725 2025726 2026527

Budiget Bardiget Budiget
Canh Fipwe from Operating Asfisities
Rataita o SharePocier it irvrt! A5enar (R WLk 1L 54
Refepts nom olfes aosrabng SXIWTEE P LA L LEriEe . 1,405,011

P g 2

y Far]

Total cauh fiwe froem Operatng Aesmilies nadn (ISR TR
Caam Pl fiom Invesning Astwies

S S0
i " 11,5001 (11,500 11,5000

Purcrase Of e ugss

Total canh g froom nvealing Aetiviles (11.554) (11,5000 1,50)

Bormsings
Total cash Fos froos Finsncing Actrvilien
et Canh Aow [FECTITT] ALY 11034s

. r@sh oouseaken verehalts il Begrrng of pennd 1 514,53 B, 8
TREN, Cath scuwakinle and cvsrd sl Al e of parcd 13543 1,540,163 BRI
it chirage in Faah bk peilo R ) [ACEETAN] [T10.346)

Statemant of Intent
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Accounting policies
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# m Sordland Pegional Desplogrert

1 bt ool ksl B

Cash and Caih Equivalists

e ihoed Ceh i Ry

T bkl &

rgd] s ATl v kR gl

srpluk ¢

f e s PTG Belvin [rrlenie
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Shareholder requirements

STATEMENT OF INTENT

By 1 December each vear Great South will dedrves 2 drafl
Hatement of Intenl 1o 1he joint shareholders a5 requined
by 1he Local Governrent Act The Joint 5

i
provicde festiback 1o e Great South Boa

eholders will

oy 1 March
each year and the fing® docurment will be detiversd by 30

June each year

REPORTING

Half Yearly Reporting
By the end of Fetruary each year the board must delver
o the shareholders a report on the organsations

nperatians during that h

fyear The report must include
e LGA 2002

t and ery cther informatson

the wlion tequired | wchuded by

stement of inte

and the

regquesied Dy the shareholders

Annual Report

By the end of Septembar sach year, the board must

dedner ta the sharehaldars and mak

& 10 the

Wil
public a repart on the company’s oper:

AT Th

thie perlonmance targets and

{uring the

il e lude audited Tinancial statements and

o mesasures by which

perfonTusnce was padged in relalion to the ofgansation's

0hje

SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

An gl general meating will be held Before the end of
Saptember aach year 10 present the annual repen. The
natice of the Annus Generzl Mesting (ARG will be no

ess than 10 warking days before the mesting, unless

eoreed by 8 sharehoiders who are enlitied ta attend and

1e at the meeting

SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL

Ay subscrnplion; purchase or acquisitior oy Greal
South of shares in a company of ¢ zalion require
|der app
Other matters o

by special resolution as will the

ihined in Gréal Sounhs constituton

DIVIDEND POLICY

l
dratends

e Greal Soull Bosid i add puthonsed 1o aporove any

COMPENSATION FROM LOCAL
AUTHORITIES

he Directors do not envi

& arry ciroums 5 afiging

that would

during the yeas other than those alfeady staled in the

give rig= 1o any claim Froem any kocal authority

financial stalemeants

NO SURPRISES

Great South, through the Joint Shareholders Commiting
will wiark with the shaceholdens 1o develap trust and 3

erafanding on & N Sumoses” At The

GO LW

board will be fens

o e dérmuands lor scoouniabebty

placed on the Councls froom thetr respecivie ialepiyss

PUBLIC EXPECTATIONS

Greal South is wery mindful of the public scruting that

comes with being a CO0. Great South wll

Build accouniability and conswugtive working pracices

between their organisation and the shareholders

somirul 10 transpanency and abcountatulity 1o the
pubbc. This Ldes fullilling the plannirdg reporing and
disclasure 1

2000 s it 2 1o GO0, andd 1he requireimenis of the

werts of the [ooal Gowerniment Act

Local Gowsnment Official Informatcn and Meetings Act

1987 az L appies 10 CLOs

Ensune the ooyt i hscally disciplined with

expenditure

ace the Shieholder Councls’ sirategec |
Long-terrn Plans 20718-2028 and any

e iy :iglid

a5 Sel oo

athar relevan

Great South is tasked with leading the future
growth aspirations of Murihiku Southland on
behalf of our shareholders, stakeholders and
the wider Murihiku Southland community.

atement of Intent
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GREAT SOUTH

Southland Reglonal Development Agency

www.greatsouth.nz

Visit our website to find out more about us and sign up for our newsletters to recefve regular updates

Attachment A Page 47




Council 23 October 2024

SPACE OPERATIONS NEW ZEALAND LIMITED

Statement of Intent
1 July 2024 - 30 June 2025
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Company Information

COMPANY DIRECTORY

INTRODUCTION

SPACE OPERATIONS NEW ZEALAND LIMITED
= TRADING AS SPACEORS NI
ey House. &2 Deveron Sreet

B0 o 1306, Iméercangi 9810 In accordance with the requirements

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clo Southland Rogional Developme

143 Spey Srest, Invercangli

rament Act 2002, this

BANK

wWesipac New Zealand Lanited

AUDITORS

rentded 30 Jun
i g Two ye
biectives t
LEGAL STATUS ivitios will contribute.
Space Oporations Mow Tealand Limited was incoporabed in Neow
Toatpng ot 58 July 2006 disdy e Companies At FBS3E NZEM
429042426585, Company NumibDer 6033648
Space Cporations Hew Jealond Limiled is & whlly geneo
subsidiary of Southlengd Reglonal Development Agency Limded,

cil Maw Jaadand jon Behall el the Difce af ine

which 5 8 counci-0omie salion. This mikes Spaca Frovides a basis for the
Operatiors a coimcikoontiolled trading cogansaion (ICCTOH as accountability of the directars
defined it Sechon B ol e Local Gosstnmend Act X002

" ; to thair shs gr for the
SHAREHOLDER performance of the arganisation
Southland Regiona’ Dewelopment Agency Limiled

This Statement of At reflacis
what Spc Ol < Naw

Zealand understands at the bime ¢
WEngQ.

DIRECTORS

John Yakdeyn (Chai), Chame Abeysinghe, Peter Meenan

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Raben MEMe

Space Dperations Mew ool
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GOVERNANCE & STRUCTURE

SPACEQPS NI BOARD
Th
and a
siabegic divecbon and conlrol of Sosce0ps NEs aiviles

Epocelps NE B

TRARFTLM ¢ s who are rezparible for g

The

erses the Duness undefoken by SpaccOps

Companies Act 2002, the company™

[l

with i

Coratiitian and this Sisten

COPERATIONS

Whedng Iy

wn thi pedornance aganst ol prioriies

NO SURPRISES

The Spoce s NZ Board will kegp our shareholder Hiarmed on

A NG SUpPrises” Hasis

Thie Spacelps NE

Aoy

PUBLIC EXPECTATIONS

SHArPONG B R vy minadhl

A EATeE

Wit B & OCTO Al wi
+ Bulld pogounistlity and con

Bitaean thelr gryé

= Commill o Barspeaier

apipld 1 CCT

sl plinsed wilh experciiure

Space Dperations Mew Tealand

POLICIES

DIVIDEND POLICY
Each yeor the Board wh
corsidenng the ong

sk ey of

e ke erviio v ol Cimparses Acl

2002 &

Declared divdends, ¥ amy, wil be paid in o insialments in

Febroary and Mgt

Mo desdond 15 1o b

O S0

wibjertin

SHAREHOLDER INVESTMENT
Tha Deraector imabe thal the com clak vakep of the
roholders’ invesiment i SoaceOps N2 a5 a1 1.0y ks
epresented by the aosing balance of sharebolder's funds

COMPENSATION FROM LOCAL AUTHORITIES
I AR
WPANE AL e

tataments
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OUR PURPOSE

To deliver sustainable,
innovative services to the
global space market.

OUR VISION

for & kigh-trus! operaling

ey highty tnested. The
epertise o be found within SpaceOps NZ and ou
contractors compares favourably with amywhere in the
warld, W have icdentified and ank Explaiting the exciting

n an industry that calls
PIRATTCINMENT, W are A

OEp o

afsing Trom our natlural advantages
the takent of our stafl

and

SpaceOps NZ's vision is to utilise our

strategic advantages to profitably and
sustainably...

» Provide space operations services and
facilities

» Create and develop new opportunities in
the space sector

» Foster space activity within New Zealand

Space Dperations Mew ool

NATIONAL INTEREST

Spacelps MZ strongly suppoits and advocates lor the
peasceful use of space and recognise
needs alaays 10 be recognsed as a responsible
ntermaticral citizen in the space domain

s thal the Company

Spacelps ML 5 resDonSve 10 370 Complies with the
Outed Space and High-ahitude Actieitios Act 2007 anc
internatiorel space treatles.

Spacelps NE's work hes anabled twd wel-known

Intermationsl co

aMies in the space secio o estabiln
thery

ahves in Invercargll, helping bulld a space econamy

in Soul

mainainz outr

ach to Soulhland youth, 1o
excite them bo consider careers in science, technology.
ARGINEEANG AN Mathematics 1nas wolld ety sthendse
rematn untamilias to them

REGIONAL INTEREST

Tha Awarun Satelite Ground Station enjoys intemalional

Sy far 43 unigue [Sealicn in MNew Jealand the
5 unsumpassed aimost everywhers else inthe world
Matwihstarding SpaceOps NI's large dperiure anternas
at Warkcworih, Awarug 565 will alwiovs B the iewe] in
Spacelps NAS Crown
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

At Awarua Satellite Ground Station

(5G5), SpaceOps NZ currently

exploits its geographically unique and
globally significant location to provide
telecommunications for spacecraft in Earth
orbit through hosting others” antennas and
leasing ime of its own antennas.

The recently acquired large aperure
antennas at Warkwaorth are used for
underaking radic astronomy and space
gecdesy observations,

SpaceQps MZ currently has four
business lines:

1. Hosting customer-owned satellite
ground stations, including installing

and maintaining these ground stations

2. Leasing its own ground stations to
satellite operators and others

3. Undertaking space geodesy and radio

astronomy observations

4. Providing technical expertise to the
space community

Space Dperations Mew Tealand Stay

At present, hosting others’ antennas forms
the company's prime revenue stream. This
Is now a mature operation with steady
growth forecasted, Mearly all hosting
revenue is derived from the Awarua 5G5

Leasing and operating its own ground
stations will become important to
Spacelps NZ as its antennas become
qualified and the senvices are more widely
marketed.

Much of the leasing revenue from 2024
forward will come from the propesed use of
the Warkworth 30metre antenna to support
deep space telecommunications. Because
of the quantum of this operation, the
Warsoworth operation is treated as a
stand-alone business centre,
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GROWTH & INVESTMENT

There are four priority growth areas for the
period 1o 30 June 2027

1. Further develop the facilities at
Awarua and elsewhere in response
to growing demand for hosting
and leasing of ground stations, and
associated services

2. Develop and bring into service
additional antennas for leasing to
customers

3. Upgrade the equipment at Warkworth
Space Centre to provide lunar, and
near- and deep-space antenna leasing
services.

4, Developing a commercial near real-
time satellite Earth observation
operation.

In agdition, for strategic reasons, and driven
by demand and oppontunity, SpaceQps ML
may also

- Establish additional ground stations at
new sites

« Expand the scope of the present space
geodesy services to provide value-
added services to New Zealand and
overseas customers

What is a satellite
ground station?

Ground stations comprise
antennas [often dish-shaped)
and antenna positioners, and
radio equipment and computer
servers, which are used 1o
communicate with sateliites
launch-yehicles (collectively,

‘spacecrall’)

Space Operations Mew Zeal
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RISKS

Risks to SpeceOps NEZ's operations have
heen icentified. The risks most demanding
attention are’

« Covid-19 related supply chain issues for
our customers has seen installation of
new antennas delayed by as much as 9
months. Such delays directly impact on
when we can start chasging hosting fees,
and thus our revenue. [t is not possible 1o
mitigate this nsk.

Revenue is somawhat sensitive 1o
variations in the SNZD-%USD exchange
rates and forward-exchange contracts
can only ameliorate short to medium lerm
effects. SpaceOps N2 will be purchasing
eguipmeant from overseas as part of ils
expansion plans. This expenditure will be
sensitive to exchange rate fluctuations
and forward cover will be taken to hedge
against adverse currency movements,

The space industry is dynamic and quickly
evolying, meaning new opportunities
somelimes present themselves
unexpectedly. Such opportunities may
demand immediate attention to either
secure them, or to prevent other parties

Space Operations Mew Zealand Ston

exploiting them 1o gain competitive
advaniage. Therefore, a nimble and
responsive approach by SpaceQps MNE Is
required.

While currently considered to be of lower
priority than the proposed immediate
work programme for SpaceOps NZ, the
company will need 1o monitor and be able
1o react quickly 1o

- Customer demand for optical ground
stations and telescopes

- Customer demand for ground stations In
other parts of New Zealand

- Doportunities o broaden activities
relating to near real-ime satellite Earth
ooservalion

- Cammercial interest in hardware and

software developed in-house

7.1
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SpaceQps NZ's performance targets for the year ending
30 June 2025 and subseguent two years follow.

NON-FINANCIAL

Heatlh, Safety and
Risk Managemsnl

Infrastructure

F28/I5
Mo Eost-teme injuries for stef

Mo Reportable Incrdanis n
the workplaco

Mo contrackual penalty

& payoble 10 customens
caused by the failare of
Spacelps NI mirastnicture

203526
Mo lost-time injuries for staf,

Mo Keporable Incidents in
the workplace

Mo contractual penalty.

is poyabée 1o customers
caused by the fallure of
SpaceQps NZ infraskryclurs

ikt
Mo lostlime injuries for staff

Mo Reportable Incidents in
1he workplace,

Mo contractual peneity
s payoble to customerns
i

Human Resources

Less than 15%:
lurrsdreer of 518,

Less than 15%
Lurngyes of siall

Lass than 15%
buircves ol stafl

FINANCIAL

Annual revenue
gromdh 1o exceed 15%

Annual revenue
prowlh 1o esteed 15%

Annual revanoe
wowlh o exceed 15%

Budget

Mgt .:h.J:M}'!-:"J UG

Space Dperations Mew ool

Meol budgeted surplus

Mool budgeled surplus
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Financial Forecasts

STATEMENT OF STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE CASH FLOWS
REVENUE & EXPENSE

For the 12 months to June
For the 12 months to June

2034/25 202526 202627

Budgat Budget Buoge
2024725 052G 2O2GET

Busdget Budget Buidgel

£G2 988 G933 E50 10E3.695
Revenuo 3,285,550 1848535 1464713
Experciua 147 EEE 3550,124 40332 387 "
{rem imaesting 2482 TH (2 221,6M) 2650277
Het Surplus

(Deticiy 13rToe 158.6M A3RI4G Arthvities

Taxathpn JE55T a8 41 057

Nurt Surplus /

f‘:ﬂm' 29145 11200 ass MetCash Flows (24197083 [2427764)  (2.506,570)

Erd of Peiiod

STATEMEHT n F 456,032 N.IG375T (407657
FINANCIAL POSITION —

i 9637 0MEE)  (6E43ME
For the financial year ended S b .

Het Change

HOTEY)  (242TTCA (256657
0345  I0ISE6  FOEIT Cash Balances & @ ke J

Busdget Budget Budgot

SOM6EIS TIMASEZ  WEOmME2

20 5067461 JE41L203

2,083,320 2307521 2518809

Contriutod Capka 1072, 56BE 1072 563 1072588
R ta i Estiays 1020733 1738 933 1445231

Tota! Equity L083.320 ZI0TEN 2518809

Space Dperations Mew Zealand Staw
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10

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREFPARATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

1 AAARCIAl AALMMANS Fa b

BOCOuntabigy &

PRESENTATION CURRENCY AND ROUNDING

The yricial SEALemenls ae Seesenied 9 Maw F Jils)
1} the na ! The
ot 18 Nenw Zoatard L1d (%
MEASUREMENT BASE
THit s bl slabosies By W21 | Wil 3 A Rl
9 il 1 UL ¥
¥ i1 case he bax 15 ME wiith I g Ty

wal miaty

Trade and Other Receivables

rade and othes recetsrbies am

A o i
Al Thes BalAACE shisst date Ba T AEtiEA] S e Spacy 1
i 1 AT 1Py iy jraist 1heit AT 5
Revenue in Advance wilus ol the ame
e e iBechity e i ¥ Property, Plant and Equipment
woess ol the ame BLog W

; : - Property. plant. and aq natil corstits of the followdig aasel
Expenditisre
All expandilure & *acognised 8s Incured waless e iabioy

B T [al Tl | wiliy cslimak which ¢ i

Snpaniiies IS SoCribed

Foreign Exchange Transactions

LEEAcy L arsaciiors ars tarslabed i

Space Operations Mew Zealand
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Email office@spaceops.nz S PA E.
Phone +64 21516 366

WWW.SPACEOPS.NZ NEW ZEALAND
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HETRICT COUNCIL

. environment =
RE Invercargitt  foURRR TN

CITY COUMCIL

GO (&

Te Tada Tonga DISTRICT COUNCIL

30 October 2023

lan Collier
Great South

PO Box 1306
Invercargill #840

Dearlan
Great South Letter of Expectation 2024-2025

Infreduction

| write this letter of expectation on behalf of the Great South Joint Shareholders
Committee as Chair.

I wish to congratulate Great South on another year of hard work, We note the
achievement of delivering the Beyond 2025 Southland Plan and the Murhiku
Southland Destination Strategy. These are both significant pieces of work that will help
inform the strategic direction of our region moving forward.

| would also like to commend you, yvour board of directors and the Great Scuth
management team for working with all the shorehelders to identify the priorities for
muriniku Southland and aligning this with the Beyond 2025 Southland Long-Term plan,

Regional Priorities

Through the two strategic workshops you held with us earlier this year the shareholders
have an agreed understanding that;

«  Great South, as the southland regional development agency will work across
the undermenticned pricrity areas that will drive economic development in our
region.

Regional Development Leadership (Beyond 2025 actions)

Business Support & Diversificalion (RBP, Callaghan, 5YF, new business)

Regional Promation (Tourism and Events)

Met Zero Southlond (Regional Carbon emissions monitoring and

reductions)

O e o0 o0

»  Great South will consider how to suppoart pricrities identified from the Beyond
2025 Southland long-term plon as follows:
o Data [a platform to hest regional data to support decision making)

7.1
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o Housing {the establishment of a regional housing forum and sfrategy to
support housing provision in the region)

o Roading & Transport [advocacy including data to support decision
making around & fransport network for the region)
Aquacullure including laond use diversificafion
Energy (implementation of the regional energy strategy)

o Addressing the issue of unrestricted forestry [advocacy fo govemment)

« Inaddition to the above menlicned regional priorities, Great South will consider
individual council areas of focus (a5 per oppendices) when developing the
Statement of Intent.

Funding Commitments

Al the 14 June 2023 meeting of the J5C, it was resolved that it would be useful to
move towards a three-year LOE with an annual review to enhance certainty and
consistency for Great South. Therefore, this LOE cutlings the antficipated funding and
expectations from shareholders for the next three years, however this does not
preclude potentfial changes upon the annual review,

The table below outlines the contract funding commitments remaining the same for
the next three years. However, the core funding shows a 4.3% BERL increase, year on
wear, As auflined above, these commitments are subject o annual reviews,

-
g & 38 @ ZE
2024/25 s s s 3 £
8 g 8 2
[
Icc 920,000 920,000 TBA
sDC 451,527 250,000 701,527 TBA
GDC 60,000 60,000 TBA
ES - - TBA
TOTAL 1,431,527 | 250,000 | 1,681,527 | 1,981,000* | 3,662,527*
2025/26 1,681,527 | 2,066,183* | 3,747,710*
2026/27 1,681,527 | 2,155,029° | 3,836,556°

*Mote; this amount is not final until ll councils have individually confirmed an
increase in core funding for 2024/2025.

Letter of Expectation process

In response to the LOE, we request that Great South produces a 501 as required by
section 64 of the Local Government Act [the Act). Its purpose is o provide a clear
public strategic stotement of the Board's intentions and is a key planning document
for both Great South and its shareholders. When developing the draft 301, Great

Page | 2
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South should have regard to the specific content reguiregments outlined in Schedule
8 of the Act.

The LOE and 501 process pravides an opportunity for diclogue betweean the Board
and the shareholders ond supports a constructive ond co-operafive working
relationship.
Mo surprises

We expect that Great South keeps its shareholders informed [through the JSC)ona
‘no surprises” basis regarding matters that may have financial, pelitical, or public
implications for shareholders, in paricular for the funding councils and their
ratepayers.

Core funding
Confirmation of core funding amounts is not provided in this letter of expectation.

Invercargill City Council and Southland District Council have approved an increase
in core funding to $1,981,000. Gore Distiicl Council and Enwviranment Southland have
not considered an increase fo core funding.

Additionally, a3 you will e aware, a review is currenily being undertaken pursuant to
Schedule 4 of the Southland Regional Development Shareholders Agreement.

Qnce this review is complete, we will be in a position to provide confirmation of core
funding amounts and their allocations in follow up comrespondence.

MNext steps

Cn receipt of this LOE, the JSC requests that the Board provides its draft SO0 by 1
December 2024, The J5C, along with its individual sharehaolders, will then consider the
draft 301 and provide feedback. This feediback will inform the final 301 which is
expecied to be received by the JSC by 30 June 2024,

Yours sincerely

Mayor Rob Scott
Chair - Great South Joint Shareholders Committee

cc: Chami Abevysinghe, Great South

Page | 3
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Appendices
Appendix A - Class A Shareholder Areas of Focus
Appendix B - Southland District Council Priorities

T e
| Invercargill City Council
' Invercargill City Council supports an increase in provision for core funding to $1,981,000.

i Invercargill City Council supports an allocafion of $920,000 for contract funding. Great |
! South are to come back to Council with their breakdown of the costs within the four |
areas of Economic, Business, Toursm and Events Development and to include the costs
i of Beyond 2025 implementation within this figure. 1

Invercargill City Council notes that the estimated funding allecation from Council for |
i Great South for 20242025 will be $1.94 million. Council invites the Great South Board to |
i suggest a different breakdown of funding in their view better achieves outcomes, not to |
i be greater than $1.94 milion. !

 Additionally, Invercargill City Council specifically requests:

« A nosurprises approach between the Great South Board and Jaint Shareholders |
Committes and Class A shareholders: 1

+« That the Great South Board seek Shareholder agreement ahead of establishing
trading organisations;

* The future Great South 30Is meet the legal requirements for a CCTO as outlined |
in the Local Government Act, including providing invesiment return provisions

s« That shareholders and Great South Board work together to finalise and execute
the required governance documentation for the financial year 2023/2024.

 Southland District Council
Southland District Council supports an increase in provision of core funding to $1,981,000. |
Southland Disfrict Council has endorsed $701,527 for contract funding for 2024/2025.

The areas of focus which Southland District Council requires Great South to pricritise are |
i outlined in appendix A, ]

i Southland Distict Council invites the Great South Board to suggest an allocation of
contract funding that achieve better cutcomes for the Southland Distict. Great South
i is invited to outline this in the draft Statement of Intent and Southland District Council

i will respond during the feedback process.

Gore District Council
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Gore District Council has endorsed 560,000 for confract funding for 202472025 fo |
advancing specific Gore District Council strategies and initiafives specifically related to |
council's following prograrmmes: |

. Workforce Plan
. Welcoming Communities inifiative
* Ready for Living strategy

Gore District Council's Community Strategy Manager will liaise with Great South to

negotiate project specific deliverables on a contract for service basis to the value of
the $40k confract funding allocation.

Environment Southland

Environment Southland is @ contributer to core funding (as cpposed to confract funding) |
and therefore requests that Great South continue to pricritise its core function of regional
development.

Environment Southland has previously raised process concerns regarding the science |
and research being undertaken by Great South and potential overlap of roles and

responsiblities. While there have been attempts by both agencies to improve processes, |
these concerns continue to remain relevant. In particular, we are concemed about |
potential duplications of effort with Envirenment Southland undertaking a significant

amount of envircnmental monitoring and research in the region in accordance with its |
regulated responsibilities. |

i Further, it can be difficulf to assess the crediblity of the science and research being done

| by Great South as we do not tend to see reports detailing the methodologies used. |
| credentials of the authors or peer review processes.

We note Great South is yet to have a conversation directly with Environment Southland |
i regarding potential increases in core funding costs and look forward o this occuring in
| the near future.

Additional pricrities and comments from the Joint Shareholders Committee (including |
i from Class B shareholders)

Community Trust South

Communily Trust South wishes to reiterate the importance of designing the Statement of |
| Intent to meet agreed regional pricrifies as identified in this letter of expectation.

Invercargill Licensing Trust

The thoughts and pricrities of Invercargill Licensing Trust are aligned with those of |
Invercargill City Council that focus on the promotion and economic development of |

| Invercargil city.
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AFPENDIX B
Southland District Council Priorities

The areas of focus which Southland Distict Council requires Great South to priontise
are:

« Greater diversificalion and resilience within the economy and wider
community

o Support to sfrengthen and retain existing businesses by both assisting
with diversification and encouraging greater self-reiance and long-
term sustainakility,

« Economic development (without compromising environmental and
community outcomes)

o Bringing new business into the region. This support should be tailored to
encouraging businesses into the south and limited once businesses
have commifted to the south. Council would also like to focus on
idenfifying opportunities to further ‘green’ the region's economy.

= Great digital connectivity

o Poor connectlivity and occess to reliable sowrces remains a difficulty,
particularly for the rural community. Council considers it a continuing
pricty to identify other opportunities that could be explored in this
aredq.

« Tourism projects (including Visit Fiordland)

o  Council would like fo see a confinued focus on positioning Southland
to take advantage of tourism opportunities such as agritourism and
recreational octivities.

« Confinved collaboration and information sharing between shareholders

o Confinuing a collaborative process, information sharing and alignment
of activities/shared projects wil help avoid duplication of effort and
ensures mutual benefits of access to data and resources. A prionity is
dlso ensuring a continued Ngai Tohu partnership lens on all regional
strategic development.

« Transition planning - Beyond 2025 coordination

o Council considers it a priority that Great South ensures its transition
planning for the region remains broadly focused ensuring that
Southland haos the ability to be adaptive.

+ Housing

o Establishment of a Regional Housing Portal and Regional Housing

Forum
« Carbon forestry

o Provide SkyTEM woler resiience research and assessment,
Partrershipfsupport for information collection, industry/business
perspectives, advocacy with regard to Council direction and
facilitation of implermentations,
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Data
o Support improved investment from central government, facilitate
information sharing. colloboration and maintenance of
collected/collated daota.
Aquaculture and alternative land use
o Support the EAG and new business, Collaboration and maintenance
of collected/collated data.
Energy
o Establishment of a regional coordinoted energy steering group to
implement the Murihiku Southland Energy Strategy 2022-2080. Ensure
planning framewaorks and spatial plans incorporate new energy
irvestment, consider geographical location and resiience of networks.
Roading and transport
o Ensuring industry, reading and fransports current and future needs are
enabled through fit for purpose infrastructure.
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Drinking water supplies consolidated report - 1 July

2023 to 30 June 2024

Record no: R/24/9/56733

Author: Bill Witham, Asset manager water

Approved by: Hartley Hare, Strategic manager transport/Acting GM infrastructure and capital
delivery

O Decision O Recommendation Information

Summary

This report contains the drinking water compliance report for Southland District Council (SDC)
supplies, for the reporting period of 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024. SDC supplies water to

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat, Edendale/Wyndham, Lumsden/Balfour, Manapouri, Mossburn,
Ohai/Nightcaps, Otautau, Orawia, Riverton, Te Anau, Tuatapere, and Winton.

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary for the Southland District Council on the
Drinking water supply schemes compliance in accordance with the Drinking Standard
New Zealand 2022.

This report is an internal self-report that is required as per the SDC drinking water safety plans
for each scheme. This report has not been reviewed or assessed by external parties.

Recommendation
That Council:

a) Receives the report titled “Drinking water supplies consolidated report - 1 July 2023
to 30 June 2024”.

Attachments
A Drinking water supplies consolidated report 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024
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SOUTHLAND
DISTRICT COUNCIL

N

Drinking water supplies consolidated

compliance report
Self-reporting for period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024

Southiland Dittric Cound PO Box 203
T Aok Pitae o Muribiu 15 Forth Street
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Dwinkirig water supples consolsdated compliance report

Complianee report from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 in accordance with Donking Warer Quuality

Assurance Rules 2022, Warer Services Regulations 2022 and the Warer Services Acr 2021,

5DC drinking water supplies

Eastern Bush/Orahu Flar EASOO2

Edendale/Wyndham EDEDD

Lumsden,/ Balfour LUMO01

Manapouri MANMM

Muossburn MOS002

Ovhai/ Nighteaps OHAN

Ohrawia ORAODOD3Z

Orautau AN

Raverton RIVIKH

Te Anau TEADOZ2

Tuatapere TUADO]

Winton WINO01

APPROVED BY: BILL WITHAM SIGN

TITLE: Asset Manager Water DATE

PREPARED BY: DANICA AMABA SIGN

TITLE: Water Safety Officer DATE

REVIEWED BY: BEVAN MCKENZIE SIGN

TITLE: Three Waters-Project Manager DATE
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Water Supplier

Southland Distrcr Council (3DC)

Equipment used for the assessment

Manual sampling and SCADA reporting through WarerOurlook

Assessment method
Dinnking Warer Qualiry Assurance Rules 2022
Water Services (Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand) Regulations 2022

Water Services Act 2021

Document and information
Dininking Water Quuality Assurance Rules 2022
Warer Services (Drinking Warer Standards for New Zealand) Regulanons 2022

Warer Services Act 2021

Powst: PO B 903
Invercargill %540

Courer: 15 Forth Street
Invercargill, 9810

F-mail; emailsdei@southlandde govr.nz
Phone: (R0 732 732
Fax: (500 732 329

Int phone: +64 3 211 2500
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7.2 Attachment A Page 71



Council 23 October 2024

Dwinkinig water supples consolsdated compliance report

| Introduction

This report contains the drinking water compliance report for Southland District Couneil (SDC) supplies
for the reporting period of 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024, SDC supplies water to Eastern Bush/Craho Flar,
Edendale /Wyndham, Lumsden,/ Balfour, Manapour, Mossburn, Ohai/Nigheeaps, Ouutau, Orawia,
Riverron, Te Anaw, Tuatapere, and Winton,

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary for the Southland Distriet Couneil on the Drinking

warer supply schemes compliance in accordance with the Drinking Standard New Zealand 2022,

This report 15 an internal self-report that is required as per the SDC drinking water safery plans for each
scheme. This report has not been reviewed or assessed by external parties.

2 Terminology

For the 23/ 24 vear, the drinking water supply has been assessed for compliance/ non-compliance under

the ser standards.

Non-compliance

e from | July 2023 o 30 Junc 2024
o drinking water supply that does not comply with the requirements of the Water Services

Act 2021 and eompliance requirements set in the Water Services [Drinking Warer Standard
for Mew Zealand) Regulatons 2022 (IDWSNZ 2022) and Danking-Water Quality
Assurance Rules 2022 (DWOQAR 2022),

3 Summary of the Water Services Act 2021 compliance

The duries of the Water Supplier (SDC) under the Warer Services Act 2021 section 30 regarding preparing
and implementing drinking water satety plans that comply with legislative requirements have been met.
The warer supplier works collaboratvely with the donking water contractor (Downer Lrd,) to implement
the drinking water safety plans for all the registered drnking warer schemes, The 12 drinking water safety
plans have been lodged with Taumata Arowai (New Zealand water regulator) via Hinckorako (self-service
portal for drinking water suppliers) to comply with legislative requirements.

The drinking water safety plans have been updared o align with the DWSNZ 2022 and DWOQAR 2022,
including the source water risk management plan, risk assessment, supply emergency response plan,

situation,/ incident response and improvement schedule.

Page | 5
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4 Compliance report in accordance with Drinking Water Quality Assurance

Rules 2022, Water Services Regulations 2022 and the Water Services Act 2021

4.1  Drinking water quality standards to which drinking-water supplies must monitor

and/or comply
Source water abstraction Water treatment plant Distribution system
Bacterial monitoring Bacrerial compliance Bacrerial monitoring
Chemical monitorng Protozoal complianee Backfloww protection monitoring
Physico-chemical manitoring | Chemieal compliance Hygiene procedures monitoring
Cyanobacreria moniroring Cyannoroxin compliance Residual disinfecrion compliance
Radiological montoring Disinfeeton by-product complianee

Plumbosolvent compliance

The drinking water cuality assurance rules set the rule modules for the water suppliers wo follow o meet
compliance, The rule modules is a structured module eovering peneral rules (G, souree warer (8),
trearment systems () and distributon systems (D)o meet specific drinking water supply categories, SDC
Dinnking water supplies fall under networked supplies except for Orawia, as it follows the Very Small
Communites module, (VSC)

The able below outlines the dinking water supply catepories and the mle modules w follow o
demonstrare compliance.

Categories of drinking water supplies Rule modules that compliance is

demonstrated against

| L. Wery Small Communities

. Up to 25 peopie, o up 1o 50 peophe for up to B0 | VSC
| days in any 12 month period.

| If supplying drinking water to a planned event | G + TOWS {for the duration of the
| which increases the total population to mare planned evert)

| than 50 people.

| 2 Networked Supplies

| smail (26 100 people) |GesteT14D1
Medium {101 - 500 people] G+52+T2+D2
e : bl

G+53+T3+D3

Page | &
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4.2  Summary of drinking water compliance in accordance with Drinking Water Quality
Assurance Rules 2022 for 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 report period

Source water abstraction:
Radiological Monitoring;

The Edendale, Lumsden, Mossburn, Oraurau, Te Anav, Tuatapere and Winton souree warer supplics
complied with the Groundwater Source Monitoring - radiological requirements 2022 o 2032, The
radiological (gross alpha and bera acriviries) and chemical (porassium) rests were complered on 12 Jamuary
2023 for these seven groundwater sources. Tests are reguired once every 10 vears,

The previous radon rest (including romal alpha and total beta coneentration) in Riverron Well 1 was
completed on 13 March 2013, and the results comply with the source radiological requirements under
DNCSNZ 2022, The compliance report includes the potassium test and updated radiological resules for
Riverton bores was completed on 12 September 2023 and complied with the DWOQAR 2022, Water from
the Riverton wells is identified as a secondary supply/backup source and has not been used for the
compliance period. Note that these tests are only completed every 100 years as per the DWOQAR 2022,

The monitoring of bacterial, physico-chemical, determinands from July to June 2024 was compliant.
83 source water moniroring

Figure 2. 53.3 Rule module (Drinking Water Quality Assurance Rules 2022)

All source waters must be monitored for the
determinands and at the frequencies set out in Table
16 and Table 18.

Figore 2. §3.3 Rule soodude (Demieing Wader €maiity Assovne Rovkes 2022)

Tabde 16. 53 Source Water Monitoring Determinands

Determinand Determinands monitored at each abstraction polnt

— Sampling

Group Frequency
Bacterial £ coli and total colanms 2 per Moath
Physico- I lrpn, manganese, colowr, nitrate | BAgnEhiy
chamical Alkalinity, antimany, arsenic, barium, cadmium, calium, r—

chioride, chromivm, copper, lesd, magnesium, mercury,
micked, sodium, sulphate.

Figure 3. DWFCLAR 2022 Tabde 16 [Dhvinding Cluality Arowrance Rules 2022}

Page |7
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Tabde 13. 53 Rasw Water Monitoring Parsmeters

Parameters monitared n raw water from each source or comblned Sampling
sources™ Fraquency
Clags 1 owd dsberim Clags 1
Phyao- Conductivity, pH, Turbidity danthly for 12
chemecal maonkha
Every & months
Ahere is ng
Sl
wariation in the
lnitial 12 months
ol samplis
Chasses 2. Jond 4
Phryazn- Condactivity, pH, Torbidny Continuout®
chamical

22

Figwre 4. DU 'i.l 1B 2022 Tabde 18 (T e ding f_f.-'..."-.‘_. Lermramce Fawler

Eight drinking water schemes (with over 500 population) are required w continuously monitor the
conducrivity, pH and mirbidity of the source raw warer (DWOQAR 2022 Rule 53.3, Table 18), Currenly,
these are not being monitored as SDC does not have the equipment/instruments and meters, A project
{10490} has been placed into the Long-Term Plans ro install the equipment/insrmament and merers for
each of the cight schemes, [t is expecred that this monitoring equipment on each of the raw water sources
will be installed 253/ 26 vear to monitor the raw source water as required in the new rules,

4.21 Drinking water plants - treatment
The Edendale,/Wyndham, Lumsden/ Balfour, Manapour, Mossburn, Ohai, Otautaw, Riverton, Te Anau,
Tuatapere and Winton rreatment plants complied with CHEMICAL requirements from 1 July 2023 1o
30 June 2024, Eastern Bush/Orahu Flar operates under 12 and no chemical sampling is required.
Ohai Treatment Plant (TPODO020) met the bacterial compliance via DWOQAR 2022 Disinfection with
Chlorine and used membrane filtration for irs protozeal compliance and achicved four log eredits,
The following Treatment Plants were compliant with the BACTERIAL requirements through UY
treatment:

o BEdendale/ Wyndham Treatment Plant (TPO3002);

¢ [Lumsden/Balfour Trearment Plane (TPO30013,
Mossburn Treatment Plant (TPO0474);
Crrawia Trearment Plant [TPO04713;
Chautau Treatment Plane (TPOO0S3);
Riverton Treatment Plant (TTO0089);
Te Anau Trearment Plant [TROOOZT);
Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TPO2456); and
o  Winton Treatment Plane (TTO0O);

Ohai Treatment Plant (TPO0090) did not meet the bacterdal compliance under T3.2 and T3.4 on 20-21
Seprember 2023 for not meerng T10 eontace fime for at least 5 minutes.

- & & ®

. &

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet the bacterial compliance under T3.18 on 11
Seprember 2023 for 66 minuees, on 21 February 2024 for 60 minates, on 11 March 2024 for 213 minutes,
and on 22 May 2024 for 31 minutes due to high turbidiey.

Page |8
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Eastern Bush/Ouahu Flat Treatment Plant (TPO475) died not comply with bactenial reatment due w
high warer marbidiry,

The tollowing treatment plants were compliant with the PROTOZOAL requirements:

o Edendale/Wyndham Treatment Plane (TPO3002);
o Te Anau Treament Plant (TPOOOET)

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat Treatment Plant {TPO0475) did not meet compliance due to failure o meer
the bacterial and protozoal requirements. There is no reatment process in Bastern Bush other than
chlorine dosing,

Lumsden/Balfour Treatment Plant (TP03001) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 and
T390 on 28-29 February 2024 and on 1-4 March 2024 due to UVT failure. On 13 March 2024, T3.89 and
T3.90 non-compliance was shown due to the UVT meter was serviced.

Manapourd Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.88 on 11
Seprember 2023, 21 February 2024, 11 March 2024, and 22 May 2024 due to high turbidity.

Muossburn Treatment Plant (TPO0474) did not meet the protozoal compliance under T3.89 and T3,90
on 28-30 Sc:pwmh-rr 2023, 1-4 Apnl 2023, 27 November 2023, and 10-13 December 2023 due to low
VT wvalue.

Ohai Treatment Plant (TPO0020) did nor meer protozoal compliance under T3.74 on 14 July 2023 due
o no integrity test done.

Owautau Treatment Plant (TPO0083) did not meet proteczoal compliance under T3.8% on 18 July 2023
and 6-7 Movember 2023 due o UNT meter failure,

Riverton Treatment Plant (TPOMEY) did not meet protoszoal compliance under 1389 on 26 June 2024,
the non-compliance period was due to the UVT meter was serviced. Non-compliant for 2880 minutes,

Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456) did not meet the 4-log protozoal requirements, 3-log eredits
were achieved through UV weatment, and no Jog eredits were claimed from cantndge filers. Although the
filters are in serviced, no log eredies were achicved beeause the old-swvle cartridge filter housings are not
certified, Mew UV units are planned o be installed in the 25/ 26 year that will meet 4-log protozoa
FOUITEMENTS,

Winton Treatment Plant (TP0O0091) did not meet compliance under T38Y on 6-7 November 2023 and
on 24 January 2024 due o low UVT,
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4.2.2  Distribution systems
There was one micrabial E. Coli limit exceedances oceurred on 3 November 2023 (Refer to Appendix-
A}, ‘This E. Coli exceedance was detected in Eastern Bush distribution zone. SDC notified Taumata
Arowai, Regulatory Team Leader, about the exceedance incident on 15 November 2023, E. Coli re-testing
was done for three consecunive days and indicated no E. Coli and total Coliforms in the Eastern Bush/
Otabhu Flat source, treatment plant, Faster Bush, and Omahu Flat reticulation and reservoir. (Refer to
Appendix ©
On March 22, 2024, Dichloroacetic acid exceedance was reported in Mighteaps and Wairio reticulation.
(Refer to Appendix I, SDC notified Taumata Arowai about the execcedance incident on 25 March 2024
and on the same day Dichloroacetic acid and other haloacetic acid determinands as per rule 133.22 in the
DWOAR 2022 were re-tested. The results were released on 9 April 2024 with no Dichloroaceric acid
exceedances on both Nighteaps and Waino revculation (Refer to Appendix E)
All the distribution systems met the bacterial monitoring, The distribution zones below met compliance
for the residual disinfection:

133 Rules:
¢  [Edendale (EDOMED);

o Wyndham (EDKTWY);
Lumsden (LUMOOILLY;

o Balfour (LUMOODTBA);
o Te Apauw [TEAMZTE); and
®  Tuatapere (TUAOOTLY);
D2 Rules:
»  Eastern Bush (EASMZER;
o Chahu Flat (EASO020,
o Manapour (MANOOGMA); and

Mossburn (MOSO02MCY).

Page | 10
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5 General rules

(1 July to Junc 2024)

COMPLIANCE
[=]
= ] - = w
[ -l L) = Y g L = =
SCHEME g SZ SZ EZ 5.3 Nomes
b= W3 g3 Bd SE9
n Ee £t EL 25
= Q= = 278
=] =0 no = w
[} e v av
2
= o
TE ANAU Z ]
- B ; 5
WINTON Z = B | B
= . : P20 minutes progosaal non-comphance was due o VT meter was being serviced
RIVERTON = {5 Riverton did oot meet distnbution complance as FAC residual was msuffoens ar the
= = g south end of the Rocks Highoay.
- i
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wartkis waaber s pliss

COMPLIANCE
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COMPLIANCE
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OTAHU FLAT - et E? E A new Treeatment Plant s planoed by 25/ M year,
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Wirkin
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6 Source water rules - assurance purposes

(1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024)

MONITORING SAMFLES

-l
o
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Lo eyanohacterin sk
No continuous mw watcr monitoring in
= iy : alaee Radon rest Gncluding toal albha and bera
2 B = = : ion) in Riverton Well 11 etesd
oo | oy = - concentraton} in Riveren Well 1 was complete
RIVERTOMN g | @ = - 2 - g ficdoni ;
= =| i 3 W= z i om 13 March 2013, Radiological and potassium
i = =] o ;
= i test pesults for Rivenon secondary source- bores
< (hack-up supply) were completed on 12
Seprember 2023,
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Yearvkiseg weaber wupples consolkdaed complinnoe s o

MONITORING SAMPLES

)
o
] ] = ) it
t ) 5 N E = S8
SCHEME ~ —5t - - 5= = g =
= = = é 5 = = ] oo 5
i [ o= z e a
g Es || 2EF =3 32 5%
> = O T o > O = 2 < O
A o o o oo e = O
e | 3 .
L ;,:] = § ~ i =3 Low cranobacteria nsk.
LUMSDEMN ":_L_', g :-;: ) % :} E - g % Mo contnuous N witer momitering o place,
SE e L i = -d for 25/ 24
0B o = ﬂ-l £ % Planncd for 25726 vear.
' Pt
EDENDALE/ | & & | - E ::5.__' = |l = f %— q I.\N“T:ﬁ)zﬁfl; r:::t o s i
WYNDHAM = = - oo by i - i ! i g i 1 WLED I LAL1Y MECE,
L - s g = “ e « Planned for 23/ 26 vear.
= ar = é
= = :E = 'g_ .g L cvanolacteria sk,
! = L B . ,.: Lk i o cOnHnUOoUs r watcr monitotng in place,
OTAUTAU = pri g : T |2 2 5 N g in pl
= ¥ E 5 .: g i Planned for 25/ 26 year,
' A
= £} ) g_ s Medium cvanobacrena nitk.
OHAT = it R o = E - - No continuous raw watcr moitoring in place.
= o = 3 o = :
# B = Planned for 25/ 26 vear.
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Yearvkiseg weaber wupples consolkdaed complinnoe s o

MONITORING SAMPLES

)
o
] ] = ) it
t ) 5 N E = S8
SCHEME ~ —5t - - 5= = g =
= e o 3 o3 z e a
§ G | EEF %% 52 5%
= < O Ixo >0 = 2 < O
A o o o oo e = O
=2 J 3
S = § ~ i =3 Low cranobacteria nsk.
TUATAPERE ;: :'?WI E : u % s : - g % Mo continuous N water monitonng in place,
g 5 2| %z E:.' "; S % Planncd for 25/20 year.
ST S R Lt & o r
' Pt
MAMAPOURI o | i = = = Low eyanubacieria misk,
; ' _: : = o -
f _ | ¥
MODSSBURN a ,:.’-_ % -: 51 — Low cyanobactetia risk.
S ' 5
E;ES:I'ERI\ = = y Medivm cranobacteria nisk.
BUSH/ = b ; b % '
= 5 o s
OTAHU FLAT 7
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Wirking veaber spplies oo

MONITORING SAMPLES

SCHEME

SUPPLY ID
BACTERIAL
COMPLIANCE
PHYSICO-
CHEMICAL
COMPLIANCE
CYANOTOXIN
COMPLIANCE
RAW WATER
MONITORING
RADIOLOGICAL
COMPLIANCE

CRAWEA

Mediom cvanobacteria sk,

Caaag

Lesainticr rmades avve wol o dlemponsirate compitngee Dt raifber an andicator tlad the water suppiiers atre wnclertoking aciieities feg. hankfiow prevention progrusare, dinfrbaton sone sospding plol fo easere safe driding

i
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Wariking waaber sigpplies

7 Drinking water treatment rules

(1 July 2023 1o I June 2024y

consoledaied camplinnoe oo

PROTOZOAL COMPLIANCE

b W
=) o
= (NUMBER OF DAYS OF COMPLIANCE) =
o = ) zu
L B =
> = 5 3 =
SCHEME & o W S ] o =
a vl a = =] E = = - E
W e = pr E u_ = —7 :‘-:' E
Lt
2 : 5
og) w—
[ = =
=1 ] fal
TE ANAU 2 &
e w
= = L
S = £
1000 minures non-complianees
@ = = i o November 6-7, 2009 &
; £ 3,-’; s | | . o E - » Jmllli}'-ﬂ-*-. 2024, due o UNT
WINTON = | & = E 363 | 365 | 365 | 365 | 365 | - SR L g 2 | meter filure,
- ‘§ £ e - B
e = ; ;
= = = - ; - i 120 minutes non-compliance on
RIVERTON | = | o | 365|365 - 1365 | 365 365 | 3o | 36 [ ot | Jue 26, 2024, due to UVT
2 | = - ' = | % | merer being serviced,
= = LS
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w PROTOZOAL COMPLIANCE e
U
E (NUMBER OF DAYS OF COMPLIANCE] g
P - =
= = = = o =
u o =] [=] ==
o w 5 = & - o =
[+ % =l = (=] = i i - E
2 = = S i = =
v [ “ 5 o = e ity
v o A < = = =
¥ = o
& - =
2273 munutes non-comydliance
oin Fehrmary 28-29, 2024, dise to
_ VT meter failurs.
= = 3 e e
_ g = z o || o ! E: i - - 5024 mumutes non-complianee
LUMSDEN | £ | & Tl 365 %5 | - [365 | 365 38 | 38 = | 2| S [ on Maxch 14,2024, due 0 UVE
= E = E fuilure
: - 65 minutes non-compliance on
March 13, 2024, due 1w UVT
heing serviced.
s = =
EDENDALE/ | = 4] 8 £ G llae ]| | e | | I [ =
WYNDHAM | & | = ’E' 7 365 | 365 365 | 365 365 | 365 = 2 5
10 minutes non-compliance an
= ! = luly 18, 2023, due o UV meter
= i B o i ] I < failure.
OTAUTAU 2 [BE B B |i3ss | 365 | 3650 3620 362 = ~ B 1
& i i E & £ il 'f. 1016 minutes non-complitnce
& i & 0 o] on November 6-7, 2023, due 10
UNT meter failore,
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Yearvkiseg weaber wupples consolkdaed complinnoe s o

PROTOZOAL COMPLIANCE
(NUMBER OF DAYS OF COMPLIANCE)

C.FILTER
CHEMICAL COMPLIANCE
CYANOTOXIN
COMPLIANCE

-
=)
=
=
o o 3
=
o
& v
[ =¥
=2 =
= [
B
[~
@

SENSOR
M. FILTER
SEDIMENTATION

Protosoal Complisnce

AT 2 minures non-compliance on

July 14, 2025, due o o integrity

test was performed. PLC
K N programming o ed b ensine
g |2 5 - B é _ | 1T restis always done.
OHAI 2 e 13 |38 - - - el - - |Esa| = B = o
- R % - ERE
v e i 2 Bacterial Compliance

2433 punutes non-compliance
nn Seprember 20-21, 2023, did
nof meet the coniact tme,
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PROTOZOAL COMPLIANCE

Wankin

supplies consalidate

d compliance repart

w w
g (NUMBER OF DAYS OF COMPLIANCE) %
o a % =fv,
= = = = o =
o =] =] [=] =
a ) & « 5 & = =
S = = 2 B E o z=
] = r = s & S
E — e} = “EJ = t'l w
S “ S
o = un old filter housing, and
— — o = = g ;._._ anufacturer is no longer
TUATAPERE i E‘__- g- ;‘E 365 operating)

) E f: The plant requires treatment
to d log credits, The plant
does mee edits wi
TV treatment., Tha
remedy this is 1o ins C
credit UV unit. Planned for
6 mins non-compliance on
Scptember 2, 2023, due m high
turbidicy.

= E E _ _ il minures non-complianee on
f ) = i ;",. = = = _ February 21, 2024, due o high
MAMAPOURI | » : E ] : 361 = E. = - rurhidiry.
p — 2 % = &= E “ A :
= o g = 31 minutes non-compliance an
g o= May 22, 2024, due o contact
construction as part of the WI'P
upgrade.
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PROTOZOAL COMFPLIANCE

- Lk
|- [¥]
E (NUMBER OF DAYS OF COMPLIANCE) g
= = Lad
[a] i i é o
— = = =
= o
] = o o [
o u E «© &= b= o o =
[ AT = < = &
- = i 2 8 ik = < =
= v w. g & =
¥ = o
& s g
* iz = =
[ =0t 3 &
= £ P 0 b s o] (s -
MOSSBURN | % | © = | E lsesfsslees| - | - | - | - [se e ‘E =
: |2 NE 3 B
= et = 2
EASTERN 2
e = 2 i = o =
BUSH/ 7 g ol = = o4 Ej = crng leaving the oeanment
OTAHU FLAT | = : = '
Eastern Bush Treatimem
Plant was 0% compliant with
protozoal regquirement for FY
23-24
-,
. g : sl
ORAWTA § | ) i i
]

7.2 Attachment A Page 90



Council 23 October 2024

Darimkirig water supples consolsdated compliance report

7.1 Summary of bacterial and protozoal assessment
(1 July 2023 ror 30 June 2024)
The following Trearment Plants were compliant with the bacrenal requirements through UV treatment:

¢ Edendale/Wyndham Treatment Plant (TPO3002);

& Lumsden/Balfour Treaument Plant (TPO3001Y,

¢ Maosshum Trearment Plant (TPOD474);

¢ Orawia Treatment Plant (TPO0471};

¢ Orauran Trearment Plant [TPOO0S3);

o Riverton Treatment Plant (TPOOCGES);

o Te Anau Treamment Plant (TPOO0ST);

e  Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TPO2456); and

«  Winton Treatment Plant (TP ;
Ohai Treatment Plant (TPOO090) did nor meet the bacterial compliance under T3.2 and T34 on 20-21
Seprember 2023 for not meerng 110 contact time for at least 5 minutes.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TPO0473) did not meet the bacterial compliance under T35 on 11
Seprember 2023 for 66 minuecs, on 21 Febroary 2024 for 60 minutes, on 11 March 2024 for 213 minutes,
and on 22 May 2024 {or 31 minutes due o high tuebidice, A new plant is currently being constructed,
planned ro be operating on October 2024,

Eastern Bush/Ohahu Flar Treatment Plant (TPM475) didd not comply with bactenal reatment due o
high warer rurbidiny,

The following treatment plants were compliant with the PROTOZOAL requirements:

¢  FEdendale/Wyndham Trearment Plant (TPO3002);
o Te Apau Treatment Plant {TPODOET)
Eastern Bush/Otahu Flar Treatment Plane (TP00473) did nor meer compliance due o failure ro meer

the bacterial and protozoal requirements, There is no treatment process in Bastern Bush other than
chlorine dosing,

Lumsden/Balfour Trearment Plant (TPO3001) did nor meer protozoal compliance under 175,89 and
T3.90 on 28-29 February 2024 and on 1-4 March 2024 due o UVT failure, On 13 March 2024, T3.89 and
T3.90 non-compliance was shown due to the UVT meter was serviced.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TPO0473) did not meet proweoal compliance under T388 on 11
Seprember 2023, 21 February 2024, 11 March 2024, and 22 May 2024 due 1o high rurbidiry,

Mossburn Treatment Plant (TPO0474) did not meet the protozoal complianee under T38Y and T390
on 28-30 Seprember 2023, 1-4 April 2023, 27 November 2023, and 10415 December 2023 due to low
UNVT value,

Ohai Treatment Plant {TPOO00) did not meet protozoal compliance under T374 on 14 July 2023 due
o no integrity est done.

Otautau Treatment Plant (TPO0083) did not meer protozoal compliance under T3.8% on 18 July 2023
and 6-7 November 2023 due to UVT failure.
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Dwinkinig water supples consolsdated compliance report

Riverton Treatment Plant (TPOM8Y) did not meet protesoal compliance under T3.8Y on 20 June 2024,
the non-compliance period was due to the UVT merer was serviced, Non-compliant for 2880 minures,

Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456) did not meet the 4-log protozoal requirements, 3-log credits
were achieved through UV rrearment, and no log eredits were claimed from eartmdge filiers. Although the
filvers are in serviced, no log credits were achieved becawse the old-swvle cartridge filter housings are not
cermificd. Mew UV units are planned 1o be insralled in the 25/ 26 year thar will mecr 4-log protozoa
TOQUITEmMEnts.

Winton Trearment Plant (TPO0091) did nor mecr compliance under T3R9 on 6-7 November 2023 and
on 24 Janwary 2024 due o low UV,
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consoledaied complisnoe re o

wartkis waaber s pliss

8 Distribution monitoring and compliance

(1 July 2023 to 30 Junc 2023)

MONITORING COMPLIANCE
= =
= =< =
~ - i 2 = -3 i
> 28 w=E @ © 29 e >
SCHEME [ =F =2 = 9 SB AR o
[~ & - o o W w o
@ SE £8 G z @ % &2 2
=8 TE prs o zZa > & E
& & L & = | o=
= ¥ (=] (=] =
= a
: = = 8 g & ;E_
TE ANAU = o = = = =
= B = e g
2 A
WINTON = = 2 2 z
Z B g E
=
= Riverton retculaton — Rocks did not have sufficient FAC
= E residual dizinfecoon in the distnbunon syseem on
RIVERTON = E E g 2, ﬁ occasions duc to chlonne demand caused by dissalve
= = = = § organics i the water,
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MONITORING COMPLIANCE
= =
[=] =< 2
= L F =
- 28 L¥ 0 i5 -9 ce =
SCHEME [ QF z2 uwug & TE = 2
g =% 3 88 2 3% 8% 8§
= = M (] o5 = ok Eu ']
o £8 32 of | 4 gs s 8
=8 *g =& g Fg =g 1
= Y
== B -
LUMSDEN s g = 2] 2 &
= = (= = =
E ; ::'. % .-:E..'
EDENDALE/ = ¥ % 0 = =8 =
WYNDHAM g g = £ = g g =
2 E < : :
OTAUTAU g " 2 g z ‘g'
= = = = z
5 E
T =
z 3 : I E £ Othai, Mighteaps, and Wairio did nor have sufficient FAC
£ & & (] - = ﬁ residual disinfection i the distriburion system on
OHAT = £ £ o = = - it g = i
= = = - = &= E B G E ogcasions due to chlonne demand cavsed by dissolve
E E % .g-: g 2 ofganics in the water,
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CHERIA AR R

COMPLIANCE

MONITORING
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1a0dd-A3

NOILI34NISIO
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4 rermiplinsoe re e

Wirkin

COMPLIANCE

MONITORING

WiIN i
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13004d-A3 VIN
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8.1  Summary of E. coli and total coliforms sampling results (Distribution zones)
(1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024)

Distribution
zone name

DWO code

Number of Samples
DWQAR 2022

{1 sample per week)

Number of actual
samples collected

Maximum interval 9
days between
samples

Cwinikineg water supplies consolidated compliance repaost

Minimum number of
5 days of the week
used

Number of
transgressions

Compliance

D3 Distribution Zones

Eddendle EDEO ED | 55 7 5 0

Wyndham EDEMITWY 1 35 7 1]
5

Lumsden LUMOGOILL 1 53 - ] 0
3

Lumsden,/ Balfour LUMOOTEA 1 53 7 5 0

Ohai OHANOH 1 55 7 . 0

Nightcaps OHANINI 1 55 7 . 0

Wairio OHAMNOWA 1 55 7 s 0

7
Chraurtan OTANTOT 1 52 5 ]
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Distribution
TOoNne name

Mumber of Samples
DWOAR 2022
{1 sample per week)

wartkis waaber s pliss

Minimum number of

Maximum interval 9

ansalkdated complianoe repan

Compliance

Riverton RIVIHITRI

Te Anau TEMNZTE

Tuarpere TUADTTL
Winron WIS W
D2 Distribution Zones

Distribution
ZONE Name

DWO code

Eastern Bush BEASMZER

Creab Flag EASZOF
AANODGMA

.\i:nu.Tn ward

MOSDMOY

Mosshurn

MNumber of I Number of
. B e days between 5 days of the week - i 2
samples collected transgressions
samples used
51 7 5 I}
34 7 5 i

¥
-
ot

1
-

Number of
M f Maxi 12d
WERDEFOF Sampias Samples collected ”n_wm e Compliance period Number of
DWQAR 2022 duration between Compliance
(Quarterly {1 Month) transgressions
(Monthly) samples
samples]

12 12 | ! Compliar
12 12 1 0
12 iz 0 Compliant
12 12 | 0 {Zampliant
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wiriking veater supples consaldated campliance repan

Very Small Community Sampling Frequency DWOAR 2022 Compliance
Distribution Zone

{Every 6 Months)

Crwaria DRAMZOR 1 I Complian:
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Appendix A: Eas

NF eurofins | ARENCEREELE  Page e

Food & Water Testing

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

ush E. Coli Exceedance in November 202

% eurofins

Food & Watar Testing

ARID T AT Paga Tl

ANALYTICAL REPORT | waT Y S CC AT ]
‘.HJ m_‘hmﬂmﬂ“m‘lm“‘l
RE O COOE AR ME R M | A FEECNT DATE LLLRR - [ AU B 0 e S Ce—
e = Ay - T e
L = T —re— - ! -
e sy W17 rany aenweat 1
TE L niiee B [ P —— L N e
R i Ciarn Ut v Lamgte sa. M Vastar
N ELALND Raaem iy Fusedl nindi. o Pl W Saomie Moy P g Sonan fWAT
sy [ - T Roupiiss wmgsias. 17T
|l L ey emprywiny. Besey Doate i Vimsy 24 117007 06 W Aol Dohong Dura ]
o ————— [T WA 00, oot Db O T 29 11200 5881 L ——
f— B rmpibeng Sy My fle it B g Py v ey
R b Wpfanncs MR, b IETE Purihacs Cubis s AURTT iammas s
(S coca ] ] ‘._-I—l-_q-rﬂq_——l-l—u--l_q_-uun_q—lq—
Chaen Raferasca. u—-"h- Wsraag e 0 -
T T - - i St = ¢ Tl B
T T Mg P M S 0 e - 1 -
Pt it A Vi -‘w L] Flaiapios s pm dan L
g v e Dot b T 00T W a0 dcalyaeg [rbeny Dipis L | I
Beted Dute & Tomw D810 T a2 Ve iy o b e Bgerwes N Warampn 19
e Vhurmmy O Gt L S— n et drncrides b 1. Drir g rwias
[ - [ SICTCATON ] Rt Pt il 00, Ty g g, P s m*——!—
e o e T = —— Musmpiios Duma & Tims: ST B4 Reimpiien mmpsaras: 77T
i ot . [— i b, Bt St i T TR0 [ ——" DAL
R - — W+ T ¢ Dt aated Dok Tos  COTLTRD GRAD Taparabars wham samgied 131
e Mhorag D Canar Bamsiaro it My
T —— ) s T ]
Chuet Rafarssms 4 - B Fe EUET l——“lmlﬂ-mmﬂ*mu““‘n
T = L il Bt 41— e ¢ S na—
Bagting, P o | 10 TRT Nty P s Al Ty Pl TP T - _,‘.__ i e
P i Dt L T ey v B s g L
Aiaatyies B Dol I Fimm 0070 W gy Loy Cabs ]
Rt Cs & Toms oNTUEGE gy Wi m——— 0 T [ cons L ] 1
[e— [re—r——— Sy — ra [T Tr— T - Maragear, Mt s
[ TS ] LR et Tl G dta 4. Cikineg Tl
=] S —— [T~ [ —— W o M L
“pami W s M 1 Lo kg p Do i fad s okt T84 Wt G By Mgt Dt & Tiew.  ONTLO001 WES [ e
[T — by sy i B A o R Ca— et Btan Date  Tisms 50 113057 0 agiynin [relieg Sate R LD
] - R 1 Pt ¢ e — B gt & T 0 TR0 G0 Tommr phomy i g
S S Z s Loy Fuipsss Slormary
el Hafagaa I T ¥ et N il *“m“l'“m’
_———-Ia:—- - i | aeiiar A il
I —— X N B e Mt Rt WTHAE AT a ... P d
i St & Toms  SVEED R Paapdan ey L -} T " - L * T e
aaatywen, St Dotk B Tiorm 11013 (4 [Ty —"y—" Ty
B e & Tima 55100000 07 81 Vo whes wg—ed &
e — st g i
[ o [ SPLCF ICATIONE 1
T ey e A o Rt i e L, o s e st 707 W Gt Fapy
et EE R Bl 4 P P i i 4 1 b
80 Contrani o Lk e e l T ] M :'::u_
[y— et —— i pomgeme
Crris M4 S SLALLRD [T O ey ﬂ_’ﬂﬂ::
FrET iy
Fage | 33
72  AttachmentA

Page 100



Council 23 October 2024

[hirking weater supplies comoleated comphanoe ppon
) oy
«% eurofins e e | & eurofins | ARSI e ket
Food & Wator Testing Food & Water Testing
] | TG Loa i I
[ — T Nt Bt Demaom “pwmy Bomrmatien [P0 of Bt Db e fabauis sk st Copliews. 11 510t Count ey
R Sman ) dacha ah S PR B o T [ R — —
g g Pt sl 1| 00 Nl sacmn Biing Fasl mme e ot e RS [y E— = s ] ot 0 i o ¢ et o
et Duma & Timar 0OV NS L T
Aty n, et Buama & Thise 5, 45 2620 28 Bty g Fista e 1
Tl Aie & e ATV S Wi attars b namghad 0
e ] My T Wiy s prioma s vy __ Satant P, . st
L - Lo | kg, s’ | ¥ [ —— L =
“oamn Hﬂdﬂmnm_ﬁumw g fits & Tome.  O00UEUT BED s i e
it " [£. - e Y
Tein i uu .....-_... i P — Mamgiad Ciste & Tiwa  CutL001 23 T —— 4
i gy O o Fuijie s |
3|1 ApMATE Lo 1
Tl Rptgrania u- =) AT L
[TV pPE—— S, S [o— v - - [ R S
e LEs FEE L0 T g P s g B Frna— P W Toda Lty
TG J—— i - fr— Tyl o e Uii—
e N [ I —— re
Anatynsy s Coams I Tiorss: 3 11600 O Ayt oo D -t W T e
s D & Flew P ga y e ) o — ] = -y e o M Cen—
s . ] WAL Total S
[ -] AFF ] C— i) - o S ¢ — —
TR f— Jr—— L ]
L oy ¥ 1:-.:::“--. . e — o e - =t - i ot g ¢ et e
i | ' S 1 4 T e S Y Tl el
s - s el B ATyl ¢ e Dt
I;..-.E l“; P o My
LTt Moberar @ - [T ; [ a _—— e - o T g ¢ T— La—
il il LB i (108 By WIS WAL T s
g gy P iy 00 LAMITER [ [FESSY By ¥ S e - a 1 B et e
Bsapie Gats  Tems,  OWND 008 g g i nx
By i, Wi Doama & Thoms, 5 1% 500 0 s Loy Dt TR
g P, um:: 2 Tl a4 %'I;H—H—*H.T-—_-Ihﬂﬂ;r“:l-vl—:_h‘-_-
L . . Byt Femree Methirey p——
[ SR TE o9 AL AT 1 Fiomig 4 e s : = ttn s
=TT _I“‘_h.‘“--ﬂ_ﬂﬂ-—'_h ]
B [ et AR 5 S S A
T e _— o i Ll Y REET g i — i g § a7 B — AT e d— 0 e §o— T —
- (g | e P ST e Clrm———" AFSS oy o 75§ md
N G APV b i 1L R L W P Gl 10 B
Thash Aateraman U ey AP e O T T e e e i 5 =
_'___' 5 . ] e Lot L g AR e o Vet m— | o— e 5T
—ai e o TS e e A U i G Gt T T AT IE AT
———LTY L L e
Raamynin, Wit Doame & oo 5070 08 W . e
Samrrpiedd Dums & Timwm Ll
R
L
- T T R ———— —_—
Lo i L | pomat T B | ]
A1 [t Do &1 Dt e 4 T
i "1
i ek Pl Pl PR =:ﬂ-l-l
W T S T R BAT

Page | 14

72 Attachment A Page 101



Council 23 October 2024

[hirking weater supplies comoleated comphanoe ppon

¥ eurofins i

Food & Water Testing

el B ey St 80P T Baliing  Sumt o S

[
EAF_ LA W1E
L T Wk e e L
L DT T T G p——— ] i & ol
Woa L g e mermitian Dt LG
Wl i it i i s e 4 i T AT
o e i i e g e n e e b
ot v 2 et b B o e . it ::'_H‘-"":"“_‘:-'-
[ TP S—— g wp—— - -
T T T e —
Wi P

Wi et b | vien e L
st e kvt o L LK e 0 i il g

—y— - e
IS ™~ e B e S e e
S et b Lo e et e By o sy et o | e o w e o i —
e

o - [ b s WS AL
- o - L ]
e b

Hamiton Sy ey ki gty # ot o i e b 4 ey S — i

P

- - e (R

Loy 8 3 5 Y e 1 R s e 1 R b O e
el Srmdy ey way o e
T b e 4 g o e i Lol ol

e e, —— el e iy e o4 P
B

P L o e L T e
et Bl ] -

i et 0 vl i o o el e s i ke Fa 1w B o ke s ey el o
e s g B W ian & i e ) o B S s g sfi e s

= o oty e S BT PR SRR T PR S TR
N sy - - —
L b e - e -]
e w P L i b g . bl
Cmen g P el ek s b b
A g e
A OF R

Page | 1%

72 Attachment A Page 102



Council

23 October 2024

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

Appendix B: Follow-up E. colisamples

<& eurofins |

| Food & Water Testing

ANALYTICAL REPORT

ELE-E b Loy S Pags 1ol 3

L -

« eurofins |

Food & Water Testing
_ mEmaTs Lo

EFECHCATONE

[WP] of Totsl et Dmcraiclin ¢odl using Cobderl-1E 31-Wall Dcarth-Tewy
REPORT CO0E AR-FR-RT REPDRT DATE Lophlee s i i T I Aol o) 00w o Wetore Dt
b e - ] i
Masntes  Downed e Desana L fed
izl R T -
150 Looe! Swom Fecagtion Gate & Tms:  DWHIGETY W33 Frespben epersiors: 3T
Aabyvn Baan Oate & Tors: VY 453 Arstyus Endieg Deta: arvEn
Eargpied Dats & Tima R EW Barspsiral Ll
Tarwheg ['asons Fedlow-lp
Orvier pede: WL TR [WPS] of Toisl i pl_‘ﬂ._lrl.lﬂ-_“‘bp'
L Y T ] R Foir srictes X (%Y A El o) D e ¢ ol (el
I o n sl ]
ﬂ-ﬂ-hlh A UPRE) 1EEY Bl a8 Voie b BT
Anstyain Blark Gate & Tise: 061500 1620 Anatysia Cading Bate:  O7V2ES SO MrOARATn.
Bamgled Date & Tims.  DA1G0E 1020 Sampherish o Sea P M Aimes Vs [V s Fomemrd et P i Pt Bedane o b T
Pt ot armeed o WA dry o sty B e Ty E b e i s
| r— ) nEBLATS ) | BPTCECATONS | LIST OF METHODS
EMUNY Eresmaratan (M) of Toisl Coicmms ool amrng C ool K 31 Vel Coare-Trany
prigma ik - [ ' Wl ol S5 DU Maerl Chiiales b mww_ﬁ“mlmmmwﬂmﬁ
Tl Gt - 0 ] Fomin |
trram e
| BAMPLE COGE AT B
" Recaption Dete & Time.  SEA50E 1823 Faiopiod emparatas Fh:]
Analyels Bary Date & Tiee 00770000 1500 Bsalyuin Ladig Date! AR
Bumpled Dute & Tima ORS00 1092 [ o
MHH' Fuomrd By )
RESUATS LBG BRECICATIONE | Temn iy b o St
‘nuu mmdmb—unmu—-mnmﬁ-—-:w 2 Loty 7.7
Fmcturibi | 0 ¥ Loty of 400N i+ Wl Chnduleg RPLARASLSEF WOTE
Tand Codfars f' [ ] " £ Tow i rw et i, S g
S 7o m wanrmier: e Bl gy e w st e e
BT o e Eavlon i L3
| samrEcone BTN ottt s o el s K e Lt -G e o ko LK ' o
Aeagion Duts & Tass:  OLORDE 1830 Bacapiics lereparabes (351 =3 watcla Eumpfing S scommitd A e
Anshyeis st Dans & Tiawa S 0003 1900 Aaidpuin | aliey Dubs Lol “-bwhh““-dw T ST TR ik Fa R Wl O
Barrgled Baie & Tinw olTIREE 118 Sasmperiai o & Tawad e narglirg pove By B ¥ i b s nnd
By Fujusa ooy F rawme m i wavging for Sy Corelo sl B acoecies.
. — T — 1 il
i ey am P e Dew m v s Pavha poup e w BLF st
s ] T 2l el st - P gl i L i T o, I
Tl Gt L [ ] ¥
| saMPLE COCE LT
Rsceprion Cus & Thms: 871508 1900 Mms il e Al (Th-1
Amabyuia Stard Data & Thwa: 26 140 Amstysin Eacing Dals: orHRES
Aarvgad Ciata & T RTRE A Bmimpier|a} (e
Bamgdng Pupoes oy
Eirndir KLY Liniies) Larnfrm BLS Lindas Fhocs [Chrtsicharchy o4 3 305577 . Eurohra EL¥ Lrnimt Eurifon ELS Lt Pheate |Chewkcbrarh] +£4 3 361 85220
A Dt B [reTe— L e . 43 Bt Eitem -mhtm:l P [Ieversarg @] 0 3 350 0340
Hussmltr gl 8810 e = Fabasie w4 WD [ N———
CrmkiPenh, TE34 MEW ZLALBND E_-'m 1 a%laE Chrisaieron PR wEW
N TEALANE) R i
. i
Fage | 30
7.2 Attachment A Page 103



Council

23 October 2024

- -
o eurofins ARIINC-EI00901  Page3of3
Food & Water Testing
T Do B oe i B s Fa L st I et W sl AT T AT B ST BT W ey Sy P el e Sl
r_—--—.——1"-—-"————-h—-—-—-h—h-—-ﬂ----ﬂ-d—n—_—
iy T Pl i el i I el Ty o Tl el at

|qu-—ru-w1--—m-n-u
Tom i aer sheritued by & Rapfiof it Bar fenc e § o 2 S

e

= o - ] 41 Tl Cirven. Mabwir, Crasieruss, S0 TP A7)
v b i by W S e i W iy ol P . Y B, e S R

et

Bl Sy i td o im0 o P v 14 erd ey e P — -

Barpire il 1 b i 0 W e o iy 1 hsmeine s Pt s e P e . e o Dy et o
e by Bt e T i
i--t-lnrm-w Sy ! o mmptys orplig i . Wl AP TR S SR AU e B A

Fow Caribrm et PR B el L

o i . v ey - . et oy P o o et b

e

T Lo s s T e S ik s jromilbiel naby ol et e U g e g el A1 wil b

- Luroten mat o e B b

Ticn e i vl 1 P i o ok Bty mmi v e ol o, B e vy o W ] o

o s . e B by g e B ey ey gt ey b -
e P gy b ey e oty 1 e, o

g b e gt L

Bearated W Pt 71 by T ey A e T PTOSTON, e T COPP

i bt v Gt s S b G eI, L L o i aid shirg Wy Lo il el

i 8 ikl s bm v e By e ey e smem
gy gy g e ke e o gy ey m g s bk el ey e ssarnd by B Do
Fopien D Terry wed Comiiurs moh

sl OF B POHT

[Exrtalioni ELS Limiledd Earuilien ELS Limbed
&N Costrpit Divws L] Eu Sirest
Fofieion gl BA 10
Chealdhue TE1E HEW PR AND
MW FEALAMD

Chirikineg veater supplies consoledaed complinnoe repan

Fage | 37

7.2 Attachment A

Page 104



Council 23 October 2024
Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan
Appendix C: Three Day re-tests
N -
q:. Eu rnﬁ ns AR-TI-HCQMITERL Pags 1ol } .;:'. Eu rﬂﬁ ns A 23-RC-IRIT-0 Page I ot 3
Food & Watar Testing Food B Watar TuBIInE
ANALYTICAL REPORT L SeaTe Aog Lo ]
— — “ra [ i Tosmad i gy Cosiiner R 89 Wl O seeti- Trny
REPOAT COOE AR-23-NC-E30ITE01 REFOAT DATE GETARArY B - - 1 S O PN e Gt
Tan Comnms - ] - '
s et M feamara Linied
Mharwuk Wk EAMMLL COOL I3 BRI
N, S [_iuuaﬂm- ﬁ...n. ]
BEE gl Mptaprien Dane & Toes  OFAAUTOTY thdd Bacaqiios e s ArE
HEW IEALAND Anatyain Suen Dete & Tise 07 1VT0I) 1hal v by Drelieng Dbt bl )
P Bawrprbein| (] l--lb--lh E O 1ead
Eani i Yot e 1 10 I EFRLATH Lon [ 1
Cgamnst mgary s Tk emar (oo L
gt ond e sruary 0T Bamgang — T T e Tt L ﬂ“mﬂhﬂuh
Suteminiicd Redsr s Eantarn Bua® Samgess M1L31 Furprans Dded Muirgsn: FRLATT Fmabrrfed e o A AR e ———
B i y
[(SmemEcooe [EE el N—— e :
Sampie desciihad a1 B
Maunphon Oute & Tites, (5115077 19,48 [RET—————— | SERCHT T ORMATION
Arstynin Sbmrt Dutw & i 387112027 15045 Araryuin Crsing Cuts L Tt s e Ak [rr——— TRy . NPV T -
Samgiary) flon Bt s & Tina B Ll A Sy a ) ) A R e S e B e Sy 2 E L
-
| AERATE o aswow | Prmk g v ey [+ e oy ey e b el WAL a bt v
NS mmdh—mum T g ST Y R TRy
Rasrwmaraa sz WO - ) T e [T .
ot Tab b w BRI 00 = 0 T b R ietin g D C iy ] (Wi [RT] S8 30
PR e 9 Gl 0. DR G0 AT D4
[samme coos RITIOIIAa T L
[Fm———————— e
Rpception Dute & Tema:  G71112073 148 Brcipinn temgeryery: 41T
Airpin AR Oits i Tia 0071 LUZY 14085 Anafri Ledng Dsw LR ]
Sampleri e Bampins Duir L Tims O X
1 LT [ |
T PR o Tabai mmm“mull-nm
e - [ ——— o -lwﬂ-qnn:"-r g aumiemn ot iy Mol of i
= mr— T
o Canben D P
ENFLARATONY MITE
B feed m ot ety M s S g
Lm‘m%‘ T n:——-—--n-:.-n.—..-uu—— kil ol Rl o bl 1w o i
- ¥ anmr B U A m e bt e | g g g — Creratomion LOG .
B ayiion [l L T OEISRTS 154 L e = LS R = [ T, [ PR LR e |t of £ e o e pd LR 1 S
Asutyns Sunrt Dute 4 Thema: 0702 1443 Aranrsis Cnsing Cete. pateDy 1o ot i b e e e — e
[r—— Flat Barrapant it & T SRS WY e teamulelieioripl i i s i
N [R——
I AEEAT T m ] -I_I:m:::ﬂ-hl::wlrn—-r
T l—u—-“dumumuu—.m-n-ﬁu“h [
e e - iy o 0 DA e M et ——ﬂnm“ﬂiu—-
tomm Tudrbr=s - O - i C ey
[ stoems cooe NT I
Bamp s GRS B (A ——
Meeapion Dete & Tems:  OFTVLSIET 14048 Bgreviun moperabay i
draryeem Wew Con & Tess O01ongs dnad ARk bR Lt E At 1]
Samplarit Ll Samysed Dote & Tiss BIETERS 1620
(-] Bl 18 1 Phasne (Chwinictamchy o § 049 4377 Frwiirm ELE Lvainsd Enmpiivm ELS Lmimd
i Dtrest. Grves 42 Eni Strwad Prons freercengill - ~54 3 718 8087 Ny A7 Dt v VG e St
B daior Ll WL et LA £ Faatlersion e g 1
——. 1] NEW ZEALANG T Chvmlcfrch ML A P AL AR
N FEALRMD) J.k‘ J il
.
Fage | 38
7.2 Attachment A Page 105



Council

23 October 2024

oy +
<5 eurofins ARZINCOOTTRGY  Fage el
Food & Watar Testing

L - i B -l 8 B et e i b o a4 S
o = u e s = m—— i R e, P ey —
) B s e i D e

o Wi e Y L
1 BRI Ty i et R TR S ShEs

K o Sy 0 oy e el pereion.

s e — B o 2 T
Tt ey e 2 S - b e s Ao 2 et i e o B . Y do amay m——— s
s e o

P M Ry T T S 8 S B R - — - v e
B P s o8 T B
el oy B ety o o s ey 4 o g B

B i B oy

e
TP 1 R RSP R R R e oy i T L P e 1
P retird s et s s Sl B T il . ST T B e 1 . i e P a4 P
[P ——" S — ——— P et e by ey % P T
Q-

s e 1 ey g
--p---u-t—u—nnq-—uﬁ—-—n l—htﬁ-———ﬁqu—-tm-n—--—hl-m
B A s WS e 5 o Rl o T D e b e o
e.-—.-u——u‘-q S o e 5 B ] T Wk i ! By S R e e ol e el b

ERp——— P S PRy Y A ——
Wu—-—w—-o-u-nb---
[ i ————— r— (S —

s e b et e S 1F Sk e e B e ——
=Pl o i e i b g ket s e i s e o ey

g v - i
i T s gl b
G o EpRoaT

Lursling {23 Liswiie Cutoieon (25 Lomvimet Fhase (Ehrtnkidusteh) 04 1 200 220

3 D Orven. 14T Ex Saest Phans (rresmangll  wna 3 7 14 4063 E, "
e v $0 e e LG nE ot

CrewEneT T NEW FEALAD e 1AME

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

Fage | 39

7.2 Attachment A

Page 106



Council 23 October 2024

Chirikineg veater supplies consoledaed complinnoe repan

Appendix D: Nightcaps and Wairio Reticulation Dichloroacetic Acid Exceedance in March 2024

5% eUrofins  ou of specication Nottication

Report Code NC-24-8C-000712401 Vchmen TFTME

ABenbion D Yoo

T e s o o Bnep
vy et S maieg TRSlnon ST o

Thider L8] P Iz i Wiy s Mttt oty &
8.4

Dl bryar.] g
m ii Eﬂm E Chaimt Baigele Conts & e P aning=s

Pasmbusit Ty Ciriabing Vs el Dot B T DAOA0074 04 B0
a1 el ]
Rarrpliog P Morinesy et By Foaiobins T i

Bt runavay; BWTTW FHadascetx Acid | inlerra Mefod mees on LSERL
[T e T
b Datals

e e =

Rigaply e CRALTEA
L it Clos i, Tirmas BRS04 5300
whes 148 Bt} By D it
e
Rurrpiing Purseie bovreeng Sammpien] By Earvlons Fane
Toaimames:  FOWUTH Nloacetn: Ack] | InnTma Weod basd on UGEF.
e gnaremend Hesalic
Ao Fuarsb
[ T T Fut Wi 55 g Db Wgimd Bialied ' b Tidned
[T

Bery sl o St
s =l

ﬂhq—tn"--ﬂm-lu.lhmr-_n.‘uﬂr&l_l‘ e = i b 7o
s g, e = o I Berae TE T
T P L

Frndoms FLE Y e L i
A3 Dot Drv Aipbieiins. Chritlenues, 1T M0
TG S0 B W T | BT aead T A Y | e ORR  P

Face | 41

7.2 Attachment A Page 107



Council

23 October 2024

Appendix E: Haloacetic Acid re-test in Nightcaps and Wairio Reticulation

[.'lll'lhI'V._: wraker suppliey contoleiated comnplance mepar

LI i
« curofins macoesan  Gaprwl | W eurofins SRMNCONSEY  FapIerd
Food & Watnr Tewting Food & Walnr Testing
ANALYTICAL REPORT [ L3 B —
REPCONT CO0E AR Tl AT AEPONT DATE AT = CA— = in B EER e
B _— o =
s COWTS e Dnang Lrvies s ot e Sy P R —
Cavin iaze [e———— = el N
b . R - in g 18 A g v e d—
10 v Tt 0 m
N TR ANG) T By - [y W g+ Vo Gl
P v e e g —— —— i l oy [ P T e———
%ﬂ-ﬂ_—--- ri— L] - = g Vi
‘Comtagt iy Fow s ey T o FLRITHET T A TNEE ] e A g < Vit Ll
S et TPl BT Tewieg T — 5.1 Py g - e G
Imm BT XA A | FEFOET BFCARLLT
P EuE 3 e S
B R v B M e e e T e o e T e T
Tergning P sl AP FE A R R DAY —
Benghicn St L Tese  SHERTEG 128D R PO T e o ——— L | - W o A
Ly e e OIS W [T T CROE R = : == = =
T ] B Siete & Tl SMEREGe 83 LT G MO0
[ EEWAT] ARCENTLNTY 0% B L et A S e e e W b Ao e, Wt
P TE——— T~
P e miel e - _ﬂ:_‘lwllh—ul-wl—uﬂ
T gy el §f
TS - - - l ——
o S = i - Libch
e - ARER =g [
A — . FEL ] am g - P G
e —_— - cam
LI . FET-E e W e ¢ e D
ALY T T B o g v o e
[ o - - f— S g P s — s
[A—— = -l somm Wy ¢ e T R AR
e — — - - g ¢ e [ I r—— P —
e - g a [ I T Y A S pa——— W ol T i W T
[P 3 ik sy g it | e 8 el e
s e by . s Bt gl -M::'.ﬂtn-bu-.-uu-l-..'ﬁ-n——-
[ E P
L Tt Sy — S
i By P el A
e i L ¥ St - tts it
T ol :*th—h—lb“ﬂi—ﬁ
# P —
llll-lll:n_ul- _.H_P'lw"}u Smnoiyg Pord urw ﬁhmm it b et ity g Wi B iy
LETRE P SREWED T BANVER LN D U Tus
Tt e Do § TVne avErEce

[ BEHATH AES AT i (o

e o s ma . [TL] o
T . e i
ER———— .- o —
::ﬂ;-_ ) i ) 1l LT m‘;:—ﬂ ] =l ) Bl
Pl ey
:.m\mnu :mhu
Page | 41
7.2 Attachment A Page 108



Council

23 October 2024

< eurofins |
Food & Waler Testing

RSNSOI  Sae e

Tt - B R R PR et S T e b S
- — - -
P e

T Bt ey e el £
T by g Sy e, P e o e

e r——
| e B SR e e SR AR T = e S AT

M B @ it T T TR it B T i e e B el B il T g b By, S o b
- e -

Pt e e P S B TP s T B -
s o it o B i

Bl b
Tt et - — — e ——— T —
e — b -
e . A

oy s AL ATE T T RS N T A e T B Py s o
A e e pe—ne——
T ' - o ot e e e M
e e A e en e e -ty
T il 5 Rt T S A i g R By o R O B ol ey R e
T e e iy e Y S B et b P o e e o peveans gy b st b
P e s Bt s - e w——————
ey s s paer ke
D e e e T L e il
P R T P LIS S R S NSRS T o ¢ it W R S RS R R
s = = a1 i e e b o i S
L N Tl e e S —
e

Ewrvri Ll Lt
&1 DernE OFae
L2 2

=84 § 323 237

ST T
[ B ]

[.'lll'lhI'V._: wraker suppliey contoleiated comnplance mepar

Pagge | 47

7.2 Attachment A

Page 109



Council 23 October 2024

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

<& eurofins < eurofins

ARJANC DIETN00Y Fage ol ARJANC ARG Page2uof)
Food & Waler Testing Food & Water Teating
ANALYTICAL REPORT L NERSIE MR 00 MR !
1 P
HESOHT CO0E ARLHC EFS REFCSTT DATE 1SR Trartarassers sod sm kg I AR mgh o Mamons Dusseine
Srmston  Duversse Mew Zemsnd Limiisd
Ty M o Ve (S seugrer e remrnd e P Jrking ke Taardant e N Zeard
155 Landed Lirmer Ty s e T re ¥ e B o0 ol DeTey s P e e WA 0 S s Ve roc g P s ey e e
U0 irverearpl pruey
WEW SEALAND Tewin r e By ST e T s WA o Aaschens Vel
: & Copya [n Jracr =y mgracngnrar o x) g
[ — [ WA LTTTE NI T pladoauetic Acic kel M ivmad o USETA TN A M o Faic: el M e o LEEPR,
Cantract (1 [

Spatar
fonis Mling  Fuad of S
Lstwnatory (4T P}
EXPLANATORY MOTL
[T pEp—— R Pt Sty
[ stonrtaces @i L nden e Mook Bttt it o et o F b B | o
urn of ooy o u =Ei Bl .:: Earch ::: Cnsarihesion [LOCE
SR pacet A FTrw b cotte L gon s 3 s L'Eq"':‘_‘m""'“'m"‘“-
Frampohomanct: xe - 0 g i Snin Eurvfen gran o 3wl srmiing -
[——— =408 gt - B Tl e i o P abr e e ) :-“-t"""r"-"-""-'"-"’“-‘
o 2 P il S A EmlﬁmmﬁMNl'ﬂm CRM Ry ol el o Wi
[ Qe 1000 g ] WA D gt ¢ Naroral Dudeine ':;_:-‘-I'Hl-“l'lﬂl'lﬂ'ﬂ-l-
T AL P b i W o e Sy i BLE m it
raaE o oioe impaTiegl B A el o e e
“SANSALE CODE T B |
Fridu e wa
prem——y e 7 b33
o Y ol 1_Be_Cwaagesd arekreg gl A Mot Bttt S0
Fessphon Duls § T TLOSCEJA 10002 Mg caprlien Bymep [T
Apipiat BT n PRARCED B0 AR e A0
Smmpie-d Jlate & Tanss PRS0 53 Barpler i i g o i
i g Pasurer Mg
EERAOEN R WY T Rt
T o LA 1
AT Mo B
Bt =i i =t soc=
TR e =10 )
Teroran: axd a0 rrE S pa
Doabiorsetis s L AR mpw M of B0 gt - Htone S
[T —— o gl =]
Boplievs BT Lt P =0 1M T r
Diins Famaieer F1 % | ovemart Frove =l ¥ MY ATTT
L*“ Bk R T - R
e TR <A -
LN TRAL AT “UI“\M
Page [ 43
72  AttachmentA

Page 110



Council

23 October 2024

< eurofins |

Food & Water Testing

AR AL Pags 3o 3

=2 in v AT, T I WAL, P TR RDOF 0N 30 T W L

et iy s i T T b (6 el 1 T T o e [ T e LAy T T wE b ey
FRa. IR S S kil 55 SO I Sarh S LR = WPET F Ba CLaSrr ey
TIR et e I e RR] P B

T e o e oy R R e ST S o SR
TR T T T T MRS I RGOSR

[ (e i ol 0 Pt iy o] e B e e B e 0 Do Do, g, TIPS, S TPk
i oot S by of Bt wiaf, Br T g Hae o

o Py DTS T T o A0 0 P S 6T E I B LA ST T s o 5 PR oy © S S
B T R T,
& b e B T oo s o i e b0 P et of o S
I T T TN LA W Uy BT T4 T - LTt
et e Aoy s T it
e L T TR RGP LT e e K T B S Y £ P g O M T R
'BIH-I_mm““‘-ufmhnrﬂuuﬂn-nnr—lm---'u o
AT A, e AT & T W LG E et s siAOTY TSR DY P e L e O Pt o S R 2wl
R s L R R o ] W88 Y gy
s e e of e i ey e e,
T REOT . AT 3T R OF T LT ¥ FRONTER, BOCUPTL WA AICTME [N B G 30 30R00 T T (UEIN 0T 134 T P TS O T
Tl s i Ol T BT 0 i 5 T B O T et e LS S iy O S erotyeel o et S b G
0 T ol b e W] AT By BT Sk 8 T il 1 o S O T S R T ey ] e WS PO L e, SR
PRSI 7 e PRI Dol B i
i W s Ty ity Y PR o (O (O TR, S TR i o penair, o WO, e o oot e o e
n“h_“mw.-imr"'“nmi_nu 0 G R A T
RS of LR SO B 3 DEVCR TGN T e T DEPG e 2y St N e s 3 00 Yy S, S
. SR Wi T T T g T B PR, TN PR el LTy A Tl Sl e T D A

oA o

M0 OF REPOHT

Ewrolini ELT Lmbes Piroris =84 3 M3 5227
42 Coeron Diowe: e wroTs co e

HEW ITALAND

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

Face | 44

7.2 Attachment A

Page 111



Council

23 October 2024

Appendix F: Test for Metals i

i Reticulation

Phiriking vaater supples consaldaied complianoe repoan

. s
o 2 eurofins Sia
al eurofins AEINC MY Pege 1 bl MUHMC IR Fage ol
Food & Water Testing Food & Water Testing
REFORT CO0E. AR AT REFDAT DATE TN
hmeemen  Diwhr Bipw Saaiand Liswted
Lo Wi Nt g i 1 ot
158 Ludder Smem. " e 3T 4
S0 bvwer Ll LEPLARATORT HOTT
WA PEAL ANEY Ty WA Feae b depicatie
P Ty b Do Gl Ly Sgroagsmr on T ;’!"‘"""’""""“‘""‘_._:':2:"""” "HM__ m----uq-u.--.-nl.-.
L] Lo | . & [ i LD i Lt oF et i S ot oF LD 4 B A
L — [re—— AT T & ey ol i
L ] o B O Sy, A T e — ——,
Subaan Balsronss: O TP Mt V06 Prarshace Order Namber:  S9ESTT :::"_‘_'m"" L":_r-'m":‘_:.ﬂﬂ__'-' o S aatry| s s e arecsten
SALFLE CODE BT R0 S TR T 1 Wt e B 1y T e S
Bt Helerence e T - TG0 B B comitted
Sampling Poiet code | DOWA_TPEG Sampliag Foant russ ] W5HE 5 v it Crwin gtind 0 4 LF idriitnd
Rorowption Dister B Tomg | MEAIEDE 2130 Hacephon bewperiune. 187U D oy g s . s e e s v T A o et e
Err s ——— A UL S——" R S o v =HP o i
Barpherr s it it Sampbed Otn A T 1 1580 = 3
Vo i e ] o Rt s syl st s g
| o i ] || Iy e o ver e o mnee
rr—— = o e ¢ o o e o i S
S oiand Sr - - ey 4 e " [ L P ey ST R, CTETE R
i A S o LA e o L T S ST YA 2.8 ey e T
e 1] =0z g 2om o L] - ey
i L e
BAYESL Tt Forsten. a1 0 e 3 T o 1 e e i e 1 T o T e | T
Cawrm 0 o i 1 m—q—muﬂ--mw—-n—qn—mq—-mrﬂw—mnmp—
. 3 SR B e T e P e f
el Rt Chraeas s mey BurdrE T WAT W S T
i e e Py —— s e n i i e s ik iy Pt e
NS Tt Capp g e e s T e s i .l el iy TSl
Compr Lo - o0 o a7 et R G 7 4T ¥ £ o . e D e 6 0 SR, e, R et
» P i (10 e e e ] Lt
BV Tt Lasd T PR, e P,
2o B s L % = — L A A -
[ L o L Pl e i B AT PG Wy S W K
SIS Tt bt iy —mn—-l-—--ui-h-mh——--wbd: At s o Aoy - o B
vanriby o gl st Sty e a2 ey ey 1
DAY Tets Wkl
et g Zom g 1m0
[T e T o amreT
WA o M PV e fom 173 8 e WIS Totw Ay i Cefis Bomon 3128 B med
A Tots Comam & Jri Rednos 1128 0 moh BT Totu Chwnmsam: P Criv oo 7172 B mt
WS Tote Copper AFYS Croiew Exfibon 3104 8 ol MUY Tk L i Ot o 2% fimac
B b e e s e JETR Sl AP el B
s
[ py— e w3 3 ST e ye—— e w88 1 M )
A3 Dot B e el i A3 L e i i i vk
o, sty
] Crrocherch P14
VEW TEALAKD: T
Fage | 45
7.2 Attachment A Page 112



) SOUTHLAND
Council DNSTHIC] COUNE)
23 October 2024 <

Representation review - final representation proposal

Record no: R/24/9/61714
Author: Michal Gray, Democracy advisor
Approved by: Vibhuti Chopra, Group manager strategy and partnerships

Decision O Recommendation O Information

Purpose

The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the submissions received on its initial
representation proposal and to decide on the final proposal for the representation review.

Executive summary

The Local Electoral Act 2001(LEA) requires Council to conduct a review its representation
arrangement in 2024, prior to the 2025 local authority elections.

On 16 July 2024, Council adopted the initial representation proposal that proposed:

to retain 12 councillors elected under the current ward system, plus the mayor elected at
large

the District will continue to be divided into 5 wards, with some changes to the boundaries
to reflect communities of interest

to retain nine community boards with some changes to the boundaries to reflect
communities of interest

two of the community boards will continue to have subdivisions

there will be corrections to some ward and community board names to include macrons.

Community feedback on the initial representation proposal was sought during a consultation
period from 26 July to 2 September 2024 and 22 submissions were received during this period.

On 18 September 2024 Council formally received the written submissions and heard two
submitters speak about their submissions.

Council must now consider the submissions and adopt a final proposal. Staff are recommending
Council proceed and adopt a final proposal that is the same as the initial representation proposal,
without any amendment. The alternative option is to make changes to the proposal based on the
submissions received.

The final proposal will be publicly notified with a period for appeals and objections. The final
proposal along with any appeals or objections will then be sent to the Local Government
Commission (LGC) who will make a final determination on representation in the District.
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Recommendation
That the Council:

a)

b)

d)

9)

h)

Receives the report titled “Representation review - final representation proposal”.

Determines that this matter or decision be recognised as significant in terms of
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

Determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in
accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require further
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter.

Notes that on 16 July 2024 Council adopted the initial representation proposal for
public consultation and public consultation ran from 26 July to 2 September 2024
with 22 submissions received.

Notes that on 16 September Council received the 22 submissions and held a
hearing where two submitters spoke on their submissions.

Notes the summary of submissions contained as Attachment A to this report and
that 19 of the submissions were in support of the initial representation proposal.

Notes that Council has deliberated on the 22 submissions received on the initial
representation proposal and whether to accept or reject the submissions and
resolves:

i) that the submission requesting an increase in the number of members
appointed by Council to community boards be increased be rejected because
Council has received feedback that supports the current number of members
appointed to the community boards.

i)  that the submission in favour of reducing elected member numbers be
rejected because there is community support for the current ward and
community board structure and the current number of elected members.
Council considers that the structure and number of elected members is
appropriate to provide effective representation across the District.

iii)  that the submission to maintain the current ward and community board
boundary near Drummond be rejected because Council has received
feedback and submissions from the community in support of this boundary
change. Council considers that the boundary change is necessary to ensure
that communities of interest are grouped together appropriately and not
divided between community board or ward areas.

Resolves that no changes be made to the initial representation proposal adopted
by Council at its meeting on 16 July 2024 and that Council adopts the following as
its final representation proposal to apply for the local authority elections to be held
in 2025:
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)] That Council will comprise 12 councillors and the mayor.

i)  Thatthe District will be divided into five wards and the members of the
Council, other than the mayor who is elected at large, will continue to be
elected by ward.

iii)  That the names of the wards, the number of members elected by each ward
and the population that each member will represent is as follows:

Ward Population | Members Population
per member

Mararoa Waimea 8,940 3 2,980
Waiau Aparima 7,870 3 2,623
Oreti 9,200 3 3,067
Waihopai Toetoe 6,600 2 3,300
?s,ﬁz\;]vg; IE{akiura 430 ! 430
Total 33,040 12

iv) That the boundaries of the five wards are those set out in the map contained
in Attachment B and include minor changes to the boundaries of the Mararoa
Waimea, Waiau Aparima and Oreti Wards.

v)  That the five wards reflect the following communities:

Ward Communities

Mararoa Waimea | Ardlussa, Athol, Balfour, Benmore, Caroline, Cascade Creek,
Castlerock, Cattle Flat, Dipton, Dipton West, Five Rivers,
Freshford, Garston, Glenaray, Glenure, Hollyford, Jamestown,
Josephville, Kingston Crossing, Lintley, Longridge, Longridge
North, Lowther, Lumsden, Manapouri, Mandeville, Milford
Sound, Mossburn, Nokomai, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Parawa,
Potters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone, Te Anau, The
Dale, The Key, Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu,
Wendon, Wendonside

Waiau Aparima Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Birchwood, Blackmount,
Clifden, Colac Bay/Oraka, Crawfords, Cromarty, Eastern Bush,
Ermedale, Fairfax, Feldwick, Five Roads, Gladfield, Gropers
Bush, Gummies Bush, Happy Valley, Hazletts, Heddon Bush,
Isla Bank, Longwood, Merrivale, Monowai, Nightcaps, Ohai,
Opio, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Otahuti, Otaitai Bush,
Otautau, Pahia, Papatotara, Piko Piko, Port Craig, Pourakino
Valley, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap, Ringway,
Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine, Scotts Gap, Spar Bush,
Taramoa, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Thornbury, Tihaka,
Tinkertown, Tuatapere, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waikouro,
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Waimatuku, Waipango, Wairio, Wakapatu, Woodlaw, Wreys
Bush, Wrights Bush
Oreti Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton,

Dipton West, Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove
Bush, Hedgehope, Heenans Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady
Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel, Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa,
Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo, Oreti Plains, Otapiri,
Otapiri Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush,
South Hillend, Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing,
Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West Plains, Wilsons
Crossing, Winton.

Waihopai Toetoe | Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre,

Edendale, Fortification, Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, ,
Haldane, Kamahi, Kapuka, Kapuka South, Kennington,
Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry, Mimihau, Mokoreta,
Mokotua, Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika,
Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills,
Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka, ,
Timpanys, Titiroa, Tokanui, Tuturau, Waiarikiki, Waikawa,
Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands,

Wyndham.
Stewart All of Stewart Island Rakiura, the surrounding islands and
Island/Rakiura Ruapuke Island

Vi)

vii)

viii)

That the population each member represents is within the range of 2,753 +/-
10% (2,478 — 3,029), as required by section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act
2001 except for the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Oreti and Waihépai Toetoe
Wards.

That as provided by section 19V(3)(a) of the Local Electoral Act 2001 the
Stewart Island/Rakiura Ward warrants one councillor as itis an island
community.

That as provided by section 19V(3)(a) of the Local Electoral Act 2001
compliance of the Oreti and Waihopai Toetoe Wards with section 19V2) of
the act would limit the effective representation of communities of interest
either by dividing communities of interest or uniting communities of interest
with few commonalties.

That the current community board arrangement with nine community boards
be retained.

That the names of the community boards and the communities that they
represent are set out in the table:

Community board Communities

Ardlussa Community Board Ardlussa, Balfour, Cattle Flat, Freshford,
Glenaray, Glenure, Kingston Crossing,
Longridge, Longridge North, Mandeville,
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Potters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone,
Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu,
Wendon, Wendonside

Fiordland Community Board

Cascade Creek, Hollyford, Jamestown,
Manapouri, Milford Sound, Te Anau, The Dale,
The Key

Northern Community Board

Athol, Castlerock, Five Rivers, Garston,
Josephville, Lintley, Lowther, Lumsden,
Mossburn, Nokomai, Parawa

Oreti Community Board

Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline,
Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton West, Dunearn,
Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush,
Hedgehope, Heenans Corner, Hokonui,
Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel,
Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa, Makarewa
Junction, Northope, Oporo, Oreti Plains,
Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka,
Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush, South Hillend,
Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing,
Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West
Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton.

Wallace Takitimu Community
Board

Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Crawfords,
Five Roads, Gladfield, Heddon Bush, Isla Bank,
Nightcaps, Ohai, Opio, Otahuti, Otautau,
Ringway, Scotts Gap, Spar Bush, Tinkertown,
Waikouro, Wairio, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush

Tuatapere Te Waewae
Community Board

Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Cromarty,
Eastern Bush, Feldwick, Happy Valley,
Merrivale, Monkey Island, Monowai, Orawia,
Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Pahia, Papatotara, Piko
Piko, Port Craig, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap,
Round Hill, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae,
Tuatapere, Waihoaka.

Oraka Aparima Community
Board

Colac Bay/Oraka, Ermedale, Fairfax, Gropers
Bush, Gummies Bush, Hazletts, Longwood,
Otaitai Bush, Pourakino Valley,
Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine,
Taramoa, Thornbury, Tihaka, Waianiwa,
Waihoaka, Waipango, Wakapatu, Wrights
Bush.

Waihopai Toetoe Community
Board

Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands,
Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale, Fortification,
Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Haldane,
Kamahi, Kapuka, Kapuka South, Kennington,
Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry,
Mimihau, Mokoreta, Mokotua, Morton Mains,
Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika, Oware,
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Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry
Hills, Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope
Point, Te Peka, , Timpanys, Titiroa, Tokanui,
Tuturau, Waiarikiki, Waikawa, Waikawa Valley,
Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands,
Wyndham.

Stewart Island/Rakiura All of Stewart Island/Rakiura, the surrounding
Community Board islands and Ruapuke Island

xi)  That the boundaries of each community board area are those set out in the
map contained in Attachment B and include minor changes to the
boundaries of the current Northern, Ardlussa, Wallace Takitimu, Oreti and
Oraka Aparima Community Boards.

xii) That the Oreti Community Board will comprise eight members. Seven
members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council
representing the Oreti Ward. The Oreti Community Board will have three
subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each
subdivision will represent is shown in the table:

Community | Subdivision Population Elected Population
Board members | per member
Oreti Hokonui 1,240 1 1,240
Community |"yiands 5,630 4 1408
Board

Makarewa 2,330 2 1,165

Total 9,200 7 1,314

xiii) That the population represented by each member elected by the Makarewa
subdivision of the Oreti Community Board does not fall within the range of
1,314 +/- 10% (1,183-1,445) in accordance with section 19V(2) of the Local
Electoral Act 2001. But that as provided under section 19V(3)(a), compliance
with section 19V(2) would limit the effective representation of communities
of interest either by dividing communities of interests or uniting
communities of interest with few commonalties.

xiv) That the Northern Community Board will comprise seven members. Six
members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council
representing the Mararoa Waimea Ward. The Northern Community Board
will have three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the
members of each subdivision will represent is shown in the table:
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Community | Subdivision Population Elected Population
Board members | per member
Northern Parawa- 260 1 260
Community | Fairlight
Board WestDome | 800 2 400
Mid Dome 1030 3 343
Total 2090 6 348
xv) That the population represented by each member elected by the Parawa-

XVi)

XVii)

Fairlight and West Dome subdivisions of the Northern Community Board
does not fall within the range of 348 +/- 10% (313-382) in accordance with
section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act 2001. As provided under section
19V(3)(a), compliance with section 19V(2) would limit the effective
representation of communities of interest either by dividing communities of
interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

That the Waihopai Toetoe Community Board will comprise eight members.
Seven members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council
representing the Waihopai Toetoe Ward. The Waihopai Toetoe Community
Board will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

That the Fiordland, Ardlussa, Tuatapere Te Waewae, Oraka Aparima, Wallace
Takitimu and Stewart Island/Rakiura Community Boards will each comprise
seven members. Six members will be elected and one member will be
appointed by Council representing the ward in which the board is situated.
These boards will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

xviii) That the spelling of the names of the following electoral areas are corrected

to include macrons:

Waihopai Toetoe Ward

Waihopai Toetoe Community Board
Oreti Ward

Oreti Community Board

Oraka Aparima Community Board.

that in accordance with section 19K of the Local Electoral Act 2001, the reasons for
the changes to the existing representation arrangements are:

i)

i)

that the minor changes to the ward, community board and subdivision
boundaries will avoid splitting communities across different electoral areas
or grouping communities that do not have commonalities.

that the existing structure, with the minor changes will continue to provide
effective representation for the District’s communities of interest.

that the names of some electoral areas were spelt incorrectly.
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J) notes that that the final representation proposal will be publicly notified in the
form contained in Attachment B on 25 October 2024.

k) notes that the appeals period for the final representation proposal will run from 25
October to 29 November 2024 with a Local Government Commission hearing on 25
February 2025 if required.

) notes that as the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Oreti and Waihépai Toetoe Wards and the
Makarewa Subdivision of the Oreti Community and Parawa-Fairlight and West
Dome Subdivisions of the Northern Community Board are not compliant with
section of the 19V(2) Local Electoral Act 2001, Council must refer the final
representation proposal to the Local Government Commission regardless of any
appeals to the final proposal.

Background and representation review requirements

Council is required by the LEA to conduct a review its representation arrangement in 2024, prior
to the 2025 local authority elections.

The LEA requires Council to ensure that the representation arrangements provide for effective
representation of communities of interest and for the fair representation individuals and
communities.

Council endorsed the following principles (which fit within the legislative requirements) to guide
staff in identifying and analysing the initial representation proposal:

the importance of local decision making

ensuring there are effective working relationships

having consistent representation for people in the District

having a structure that attracts the right people to governance roles
being cost effective, but keeping this in balance with the other principles.

Prior to adopting the initial representation proposal Council undertook general community
engagement. Feedback indicated that the current representation structure recognises and groups
local communities quite accurately, and that people in the District believe the current structure
provides effective representation.

Feedback and research indicated that there should be some boundary changes of wards and
community boards to ensure that communities of interest are not divided and that communities
are not combined without sufficient commonalities.

On 16 July 2024, Council adopted the initial representation proposal that proposed:

to retain 12 councillors elected under the current ward system, plus the mayor elected at
large

the District will continue to be divided into 5 wards, with some changes to the boundaries
to reflect communities of interest
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to retain nine community boards with some changes to the boundaries to reflect
communities of interest.

two of the community boards will continue to have subdivisions

there will be corrections to some ward and community board names to include macrons.

The initial representation proposal was publicly notified on 26 July 2024 and feedback on the
proposal was sought during a consultation period from 26 July to 2 September.

Twenty two submissions were received during the consultation period and on 18 September 2024
Council received those submissions and heard from two submitters who spoke on their
submissions.

Issues
Council must now consider the submissions received on the initial representation proposal.

Council can choose to either adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final
proposal, or amend the initial representation proposal in response to submissions and adopt the
amended representation proposal as the final proposal. The initial representation proposal can
only be amended in response to submissions received.

The final proposal must be publicly notified and Section 19N of the LEA requires the public
notice to include any amendments made to the initial representation proposal, the reasons for the
amendments, the reasons for any rejection of submissions and the right of the public to appeal or
object to the final proposal.

The final representation proposal must be publicly notified within eight weeks of the closing date
for submissions on the representation proposal (by 28 October 2024).

I.Submission summary
A summary of the submissions in a table format is contained in Attachment A.

All submitters were asked whether they supported the initial representation proposal. Nineteen of
the 22 (86%) submissions received indicated that they supported the initial representation
proposal.

Eight of the nine community boards made submissions that support the initial representation
proposal. One board did not make a submission. The Stewart Island/Rakiura Community Board
commented that Stewart Island/Rakiura needs representation as a community of special interest.

All submitters were asked whether they were affected by any of the boundary changes proposed.
Eleven submitters indicated that they were affected by one or more of the boundary changes and
10 of those submitters supported the initial representation proposal.

The themes of the comments from those affected by the boundary changes were:

two submitters that supported the proposal and were affected by the boundary changes at
Drummond commented that they felt that they had more connection and more in
common with Winton/Oreti Community Board.

one submitter, that did not support the proposal and was affected by the boundary change
at Drummond, commented that a community of interest exists between the Drummond,
Otautau and Riverton townships.
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25. A number of submitters commented on themes that were outside of the scope of the
representation review. These included:

three submitters commented that they supported the review of the local government
structure in the Southland Region

one submitter commented on Council’s role in supporting community boards to encourage
local democracy and local voice

one submitter that supported the initial representation proposal commented that
representation should assist to unify communities, some of which are outside of the
District

the submission received from Te Ao Marama (who represent nga Runanga) supported the
initial representation proposal but noted that nga Runanga are seeking a long-term
partnership approach and that opportunities for Mana Whenua to participate in decision
making at a governance level would be welcomed and encouraged.

26.  There are three themes from submissions that Council needs to consider and decide whether it
will accept (and make changes to the initial representation proposal) or not accept (and not make
changes to the initial representation proposal). Those themes can be summarised as:

that the number of councillors appointed by Council to the community boards should be
increased for some of the community boards so that all ward councillors from the ward in
which the community board is located are members of the community board.

that the number of elected members in the District should be reduced to reduce costs.

that Drummond should remain with Wallace Takitimu Community Board (and the Waiau
Aparima Ward) because a community of interest exists between the Drummond, Otautau
and Riverton townships.

ii.Staff comments

27. To assist Council in considering whether to amend the initial representation proposal in light of
the submissions, staff provide the following comments:

Council completed a thorough consultation process on the initial representation proposal.
Details of the consultation can be found in the report presented to Council on 18
September 2024

while there weren’t a large number of submissions received, nearly all of them supported
the initial representation proposal

community feedback (including from community boards and elected members) received
during the early engagement did not support increasing the number of councillors
appointed by Council to community boards

there was strong community feedback received in the early engagement that the current
number of elected members and the ward and community board arrangement provide
effective representation for people in the District. There was also feedback that the current
structure supports local decision making (one of the guiding principles of the review).
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A reduction in the number of councillors would not substantially reduce costs to
ratepayers, as councillor remuneration is set independently on a pool basis. This amount
does not go up or down in relation to the number of councillors.

feedback received from the community in the early engagement, along with research,
indicated that the boundary changes at Dunearn, Drummond, Taramoa, Otamita Valley
and Nokomai Station were needed to ensure that communities with common interests are
grouped together and to avoid splitting communities across different community boards or
wards (which does not support effective representation).

most of the submissions received during the consultation from submitters affected by the
boundary changes, were in support of the initial representation proposal.

iii.Appeals and objections period

28.  After Council resolves the final proposal there will be an opportunity for the public to lodge
appeals or objections (if applicable) to the proposal. The public will be notified of the final
proposal on 25 October 2024 and the appeals and objections period will run from 25 October to
29 November 2024. The draft public notice of the final representation proposal is contained in
Attachment B.

29.  An appeal can be made by anyone who made a submission to the initial representation proposal
about matters related to their original submission. An objection can be lodged by any individual
or organisation if the final proposal differs from the initial representation proposal. If Council
proceeds to adopt the initial representation proposal without amendment as the final
representation proposal, the proposal will not be open to objections.

30. Any appeals or objections lodged will be received by Council and forwarded to the LGC.

31.  Since the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Oreti and Waihopai Toetoe Wards and the Makarewa
Subdivision of the Oreti Community Board and Parawa-Fairlight and West Dome subdivisions
of the Northern Community Board are not compliant with the +/-10% rule (section 19V(2)
LEA) the final proposal must be referred to the LGC for determination even if there are no
appeals or objections.

32. The LGC will consider any appeals or objections and it may choose to hold hearings (Southland
District’s hearings have been tentatively scheduled for 27 February 2025 in Invercargill). The
LGC will make the final determination on the representation arrangement for the District by 10
April 2025, in time for the 2025 local authority elections.

33. Ifacouncil has a final representation proposal that is compliant with the +/-10% rule and no
appeals or objections are received, the final representation proposal adopted by the council
would become the representation structure and the LGC would not make the final
determination.

Factors to consider
Legal and statutory requirements

34. The statutory requirements for the final proposal, as required by the LEA, are set out in this
report and staff believe the representation proposal complies with those requirements.

35. Section 19N of the LEA sets out requirements for the resolutions that Council must make in
relation to the final proposal - staff believe the recommendations meet those requirements.
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The decision on the final representation proposal is also subject to decision making requirements
of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA).

Community views

Representation reviews provide the community an opportunity to input into decision making to
achieve fair and effective representation for the District.

Community views were captured through the non-statutory engagement process that was
undertaken in 2023. These views and other data were used by staff to develop the initial
representation proposal.

Council consulted the public on the initial representation proposal from 26 July to 2 September
2024 in accordance with LEA requirements. The act outlines how community views must be
sought - there is no need to engage further on this matter before Council adopts a final
representation proposal.

When Council resolves the final proposal there will be an opportunity for the public to lodge
appeals or objections (if applicable).

Costs and funding

There will be costs associated with publishing the public notice and with consultant oversight to
ensure appropriate preparation for the LGC hearing, but these will be met within current
budgets.

Policy implications

The representation proposal aligns with the Long Term Plan 2024-2034 particularly with the
strategic outcomes/priorities of connected and resilient communities, and having a sense of
belonging.

By refining and continuing to embed the current representation arrangement the initial
representation proposal supports building strong relationships with our partners, including our
community boards and communities. The proposal ensures communities have access to elected
members by retaining the ward and community board arrangement across the District.

The representation proposal also allows for the continued development of the relationships
board members have with their communities, to keep residents informed and gather their
feedback.

The initial representation proposal also supports respecting the diversity of values and ways of
living in our communities, as the structure recognises the diverse communities in our District,
and ensures different communities are not grouped together.

Analysis
Options considered

Staff have identified two options:

* Option 1 — adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final representation
proposal

» Option 2 — instruct staff to make changes to the initial representation proposal as a result of
the submissions received and present an amended representation proposal to Council for
adoption at a subsequent meeting.
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Analysis of options

Option 1 —adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final representation
proposal

Advantages Disadvantages

meets the statutory requirements of - none identified.
providing for the fair and effective
representation of communities

reflects the most community views

is consistent with Council’s strategic
framework

Council will meet the statutory time frames
for the review.

Option 2 —instruct staff to make changes to the initial representation proposal as a result of
the submissions received and present an amended representation proposal to Council for
adoption at a subsequent meeting

Advantages Disadvantages
None identified - would require an emergency meeting of
Council

Council may not meet the statutory time
frames that require the final proposal to be
adopted by 28 October 2024

may not reflect community views.

Assessment of significance

The adoption of the representation proposal is considered to be significant when assessed against
Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy because the representation arrangement will have
a substantial impact on community outcomes if the arrangement does not effectively represent
the people and communities within the District. It is also significant because the decision is only
able to be changed either by the LGC, or by Council completing another representation review.
There is also a high level of public interest in the representation arrangements in the District.

The statutory requirements (under the LEA) for consultation, as well as the appeals and
objections period on the final proposal, reflect the significance of this matter.
Recommended option

Staff recommend option 1, that Council adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as
the final representation proposal.

Next steps

A summary of the proposed timeline is:
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23 October 2024
23 October 2024 Council decision on final proposal
25 October 2024 Public notice of final proposal

29 November 2024

Appeals and objection period closes

25 February 2025

LGC hearings of appeals and objections (if required)

10 April 2025

LGC makes determination by this date

iv.

51. Asrequired by the LEA, staff will notify the public and government agencies (including the
LGC) of the final representation proposal. Staff will forward any appeals or objections (if

applicable) received to the LGC.

V.
Attachments
A Summary of submissions received on the initial representation proposal
B Public notice of final representation proposal
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Summary of submissions received on the Initial Representation Proposal

MName Supports  Boundary changes Themes Staff comments

Proposal  that affect submitter
Southland il new Supports review of local government Loeal government reorganisation is outside of the
Federated Farmers | indicate reorganisation in the region. The scope of the representation review.

TEPresentation review s an opportunity
to engage with the community on options
for the furare.

Peter MeDonald Yes Council should consider its rale in Support and oversight of the community boards is
supporting communiry boards o outside of the scope of the representation review,
encourage local democracy and local
voice and ensure there is oversight of the
boards.

This is outside of the scope of the representation

Candidate profiles should indicate an .
review.

intent to adopt the code of conduct.

The number of appointed members on
larger community boards should be

in | war ncill . s c ;
creased so that all ward councillors are Earlier engagement showed there is community

appointed. -
ppointed support for the current number of members
appointed to community boards.

Robina Johnston Yes Ortamita Valley Representation should unify as a Some of these areas are outside of the Southland
community: Waitane, Waimuru, Te Districe and within the Gore Distrct and therefore
Tipua, Upper Charlron and Oramira. outside of the scope of the represenration review.

Bruce Ford Yes Expressed support for local government | Local government reorganisation is outside of the
rearganisation in the Southland region. scope of the representation review.
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Community Board

Name Supports Boundary changes Themes Staff comments
Proposal that affect submitter
Annabel Riley No Should reduce number of clected Earlier engagement showed there is community
members support for the current number of clected members
Local povernment reorganisation is outside of the
Expressed support for local government scope of the representation review
TEOTEATISATON
‘Te Ao Marama Yes Nyga Runanga are secking a long-term There was an option prior to the representation
Incorporared partnership approach and that review for Council to establish a Maori ward. The
opportunities for Mana Whenua to participation of Mana Whenua in governance is
participate in decision making ar a ourtside of the scope of the representarion review as
governance level would be welcomed and | set out in the Local Electoral Act 2001.
encouraged. Sraff support a long-term partership approach to
enable Miori participation in decision making, in
accordance with section 81 of the Local
Government Act.
David and Eileen | No Drummond A community of interest exists between | Community engagement and research indicated thar
Lewis Drummond and Otautau and Riverton Drummond’s community of interest is with Winton
and the Oreti Ward and Community Board and
most of the submissions received support the
boundary change to move Drummond to the Oret
Ward and Community Board.
Ardlussa Yes Otamita Valley,
Community Board Nokomai Station
Fiordland Yes
Community Board
Maorthern Yes Mokomai Srarion
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Name Supports Boundary changes Themes Staff comments
Proposal that affect submitter
Oraka Aparima Yes Taramaoa
Community Board
Tuarapere Te Yes
Wacwae
Community Board
Stewart Yes Stewart Tsland/Rakiura needs Staff support this theme. Stewart Island /Rakiura is
Island / Rakiura representation as a community of special | both an ssolated and island community and its
Community Board Interest, current representation was supported in the
COMMUNITY COgAgement.
Wallace Yes Dunearn, Drummond
Community Board
Waihopai Toetoe | Yes
Community Board
Barry McDonald Yes Drummond Has social and business connections to Staff support this theme. Community engagement
the cast and Winton. Supports and research indicated that Drummond's
Drummond and Oreti Plains areas being | community of interest is with Winton and the Oreti
incorporated into Ored Community Ward and Community Board and most of the
board. submissions received support the boundary change
to move Drummond o the Oreti Ward and
Community Board.
Crrant Kincaid Yes Drrummond Maore in common with Winton Staff support this theme. Community engagement

and research indicated that Drummond’s
community of interest is with Winton and the Oren
Ward and Communiry Board and mosr of the
submissions received support the boundary change
to move Drummond o the Oreti Ward and
Community Board.
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Lisa Beatson Yes Drummond

Perra Laughron Yes

'Staphmk'mﬂl: Yes. Boundary changes secemed logical to | Staff support this theme. Feedback was that the-
improve the groups of communities of | boundary changes were necessary to ensure that
interest communities were not divided between wards or

community boards or nor grouped together withour
sufficient commonalities,

Greg Bovle Yes Dunearn
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Public Notice of the Final Representation Proposal

Sourhland Distmcr Council has reviewed irs representation arrangements and on 16 July 20924 resolved o
adopt an initial representation proposal for public consultation. Public consultation on the initial
representation proposal ran from 26 July to 2 Scprember 2024 and 22 submissions were received, 19 of
the submissions supported the proposal.

All submissions that were within the scope of the representation review were considered by Council. A
number of submissions requested changes to the proposal; the themes of these submissions and the
reasons why Council did not accept them are as follows:

That the number of councillors Couneil did not aceept this submission because it received
appointed by Council to the community = other feedback expressing supporting for maintaining the
boards be increased for some of the current number of councillors appointed to community
community boards boards

That the number of clected members be | This was not aceepted by Couneil beeause there has been

reduced community suppen for the current number of elected
members, and Council eonsiders that the current number of
elected members is appropriate to provide effective
representation across the District

That the current ward and community | This was not accepted by Council because there was

board boundary near Drummond be feedback and submissions from the communiry in suppaort of

maintained this boundary change. Council considers that the boundary
change is necessary to ensure that communities are grouped
together appropriately and not divided berween community
boxard or ward areas

Oin 23 Oetober 2024, after considering all of the submissions received, Council resolved o adopt the
initial representation proposal as its final representation proposal with no amendmenes.

Council representation

Council will comprise 12 councillors and the maveor.

The Discrice will be divided into five wards and the members of Council, other than the mavor (who will
be elected ar large), will continue to be elected by ward,

The names of the wards, the number of members elected by cach ward and the popularion rhar each
mermber will represent is as follows:

Ward Population® Members Population per member
Mararca Waimea 8,940 3 2,980
 Waiau Aparima | 7,870 '3 | 2,623
Oreti 9,200 3 | 3,067

Waihopai Toetoe 6,600 2 3,300

Stewart Island/Rakiura 430 ] 430

Total 33,040 12

Fliased o Statistice New Lealand 2023 pepulation estinates

7.3

Attachment B Page 131



Council 23 October 2024

The boundaries of the five wards are shown in the attached map.

The five wards reflect the following communities:

. Ward Communities

Mararoa Waimea Ardlussa, Athol, Balfour, Benmore, Caroline, Cascade Creek, Castlerock,
Cattle Flat, Dipton, Dipton West, Five Rivers, Freshford, Garston, Glenaray,
Glenure, Hollyford, Jamestown, Josephville, Kingston Crossing, Lintley,
Longridge, Longridge North, Lowther, Lumsden, Manapour, Mandeville,
Milford Sound, Massburn, Nokomai, Qtapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Parawa, Fotters,
Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone, Te Anau, The Dafe, The Key, Waikaia,
Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside

Waiau Aparima Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Birchwood, Blackmaunt, Clifden, Colac
Bay/Oraka, Crawfards, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Ermedale, Fairfax, Feldwick,
Five Roads, Gladfield, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Happy Valley, Hazletts,
Heddan Bush, Isla Bank, Longwood, Merrivale, Monowal, Nightcaps, Ohai,
Opio, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Otahuti, Otaital Bush, Otawtou, Pahia,
Papatotara, Fiko Pike, Port Craig, Pourakine Valley, Pukemaor, Raymonds
Gap, Ringway, Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine, Scotts Gap, Spar
Bush, Taramoa, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Tharnbury, Tihaka,
Tinkertown, Tuatapere, Walaniwa, Walhoaka, Walkouro, Waimatuku,
Waipango, Wairio, Wokapatu, Woodlow, Wreys Bush, Wrights Bush

Oreti Benmaore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Diptan
West, Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope,
Heenans Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel,
Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo,
Creti Plains, Otapiri, Otapiri Garge, Pukemutu, Rokahouka, Roslyn Bush,
Ryal Bush, South Hillend, Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock
Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton,

Waihépai Toetoe Ashers, Brydone, Bush 5iding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale,
Fortification, Fartrose, Glenham, Gorge Rood, , Haldane, Kamabhi, Kapuka,
Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura lsland, Menzies Ferry,
Mimihau, Mokore ta, Mokotua, Morton Mains, Miogara, Ota Creek, Ofara,
Oteramika, Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills,
Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka, , Timpanys, Titiroa,
Tokanui, Tuturaw, Waiarikiki, Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka,
Waimatua, Waitung, Woodlands, Wyndham.

Stewart Island/Rakiura = All of Stewart lsland Rakiura, the surrounding Islands and Ruapuke lsland

Seerion 19V(2) of the Local Eleceoral Aee 2001 {LEA) requires the population cach member represents be
within the range of 2,753 +/- 10% (2478 — 3,029, unless particular community of interest considerations
justify otherwise, The wards comply with section 19V(2) of the LEA with the exception of:

¢ the representation of the Stewart [sland /Rakiura Ward, but as provided by section 19V [3)(a) of the
LEA, Council considers thar it warrants one couneillor as it is an island community.

o the representation of the Oreti and Waihapai Toctoe Wards, but as provided by section 19V/(3)(a)
of the LEA, Council considers that compliance would limit the effective representation of
communities of interest either by dividing communities of interest or uniting communities of
interest with fow commaonaltics,
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Community board representation

The current communiry board arrangement with nine community boards will be retained, The boundarics
of the nine community boards are shown in the attached map.

The names of the community boards and the communities that they represent are set out in the rable

brelow:

_ Community board Communities

Ardlugsa Community Ardlussa Balfeur, Cattle Flat, Freshford, Glenaray, Glenure, Kingstan Crossing,
Board Longridge, Longridge Narth, Mandewille, Patters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks,
Sandstone, Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside

. Figrdiand Community . Cascade Creek, Hollyford, Jamestawn, Manapouri, Milford Sound Piopiotahl, Te I

Board Anau, The Dale, The Key
. Northern Community | Athol, Castlerock, Five Rivers, Garston, Josephville, Lintley, Lowther, Lumsden,
Board Messburn, Nokomai, Porawa

Oretl Community Board | Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton West,
Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope, Heenans
Corner, Hokonui, Kauang, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel, Lorneville, Mabel Bush,
Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Opare, Creti Plains, Qtapiri, Otapiri
Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush, South Hillend,
Springhilis, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown,
West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton.

Wallace Takitimu . Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Crawfords, Five Roads, Gladfield, Heddon Bush,
Community Board Isia Bank, Nightcaps, Ohal, Opio, Otahuti, Otautau, Ringway, Scotts Gap, 5par
Bush, Tinkertown, Waikouro, Wairio, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush

Tuatapere Te Woewaoe | Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Feldwick, Happy

Community Board Valley, Merrivale, Monkey Island, Monowai, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Pahia,
Papatatara, Pike Pike, Port Craig, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap, Round Hill, Te
Onerog, Te Tug, Te Waewoe, Tuatapere, Waihoaka,

Oraka Aparima Colac Bay Oraka, Ermedale, Falrfax, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Hazletts,

Community Board Longwood, Otaitar Bush, Pouraking Valley, Riverton Aparima, Round Hill,
Ruahine, Taramoa, Thormbury, Tihaka, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waipango,
Wakapatu, Wrights Bush.

Waihdpai Toerae Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curie Bay, Dacre, Edendale,

Community Boord Fortification, Fertrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Holdane, Kamahi, Kapuka,
Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura lsland, Menazies Ferry, Mimibau,
Mokoreta Mokotua Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika,
Cweare, Pine Bush, Pragress Valley, Pukewaoo, Quarry Hills, Redan, Rimu, Seaward
Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka, . Timpanys, Titirea, Tokanui, Tuturaw, Waiarikiki,
Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Weodlands,
Wyndham.

Stewart Island/Rakiura | All of Stewart Island Rakiura, the surrounding Islands and Ruapuke lsland
Community Board

The Oreti Community Board will comprise eight members, Seven members will be elected and one
member will be appointed by Couneil representing rhe Cireri Ward. The Ored Communiry Board will have
three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each subdivision will represent
is show in the mble:
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Oreti Community Hokonui 1,240 i 1,240
Board Midlands 5,630 P 1,408
Makarewa 2,330 2 1165
Total 9,200 7 1,314

Shased our Statistice New Lealand 2023 popidaiion estimates

The population represented by each member elecred by the Makarewa subdivision of the Oreti
Community Board does not fall within the range of 1,514 +/- 10% (1,183-1,445) in accordance with
section 19V(2) of the LEA. Council considers, as provided under secton 19V(3)(a), that compliance with
seetion 19V(2) would limit the effective representation of communities of interest gither by dividing
communities of interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

The Northern Community Board will comprise seven members. Six members will be elected and one
member will be appointed by Couneil representing the Mararoa Waimea Ward. The Northern Community
Board will have three subdivisions for clecroral purposes, The population the members of cach
subudivision will represent is shown in the table:

Northern Pﬂfﬁvﬁd}ﬂfght 260 ! 260
Community Board 1"+ Dome 800 2 400
Mid Dome 1030 3 343
Total 2090 5 348

Mlrasead o Statistics New Zealand 2023 popackation extimutes

The population represented by each member elecred by electors of the Parawa-Fairight and West Dome
subdivisions of the Morthern Community Board does not fall within the range of 348 +/- 10% (312-382)
in accordance with section 19V(2) of the LEA, Council considers, as provided under secrion 19%(3)(a),
that compliance with section 19V (2} would limit the effective representation of communities of interest
cither by dividing communitics of interests or uniong communitics of interest with few commonaltics.

The Waihdpai Toctoe Community Board will comprise cight members. Seven members will be elected and
one member will be appointed by Council representing the Waihopai Toetoe Ward. The Waihopai Toetoe
Community Board will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

The Finrdland, Ardlussa, Tuarapere Te Wacewae, Oraka Aparima, Wallace Takirimu and Srewart

Island/ Rakiura Community Boards will cach comprise seven members. Six members will be clected and
one member will be appointed by Council representing the ward in which the board is situared. These
boards will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

Further information:

FFurther information including the initial representation proposal and maps may be viewed and obtained
from the Sourhland District Council’s head office 15 Forth Streer, Invercargill and from any Southland
Dhistrict Council area office.
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Appeals

Any person who made a submission on Council’s inital representation proposal may lodge an appeal
against Couneil’s decision. An appeal must relate o matters raised in that person’s submission on the
initial representation proposal.

Appeals must be made in writing and received by Council no later than 5pm on Friday, 2% November
2024,

1. emal to submissionsi@southlandde gove.ne

2. post toe Southland District Council, PO Box 903, Invercargill 9840 ATTMN: Representation Review

3 drop off to: Southland District Couneil, head office, 15 Forth Street, Invercargill, or at any
Southland Distrier Couneil arca office.

Cameron Mclntosh, Chief Executive

25 Ocrober 2024
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SOUTHLAND

DISTRECT COUNCIL

<

Exclusion of the public: Local Government Official Information

and Meetings Act 1987

Recommendation

That the public be excluded from the following part(s) of the proceedings of this meeting.

C8.1 Independent review update

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for
passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of
the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this

resolution are as follows:

General subject of each matter to be
considered

Reason for passing this resolution in
relation to each matter

Ground(s) under section 48(1) for the
passing of this resolution

Independent review update

s7(2)(a) - the withholding of the
information is necessary to protect
the privacy of natural persons,
including that of a deceased person.

s7(2)(g) - maintain legal professional
privilege.

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the
information is necessary to enable the
local authority to carry out, without
prejudice or disadvantage,
commercial activities.

That the public conduct of the whole
or the relevant part of the
proceedings of the meeting would be
likely to result in the disclosure of
information for which good reason
for withholding exists.

In Committee
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Notice is hereby given that an Ordinary meeting of Southland District Council will be held on:



		Date:

Time:

Meeting room:

Venue:



		Wednesday, 23 October 2024

9.30am

Council Chamber
Level 2
20 Don Street
Invercargill



		

Council Agenda
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		Contact telephone: 0800 732 732

Postal address: PO Box 903, Invercargill 9840

Email: emailsdc@southlanddc.govt.nz 

Website: www.southlanddc.govt.nz

Online: Southland District Council YouTube



Full agendas are available on Council’s website

www.southlanddc.govt.nz

		





















		







Note:  	The reports contained within this agenda are for consideration and should not be construed as Council policy unless and until adopted.  Should Members require further information relating to any reports, please contact the relevant manager, Chairperson or Deputy Chairperson. 

Health and safety

Toilets – The toilets are located outside of the chamber, directly down the hall on the right.



Evacuation – Should there be an evacuation for any reason please exit down the stairwell to the assembly point, which is the entrance to the carpark on Spey Street. Please do not use the lift.



Earthquake – Drop, cover and hold applies in this situation and, if necessary, once the shaking has stopped we will evacuate down the stairwell without using the lift, meeting again in the carpark on Spey Street.



Phones – Please turn your mobile devices to silent mode.



Recording - These proceedings are being recorded for the purpose of live video, both live streaming and downloading.  By remaining in this meeting, you are consenting to being filmed for viewing by the public.
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1	Apologies



At the close of the agenda no apologies had been received.



2	Leave of absence



At the close of the agenda no requests for leave of absence had been received.



3	Conflict of Interest



Councillors are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision-making when a conflict arises between their role as a councillor and any private or other external interest they might have. 



4	Extraordinary/Urgent Items

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass a resolution to permit the Council to consider any further items which do not appear on the Agenda of this meeting and/or the meeting to be held with the public excluded.

Such resolution is required to be made pursuant to Section 46A(7) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987, and the Chairperson must advise: 

(i)	The reason why the item was not on the Agenda, and

(ii)	The reason why the discussion of this item cannot be delayed until a subsequent meeting. 

Section 46A(7A) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 (as amended) states: 

“Where an item is not on the agenda for a meeting,-

(a) 	that item may be discussed at that meeting if-

(i)	that item is a minor matter relating to the general business of the local authority; and

(ii)	the presiding member explains at the beginning of the meeting, at a time when it is open to the public, that the item will be discussed at the meeting; but

(b) 	no resolution, decision or recommendation may be made in respect of that item except to refer that item to a subsequent meeting of the local authority for further discussion.”



5	Confirmation of Council Minutes

5.1	Meeting minutes of Council, 16 October 2024 



6	Public Participation  



Notification to speak is required by 12noon at least one clear day before the meeting. Further information is available on www.southlanddc.govt.nz or phoning 0800 732 732  
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OPEN MINUTES











Minutes of a meeting of Council held in the Council Chamber, Level 2, 20 Don Street, Invercargill on Wednesday, 16 October 2024 at 9.31am. (9.31am – 10.37am)



PRESENT



		Mayor

		Rob Scott



		Deputy mayor

		Christine Menzies



		Councillors

		Jaspreet Boparai (video link)



		

		Don Byars



		

		Derek Chamberlain



		

		Paul Duffy



		

		Darren Frazer



		

		Sarah Greaney (video link)



		

		Julie Keast (9.31am – 10.25am)



		

		Tom O'Brien



		

		Margie Ruddenklau (10.01am – 10.37am)



		

		Jon Spraggon



		

		Matt Wilson (9.34am – 10.37am)









APOLOGIES

Councillor Ruddenklau (for lateness)





IN ATTENDANCE



		Chief executive

		Cameron McIntosh



		Committee advisor

		Fiona Dunlop










Mayor Scott opened the meeting with a karakia timatanga as follows:



		Mā te whakarongo

Mā te kōrero

Mā te ngakau

Mā te wairua

Mā te manaaki mai

Mā te manaaki atu

Ka puawai te maramatanga

Tihei mauri ora

		Through listening

Through talking

From the heart

From the spirit

Through giving

And receiving respect

Understanding will bloom

This is the essence of life 







1	Apologies



There were apologies for lateness from Councillor Ruddenklau.



		[bookmark: PDF2_Resolution_N_2][bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_N_2]Moved Cr Duffy, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies and resolved:

That Council accept the apology.









2	Leave of absence



Councillor Chamberlain requested a leave of absence for the Council meeting scheduled for 6 November 2024.



		[bookmark: PDF2_Resolution_N_3][bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_N_3]Moved Cr Frazer, seconded Cr Spraggon and resolved:

That Council agrees the leave of absence request.









3	Conflict of Interest



There were no conflicts of interest declared.





4	Extraordinary/Urgent Items



There were no Extraordinary/Urgent items.





5	Confirmation of Council Minutes



		[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_N_1][bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_N_1]Resolution

Moved Cr Keast, seconded Cr O'Brien and resolved:

That the Council confirms the minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2024 as a true and correct record of that meeting.









[bookmark: PDF1_Confidential]6	Public Participation



There was no public participation.



[bookmark: PDF1_Reports]Reports





		7.1

		[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_27664]Great South quarterly update to Southland District Council

Record No:	R/24/10/63546



		

		Great South chief executive Chami Abeysinghe and GM regional strategy – Bobbi Brown were in attendance for this item.



Council were updated on the Great South 2023/2024 business year.  They had seven focus areas, all with key performance indicators.



The focus areas, key performance indicators and achievements were as follows:



· Beyond 2025 Southland Implementation Plan with 3 KPIs (all achieved)

· Attraction of visitors to Murihiku Southland with 4 KPIs (all achieved)

· Tourism sector development with 2 KPIs (1 achieved and 1 partially achieved)

· Alternative land use with 1 KPI (achieved)

· Business engagements with 1 KPI (partially achieved)

· Data and Dashboards with 2 KPIs (all achieved)

· Carbon emissions reduction with 3 KPIs (1 achieved and 2 partially achieved)



(During discussion, Councillor Wilson joined the meeting at 9.34am.)

(During discussion, Councillor Ruddenklau joined the meeting at (10.01am.)





		

		[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_27664_1]Resolution

Moved Mayor Scott, seconded Cr Chamberlain and resolved:

That the Council:

a)	receives the report titled “Great South quarterly update to Southland District Council” and expresses it thanks for the update.









		7.2

		[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_27531]Adoption of Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023 and Notification Proposed Plan Change 2

Record No:	R/24/8/50326



		

		Graduate environmental planner policy – Ashton Mismash and PlanRight principal consultant - Peter Constantine were in attendance for this item.



The purpose of the report was for the Council to adopt the Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023 as recommended by the hearing panel in June 2023 and approve for notification the proposed plan change to the Southland District Plan and the Evaluation Report under Schedule 1 of the Resource Management.



(During discussion, Councillor Keast left the meeting at 10.25am.)





		

		[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_27531_1]Resolution

Moved Cr Duffy, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies and resolved:

That the Council:

a)	Receives the report titled “Adoption of Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023 and Notification Proposed Plan Change 2 “.

b)	Determines that this matter or decision be recognised as significant in terms of Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

c)	Determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in accordance with Section 79 of that Act determines that it does not require further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter.

d)	Adopts the Code of Practice for Subdivision, Land Use, and Development 2023.

e)	Adopts proposed plan change 2 to the Southland District Plan and the Evaluation report prepared pursuant to Section 32 of the Resource Management Act 1991.

f)	Approves proposed plan change 2 to the Southland District Plan and the Evaluation Report prepared pursuant to Section 32 of the Resource Management Act 1991 for public notification on 24 October 2024, for a period of no less than 20 working days.

g)	Notes that the group manager strategy and partnerships and strategic planning and policy manager have delegated authority to amend the proposed plan change in accordance with Clauses 16(1) and 16(2) of the First Schedule to the Resource Management Act 1991, to make alterations of minor effect, or correct minor errors.









The meeting concluded at 10.37am.	CONFIRMED AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD OF A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON WEDNESDAY 16 OCTOBER 2024.







DATE:............................................................................................







CHAIRPERSON:........................................................................

.
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[bookmark: PDF1_Heading_27575][bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_27575]Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Statement of Intent 2024/2025

Record no:	R/24/8/54545

Author:	Jayson Trent, Democracy Advisor 

Approved by:	Vibhuti Chopra, Group manager strategy and partnerships 



☒  Decision	☐  Recommendation	☐  Information



  



Purpose

1	The purpose of this report is to present the Great South statement of intent 2024/2027 and the Space Operations New Zealand Ltd statement of intent 2024/2025 to Council. Council will decide whether or not to receive the statements of intent.

Executive summary

2	On 30 October 2023 the Great South Joint Shareholder Committee provided direction and general priority areas for Great South through a joint letter of expectation (LOE).

3	On 6 March 2024 Council considered the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027 and the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent 2024/2025.

4	Council resolved to acknowledge receipt of the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027 and delegated authority to the mayor to provide feedback on the discussions held by Council. 

5	Council resolved to acknowledge receipt of the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent 2024/2025 and provide positive feedback.

6	The Great South Board has adopted a Statement of Intent (SOI) for the reporting years 2024-2027. This is presented as attachment A.

7	Staff are recommending that Council receive and acknowledge receipt of the Great South SOI 2024-2027.  

8	The SpaceOps NZ Board has adopted a Statement of Intent (SOI) for the reporting year 2024-2025. This is presented as attachment B. 

9	Staff are recommending that Council receives and acknowledges receipt of the SpaceOps NZ SOI 2024-2025. 



		[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_27575][bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations]Recommendation

That the Council:

a)	receives the report titled “Great South Statement of Intent 2024/2027 and Space Operations New Zealand Limited Statement of Intent 2024/2025”.



b)	determines that this matter or decision be recognised not significant in terms of Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.



c)	determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter.



d)	receives and acknowledges receipt of the Great South statement of intent 2024/2027.



e)	receives and acknowledges receipt of the Space Operations NZ Ltd statement of intent 2024/2025. 







Background

[bookmark: _Hlk107820434]10	The Local Government Act 2002 (the act) requires Great South and SpaceOps NZ to prepare an annual SOI. All SOI’s must comply with the requirements set out in clauses 7 and 9 of Schedule 8.

11	Council and its partner shareholders set the direction and general priority areas through a joint letter of expectation (LOE). This was produced by the Great South Joint Shareholder Committee and provided to the chair of the Great South Board on 30 October 2023. This is presented as attachment C.

12	Council considered the Great South draft SOI 2024/2027 on 6 March 2024 and provided the following feedback: 

	Council acknowledges receipt of the Great South draft statement of intent 2024/2027 and provides feedback through the mayor on the discussions held, including discussion of the status of Great South as a council control organisation (CCO) or council controlled trading organisation (CCTO).

	Council agrees to delegate to the mayor the authority to provide Council’s feedback to the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee and to reach agreement with the Committee on the feedback to be provided to Great South.

13	Feedback from Council and its partner shareholders was considered by Great South before it delivered its final SOI.




14	Council considered the SpaceOps NZ draft SOI 2024/2025 on 6 March 2024 and provided the following feedback: 

	Council acknowledges receipt of the SpaceOps NZ draft statement of intent 2024/2025 and provides positive feedback, including a statement of appreciation for the preparation of a legally compliant SOI.

	Council agrees to delegate to the mayor the authority to provide Council’s feedback to the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee and to reach agreement with the Committee on the feedback to be provided to SpaceOps. 

15	Under the Great South constitution, the final SOI’s must be presented to Council to receive.

Issues

16	The Great South Joint Shareholders Committee granted a one month extension under Schedule 8, Part 1, s 4 of the act for the delivery of the final SOI on the basis that the Great South Board intended to undertake an organisational realignment and reprioritisation. The presentation of this report to Council was delayed due to this extension.

17	Under the act, a request to amend a SOI may be made by a resolution of the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee at any time. 

18	The final Great South SOI 2024/2027 includes changes from the draft to the marketing, destination management and our sustainability programmes of Great South. These changes to the KPI’s (“Our Work”) are as follows:

	Regional development leadership – deletion of the section ‘feasibility assessment’

	Business support and diversification, under the section ‘economic diversification’ – deletion of ‘facilitate feasibility studies to assess opportunities for new market development…’ and deletion of ‘creates a regional industry capability profile’

	Business support and diversification, under the section ‘support the agriculture sector’ – deletion of ‘feasibility studies on opportunities to support industry through skills development’

	Net Zero Southland – deletion of the section ‘support the business section to reduce carbon emissions’

19	There are also changes to the performance measures to reflect the changes to these KPI’s.

20	The final SpaceOps NZ SOI 2024/2025 does not include any changes from the draft.

21	The Great South 2024/2027 SOI and SpaceOps NZ 2024/2025 SOI are compliant with the requirements set out in clauses 7 and 10 of Schedule 8 under the act. 

Factors to consider

Legal and statutory requirements

22	Part 5 of the act refers to CCOs/CCTOs and Schedule 8 contains the SOI requirements. The process being undertaken is guided by the obligations and responsibilities under the act. 

23	Schedule 8 Part 1 clause 6 of the act allows Council to modify any part of the SOI, if requested by resolution of the shareholders. 

24	As well as complying with the act, the parties also have responsibilities under the Southland Regional Development Agency Ltd constitution and shareholders’ agreement.

Community views

25	Council has previously consulted on the establishment of the Joint Shareholders Agreement, the Southland Regional Development Agency and associated areas of focus for regional development. 

26	Council funding allocations to Great South were included as part of the LTP 2024-2034 process. 

Costs and funding

27	Council has committed to $701,527 in contract funding for Great South projects/initiatives for 2024/2025. Council supported the proposed core funding amount of $1,981,000, with SDC’s share being $581,047. 

28	Council’s total cost for 2024/2025 is $1,282,574. This is within the budget allowed for 2024/2025 in the Long Term Plan 2024/2034 of $1,296,827.

29	The core funding contributions are currently under review by the Invercargill City Council, in accordance with a resolution of the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee. The current calculation of core funding contributions is contained within schedule 4 of the shareholders agreement. 

30	Staff costs associated with this work have been met within current budgets. 

Policy implications

31	There are no identified policy implications. 

Analysis

Options considered

32	Great South and SpaceOps are required to produce a SOI each year. Council can then choose to receive each or to not receive each.

Analysis of Options

Option 1 – Council receives the Great South SOI 2024-2027 and Space Operations NZ Ltd SOI 2024/2025

		Advantages 

		Disadvantages 



			aligns with the shareholders’ agreement (for Great South)

	provides Council with the final SOI’s as delivered by Great South and SpaceOps NZ.

			no known disadvantages.







Option 2 – Council does not receive the Great South SOI 2024-2027 and Space Operations NZ Ltd SOI 2024/2025

		Advantages 

		Disadvantages 



			no known advantages.



			does not align with the shareholders agreement (with Great South).







Assessment of significance

33	The decision of whether or not to receive the Great South SOI 2025/2027 and the SpaceOps NZ SOI 2024/2025 is not considered significant under Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy. This matter has a low level of impact/risk in relation to people, services, facilities and infrastructure as the regional development priority areas and funding commitments have already been decided.

Recommended option

34	Staff recommend that Council receives the Great South SOI 2024/2027 and SpaceOPs NZ SOI 2024/2025.

Next steps

35	If received and acknowledged, staff will inform Great South and SpaceOps NZ that Council have received their respective SOIs and notify the Great South Joint Shareholders Committee.
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[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_27604]Drinking water supplies consolidated report - 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024

Record no:	R/24/9/56733

Author:	Bill Witham, Asset manager water 

Approved by:	Hartley Hare, Strategic manager transport/Acting GM infrastructure and capital delivery 



☐  Decision	☐  Recommendation	☒  Information



  



Summary

1	This report contains the drinking water compliance report for Southland District Council (SDC) supplies, for the reporting period of 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024. SDC supplies water to Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat, Edendale/Wyndham, Lumsden/Balfour, Manapouri, Mossburn, Ohai/Nightcaps, Otautau, Orawia, Riverton, Te Anau, Tuatapere, and Winton.

2	The purpose of this report is to provide a summary for the Southland District Council on the Drinking water supply schemes compliance in accordance with the Drinking Standard New Zealand 2022.

3	This report is an internal self-report that is required as per the SDC drinking water safety plans for each scheme. This report has not been reviewed or assessed by external parties.



		[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_27604]Recommendation

That Council:

a)	Receives the report titled “Drinking water supplies consolidated report - 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024”.
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Purpose

1.	The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the submissions received on its initial representation proposal and to decide on the final proposal for the representation review. 

Executive summary

2.	The Local Electoral Act 2001(LEA) requires Council to conduct a review its representation arrangement in 2024, prior to the 2025 local authority elections.

3.	On 16 July 2024, Council adopted the initial representation proposal that proposed:  

	to retain 12 councillors elected under the current ward system, plus the mayor elected at large 

	the District will continue to be divided into 5 wards, with some changes to the boundaries to reflect communities of interest

	to retain nine community boards with some changes to the boundaries to reflect communities of interest

	two of the community boards will continue to have subdivisions

	there will be corrections to some ward and community board names to include macrons.

4.	Community feedback on the initial representation proposal was sought during a consultation period from 26 July to 2 September 2024 and 22 submissions were received during this period.

5.	On 18 September 2024 Council formally received the written submissions and heard two submitters speak about their submissions. 

6.	Council must now consider the submissions and adopt a final proposal. Staff are recommending Council proceed and adopt a final proposal that is the same as the initial representation proposal, without any amendment. The alternative option is to make changes to the proposal based on the submissions received. 

7.	The final proposal will be publicly notified with a period for appeals and objections. The final proposal along with any appeals or objections will then be sent to the Local Government Commission (LGC) who will make a final determination on representation in the District. 



		[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_27635]Recommendation

That the Council:

a)	Receives the report titled “Representation review - final representation proposal”.



b)	Determines that this matter or decision be recognised as significant in terms of Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.



c)	Determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter.



d)	Notes that on 16 July 2024 Council adopted the initial representation proposal for public consultation and public consultation ran from 26 July to 2 September 2024 with 22 submissions received. 



e)	Notes that on 16 September Council received the 22 submissions and held a hearing where two submitters spoke on their submissions.



f)	Notes the summary of submissions contained as Attachment A to this report and that 19 of the submissions were in support of the initial representation proposal.  



g)	Notes that Council has deliberated on the 22 submissions received on the initial representation proposal and whether to accept or reject the submissions and resolves:



[bookmark: _Hlk179287949]i)	that the submission requesting an increase in the number of members appointed by Council to community boards be increased be rejected because Council has received feedback that supports the current number of members appointed to the community boards.

ii)	that the submission in favour of reducing elected member numbers be rejected because there is community support for the current ward and community board structure and the current number of elected members. Council considers that the structure and number of elected members is appropriate to provide effective representation across the District.

[bookmark: _Hlk179288382]iii)	that the submission to maintain the current ward and community board boundary near Drummond be rejected because Council has received feedback and submissions from the community in support of this boundary change. Council considers that the boundary change is necessary to ensure that communities of interest are grouped together appropriately and not divided between community board or ward areas.   

h)	Resolves that no changes be made to the initial representation proposal adopted by Council at its meeting on 16 July 2024 and that Council adopts the following as its final representation proposal to apply for the local authority elections to be held in 2025:  



i)	That Council will comprise 12 councillors and the mayor.

ii)	That the District will be divided into five wards and the members of the Council, other than the mayor who is elected at large, will continue to be elected by ward. 

iii)	That the names of the wards, the number of members elected by each ward and the population that each member will represent is as follows: 

		Ward

		Population

		Members

		Population per member



		Mararoa Waimea 

		8,940

		3

		2,980



		Waiau Aparima

		7,870

		3

		2,623



		Ōreti 

		9,200

		3

		3,067



		Waihōpai Toetoe

		6,600

		2

		3,300



		Stewart Island/Rakiura

		430

		1

		430



		Total

		33,040

		12

		







iv)	That the boundaries of the five wards are those set out in the map contained in Attachment B and include minor changes to the boundaries of the Mararoa Waimea, Waiau Aparima and Ōreti Wards. 

v)	That the five wards reflect the following communities:  

		Ward

		Communities



		Mararoa Waimea

		Ardlussa, Athol, Balfour, Benmore, Caroline, Cascade Creek, Castlerock, Cattle Flat, Dipton, Dipton West, Five Rivers, Freshford, Garston, Glenaray, Glenure, Hollyford, Jamestown, Josephville, Kingston Crossing, Lintley, Longridge, Longridge North, Lowther, Lumsden, Manapouri, Mandeville, Milford Sound, Mossburn, Nokomai, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Parawa, Potters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone, Te Anau, The Dale, The Key, Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside



		Waiau Aparima

		Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Colac Bay/Ōraka, Crawfords, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Ermedale, Fairfax, Feldwick, Five Roads, Gladfield, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Happy Valley, Hazletts, Heddon Bush, Isla Bank, Longwood, Merrivale, Monowai, Nightcaps, Ohai, Opio, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Otahuti, Otaitai Bush, Otautau, Pahia, Papatotara, Piko Piko, Port Craig, Pourakino Valley, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap, Ringway, Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine, Scotts Gap, Spar Bush, Taramoa, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Thornbury, Tihaka, Tinkertown, Tuatapere, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waikouro, Waimatuku, Waipango, Wairio, Wakapatu, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush, Wrights Bush



		Ōreti 

		Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton West, Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope, Heenans Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel, Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo, Ōreti Plains, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush, South Hillend, Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton.



		Waihōpai Toetoe

		Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale, Fortification, Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Haldane, Kamahi, Kapuka, Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry, Mimihau, Mokoreta, Mokotua, Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika, Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills, Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka, , Timpanys, Titiroa, Tokanui, Tuturau, Waiarikiki, Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands, Wyndham.



		Stewart Island/Rakiura

		All of Stewart Island Rakiura, the surrounding islands and Ruapuke Island







vi)	That the population each member represents is within the range of 2,753 +/- 10% (2,478 – 3,029), as required by section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act 2001 except for the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Ōreti and Waihōpai Toetoe Wards.

vii)	That as provided by section 19V(3)(a) of the Local Electoral Act 2001 the Stewart Island/Rakiura Ward warrants one councillor as it is an island community.  

viii)	That as provided by section 19V(3)(a) of the Local Electoral Act 2001 compliance of the Ōreti and Waihōpai Toetoe Wards with section 19V2) of the act would limit the effective representation of communities of interest either by dividing communities of interest or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties. 

ix)	That the current community board arrangement with nine community boards be retained. 

x)	That the names of the community boards and the communities that they represent are set out in the table: 

		Community board 

		Communities



		Ardlussa Community Board

		Ardlussa, Balfour, Cattle Flat, Freshford, Glenaray, Glenure, Kingston Crossing, Longridge, Longridge North, Mandeville, Potters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone, Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside



		Fiordland Community Board

		Cascade Creek, Hollyford, Jamestown, Manapouri, Milford Sound, Te Anau, The Dale, The Key



		Northern Community Board

		Athol, Castlerock, Five Rivers, Garston, Josephville, Lintley, Lowther, Lumsden, Mossburn, Nokomai, Parawa



		Ōreti Community Board

		Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton West, Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope, Heenans Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel, Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo, Ōreti Plains, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush, South Hillend, Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton. 



		Wallace Takitimu Community Board

		Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Crawfords, Five Roads, Gladfield, Heddon Bush, Isla Bank, Nightcaps, Ohai, Opio, Otahuti, Otautau, Ringway, Scotts Gap, Spar Bush, Tinkertown, Waikouro, Wairio, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush



		Tuatapere Te Waewae Community Board

		Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Feldwick, Happy Valley, Merrivale, Monkey Island, Monowai, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Pahia, Papatotara, Piko Piko, Port Craig, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap, Round Hill, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Tuatapere, Waihoaka. 



		Ōraka Aparima Community Board

		Colac Bay/Ōraka, Ermedale, Fairfax, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Hazletts, Longwood, Otaitai Bush, Pourakino Valley, Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine, Taramoa, Thornbury, Tihaka, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waipango, Wakapatu, Wrights Bush.



		Waihōpai Toetoe Community Board

		Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale, Fortification, Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Haldane, Kamahi, Kapuka, Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry, Mimihau, Mokoreta, Mokotua, Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika, Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills, Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka, , Timpanys, Titiroa, Tokanui, Tuturau, Waiarikiki, Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands, Wyndham.



		Stewart Island/Rakiura Community Board

		All of Stewart Island/Rakiura, the surrounding islands and Ruapuke Island







xi)	That the boundaries of each community board area are those set out in the map contained in Attachment B and include minor changes to the boundaries of the current Northern, Ardlussa, Wallace Takitimu, Oreti and Oraka Aparima Community Boards. 

xii)	That the Ōreti Community Board will comprise eight members. Seven members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council representing the Ōreti Ward. The Ōreti Community Board will have three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each subdivision will represent is shown in the table: 

		Community Board

		Subdivision

		Population

		Elected members

		Population per member



		Ōreti Community Board

		Hokonui

		1,240

		1

		1,240



		

		Midlands

		5,630

		4

		1,408



		

		Makarewa

		2,330

		2

		1,165



		

		Total

		9,200

		7

		1,314







xiii)	That the population represented by each member elected by the Makarewa subdivision of the Ōreti Community Board does not fall within the range of 1,314 +/- 10% (1,183-1,445) in accordance with section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act 2001. But that as provided under section 19V(3)(a), compliance with section 19V(2) would limit the effective representation of communities of interest either by dividing communities of interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

xiv)	That the Northern Community Board will comprise seven members. Six members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council representing the Mararoa Waimea Ward. The Northern Community Board will have three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each subdivision will represent is shown in the table:

		Community Board

		Subdivision

		Population

		Elected members

		Population per member



		Northern Community Board

		Parawa-Fairlight

		260

		1

		260



		

		West Dome

		800

		2

		400



		

		Mid Dome

		1030

		3

		343



		

		Total

		2090

		6

		348







xv)	That the population represented by each member elected by the Parawa-Fairlight and West Dome subdivisions of the Northern Community Board does not fall within the range of 348 +/- 10% (313-382) in accordance with section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act 2001. As provided under section 19V(3)(a), compliance with section 19V(2) would limit the effective representation of communities of interest either by dividing communities of interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

xvi)	That the Waihōpai Toetoe Community Board will comprise eight members. Seven members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council representing the Waihōpai Toetoe Ward. The Waihōpai Toetoe Community Board will not be subdivided for electoral purposes. 

xvii)	That the Fiordland, Ardlussa, Tuatapere Te Waewae, Ōraka Aparima, Wallace Takitimu and Stewart Island/Rakiura Community Boards will each comprise seven members. Six members will be elected and one member will be appointed by Council representing the ward in which the board is situated. These boards will not be subdivided for electoral purposes. 

xviii)	That the spelling of the names of the following electoral areas are corrected to include macrons:

	Waihōpai Toetoe Ward 

	Waihōpai Toetoe Community Board

	Ōreti Ward

	Ōreti Community Board 

	Ōraka Aparima Community Board.



i)	that in accordance with section 19K of the Local Electoral Act 2001, the reasons for the changes to the existing representation arrangements are:

i)	that the minor changes to the ward, community board and subdivision boundaries will avoid splitting communities across different electoral areas or grouping communities that do not have commonalities.  

ii)	that the existing structure, with the minor changes will continue to provide effective representation for the District’s communities of interest. 

iii)	that the names of some electoral areas were spelt incorrectly. 

j)	notes that that the final representation proposal will be publicly notified in the form contained in Attachment B on 25 October 2024. 



k)	notes that the appeals period for the final representation proposal will run from 25 October to 29 November 2024 with a Local Government Commission hearing on 25 February 2025 if required.  



l)	notes that as the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Ōreti and Waihōpai Toetoe Wards and the Makarewa Subdivision of the Ōreti Community and Parawa-Fairlight and West Dome Subdivisions of the Northern Community Board are not compliant with section of the 19V(2) Local Electoral Act 2001, Council must refer the final representation proposal to the Local Government Commission regardless of any appeals to the final proposal.   











Background and representation review requirements

8.	Council is required by the LEA to conduct a review its representation arrangement in 2024, prior to the 2025 local authority elections. 

9.	The LEA requires Council to ensure that the representation arrangements provide for effective representation of communities of interest and for the fair representation individuals and communities.

10.	Council endorsed the following principles (which fit within the legislative requirements) to guide staff in identifying and analysing the initial representation proposal: 

	the importance of local decision making 

	ensuring there are effective working relationships

	having consistent representation for people in the District

	having a structure that attracts the right people to governance roles

	being cost effective, but keeping this in balance with the other principles. 

11.	Prior to adopting the initial representation proposal Council undertook general community engagement. Feedback indicated that the current representation structure recognises and groups local communities quite accurately, and that people in the District believe the current structure provides effective representation.    

12.	Feedback and research indicated that there should be some boundary changes of wards and community boards to ensure that communities of interest are not divided and that communities are not combined without sufficient commonalities. 

13.	On 16 July 2024, Council adopted the initial representation proposal that proposed:

	to retain 12 councillors elected under the current ward system, plus the mayor elected at large 

	the District will continue to be divided into 5 wards, with some changes to the boundaries to reflect communities of interest

	to retain nine community boards with some changes to the boundaries to reflect communities of interest.

	two of the community boards will continue to have subdivisions

	there will be corrections to some ward and community board names to include macrons. 

14.	The initial representation proposal was publicly notified on 26 July 2024 and feedback on the proposal was sought during a consultation period from 26 July to 2 September. 

15.	Twenty two submissions were received during the consultation period and on 18 September 2024 Council received those submissions and heard from two submitters who spoke on their submissions. 

Issues

16.	Council must now consider the submissions received on the initial representation proposal. 

17.	Council can choose to either adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final proposal, or amend the initial representation proposal in response to submissions and adopt the amended representation proposal as the final proposal. The initial representation proposal can only be amended in response to submissions received.  

18.	The final proposal must be publicly notified and Section 19N of the LEA requires the public notice to include any amendments made to the initial representation proposal, the reasons for the amendments, the reasons for any rejection of submissions and the right of the public to appeal or object to the final proposal.

19.	The final representation proposal must be publicly notified within eight weeks of the closing date for submissions on the representation proposal (by 28 October 2024). 

i. Submission summary

20.	A summary of the submissions in a table format is contained in Attachment A.  

21.	All submitters were asked whether they supported the initial representation proposal. Nineteen of the 22 (86%) submissions received indicated that they supported the initial representation proposal. 

22.	Eight of the nine community boards made submissions that support the initial representation proposal. One board did not make a submission. The Stewart Island/Rakiura Community Board commented that Stewart Island/Rakiura needs representation as a community of special interest.

23.	All submitters were asked whether they were affected by any of the boundary changes proposed.  Eleven submitters indicated that they were affected by one or more of the boundary changes and 10 of those submitters supported the initial representation proposal. 

24.	The themes of the comments from those affected by the boundary changes were:

	two submitters that supported the proposal and were affected by the boundary changes at Drummond commented that they felt that they had more connection and more in common with Winton/Oreti Community Board. 

	one submitter, that did not support the proposal and was affected by the boundary change at Drummond, commented that a community of interest exists between the Drummond, Otautau and Riverton townships. 

25.	A number of submitters commented on themes that were outside of the scope of the representation review. These included:

	three submitters commented that they supported the review of the local government structure in the Southland Region

	one submitter commented on Council’s role in supporting community boards to encourage local democracy and local voice  

	one submitter that supported the initial representation proposal commented that representation should assist to unify communities, some of which are outside of the District

	the submission received from Te Ao Marama (who represent nga Runanga) supported the initial representation proposal but noted that nga Runanga are seeking a long-term partnership approach and that opportunities for Mana Whenua to participate in decision making at a governance level would be welcomed and encouraged. 

[bookmark: _Hlk178758417]26.	There are three themes from submissions that Council needs to consider and decide whether it will accept (and make changes to the initial representation proposal) or not accept (and not make changes to the initial representation proposal). Those themes can be summarised as:  

	that the number of councillors appointed by Council to the community boards should be increased for some of the community boards so that all ward councillors from the ward in which the community board is located are members of the community board.

	that the number of elected members in the District should be reduced to reduce costs. 

	that Drummond should remain with Wallace Takitimu Community Board (and the Waiau Aparima Ward) because a community of interest exists between the Drummond, Otautau and Riverton townships.

ii. Staff comments

27.	To assist Council in considering whether to amend the initial representation proposal in light of the submissions, staff provide the following comments: 

	Council completed a thorough consultation process on the initial representation proposal. Details of the consultation can be found in the report presented to Council on 18 September 2024

	while there weren’t a large number of submissions received, nearly all of them supported the initial representation proposal

	community feedback (including from community boards and elected members) received during the early engagement did not support increasing the number of councillors appointed by Council to community boards

	there was strong community feedback received in the early engagement that the current number of elected members and the ward and community board arrangement provide effective representation for people in the District. There was also feedback that the current structure supports local decision making (one of the guiding principles of the review). 

	A reduction in the number of councillors would not substantially reduce costs to ratepayers, as councillor remuneration is set independently on a pool basis. This amount does not go up or down in relation to the number of councillors.  

	feedback received from the community in the early engagement, along with research, indicated that the boundary changes at Dunearn, Drummond, Taramoa, Otamita Valley and Nokomai Station were needed to ensure that communities with common interests are grouped together and to avoid splitting communities across different community boards or wards (which does not support effective representation). 

	most of the submissions received during the consultation from submitters affected by the boundary changes, were in support of the initial representation proposal.   

iii. Appeals and objections period 

28.	After Council resolves the final proposal there will be an opportunity for the public to lodge appeals or objections (if applicable) to the proposal. The public will be notified of the final proposal on 25 October 2024 and the appeals and objections period will run from 25 October to 29 November 2024. The draft public notice of the final representation proposal is contained in Attachment B.

29.	An appeal can be made by anyone who made a submission to the initial representation proposal about matters related to their original submission. An objection can be lodged by any individual or organisation if the final proposal differs from the initial representation proposal. If Council proceeds to adopt the initial representation proposal without amendment as the final representation proposal, the proposal will not be open to objections.  

30.	Any appeals or objections lodged will be received by Council and forwarded to the LGC.

31.	Since the Stewart Island/Rakiura, Ōreti and Waihōpai Toetoe Wards and the Makarewa Subdivision of the Ōreti Community Board and Parawa-Fairlight and West Dome subdivisions of the Northern Community Board are not compliant with the +/-10% rule (section 19V(2) LEA) the final proposal must be referred to the LGC for determination even if there are no appeals or objections. 

32.	The LGC will consider any appeals or objections and it may choose to hold hearings (Southland District’s hearings have been tentatively scheduled for 27 February 2025 in Invercargill). The LGC will make the final determination on the representation arrangement for the District by 10 April 2025, in time for the 2025 local authority elections. 

33.	If a council has a final representation proposal that is compliant with the +/-10% rule and no appeals or objections are received, the final representation proposal adopted by the council would become the representation structure and the LGC would not make the final determination.  

Factors to consider

Legal and statutory requirements

34.	The statutory requirements for the final proposal, as required by the LEA, are set out in this report and staff believe the representation proposal complies with those requirements.  

35.	Section 19N of the LEA sets out requirements for the resolutions that Council must make in relation to the final proposal - staff believe the recommendations meet those requirements. 

36.	The decision on the final representation proposal is also subject to decision making requirements of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA). 

Community views

37.	Representation reviews provide the community an opportunity to input into decision making to achieve fair and effective representation for the District. 

38.	Community views were captured through the non-statutory engagement process that was undertaken in 2023. These views and other data were used by staff to develop the initial representation proposal. 

39.	Council consulted the public on the initial representation proposal from 26 July to 2 September 2024 in accordance with LEA requirements. The act outlines how community views must be sought - there is no need to engage further on this matter before Council adopts a final representation proposal. 

40.	When Council resolves the final proposal there will be an opportunity for the public to lodge appeals or objections (if applicable).  

Costs and funding

41.	There will be costs associated with publishing the public notice and with consultant oversight to ensure appropriate preparation for the LGC hearing, but these will be met within current budgets. 

Policy implications 

42.	The representation proposal aligns with the Long Term Plan 2024-2034 particularly with the strategic outcomes/priorities of connected and resilient communities, and having a sense of belonging. 

43.	By refining and continuing to embed the current representation arrangement the initial representation proposal supports building strong relationships with our partners, including our community boards and communities. The proposal ensures communities have access to elected members by retaining the ward and community board arrangement across the District. 

44.	The representation proposal also allows for the continued development of the relationships board members have with their communities, to keep residents informed and gather their feedback.

45.	The initial representation proposal also supports respecting the diversity of values and ways of living in our communities, as the structure recognises the diverse communities in our District, and ensures different communities are not grouped together. 

Analysis

Options considered

46.	Staff have identified two options: 

[bookmark: _Hlk179150181]•	Option 1 – adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final representation proposal 

•	Option 2 – instruct staff to make changes to the initial representation proposal as a result of the submissions received and present an amended representation proposal to Council for adoption at a subsequent meeting.

Analysis of options

Option 1 – adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final representation proposal 

		Advantages 

		Disadvantages 



			meets the statutory requirements of providing for the fair and effective representation of communities

	reflects the most community views 

	is consistent with Council’s strategic framework

	Council will meet the statutory time frames for the review.

			none identified.







Option 2 – instruct staff to make changes to the initial representation proposal as a result of the submissions received and present an amended representation proposal to Council for adoption at a subsequent meeting

		Advantages 

		Disadvantages 



			None identified 

			would require an emergency meeting of Council

	Council may not meet the statutory time frames that require the final proposal to be adopted by 28 October 2024

	may not reflect community views. 







Assessment of significance

47.	The adoption of the representation proposal is considered to be significant when assessed against Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy because the representation arrangement will have a substantial impact on community outcomes if the arrangement does not effectively represent the people and communities within the District. It is also significant because the decision is only able to be changed either by the LGC, or by Council completing another representation review. There is also a high level of public interest in the representation arrangements in the District.  

48.	The statutory requirements (under the LEA) for consultation, as well as the appeals and objections period on the final proposal, reflect the significance of this matter. 

Recommended option

49.	Staff recommend option 1, that Council adopt the initial representation proposal unchanged as the final representation proposal. 

Next steps

50.	A summary of the proposed timeline is: 

		23 October 2024

		Council decision on final proposal



		25 October 2024

		Public notice of final proposal



		29 November 2024

		Appeals and objection period closes 



		25 February 2025

		LGC hearings of appeals and objections (if required)



		10 April 2025

		LGC makes determination by this date





iv. 

51.	As required by the LEA, staff will notify the public and government agencies (including the LGC) of the final representation proposal.  Staff will forward any appeals or objections (if applicable) received to the LGC. 

v. 
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That the public be excluded from the following part(s) of the proceedings of this meeting.

C8.1 Independent review update

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows:





		General subject of each matter to be considered

		Reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter

		Ground(s) under section 48(1) for the passing of this resolution



		Independent review update

		s7(2)(a) - the withholding of the information is necessary to protect the privacy of natural persons, including that of a deceased person.

s7(2)(g) - maintain legal professional privilege.

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the information is necessary to enable the local authority to carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage, commercial activities.

		That the public conduct of the whole or the relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting would be likely to result in the disclosure of information for which good reason for withholding exists.
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30 October 2023

lan Collier
Great South

PO Box 1306
Invercargill 840

Dear lan
Great South Letter of Expectation 2024-2025

Introduction

| write this letter of expectation on behalf of the Great South Joint Shareholders
Committee as Chair.

| wish to congratulate Great South on another year of hard work. We note the
achievement of delivering the Beyond 2025 Southland Plan and the Murihiku
Southland Destination Strategy. These are both significant pieces of work that will help
inform the strategic direction of our region moving forward.

| would also like to commend you, your board of directors and the Great South
management team for working with all the shareholders to identify the priorities for
Murihiku Southland and aligning this with the Beyond 2025 Southland Long-Term plan.

Regional Priorities

Through the two strategic workshops you held with us earlier this year the shareholders
have an agreed understanding that;

e Great South, as the southland regional development agency will work across
the undermentioned priority areas that will drive economic development in our
region.

o Regional Development Leadership (Beyond 2025 actions)

o Business Support & Diversification (RBP, Callaghan, SYF, new business)

o Regional Promotion (Tourism and Events)

o Net Zero Southland (Regional Carbon emissions monitoring and
reductions)

e Great South will consider how to support priorities identified from the Beyond
2025 Southland long-term plan as follows:
o Data (a platform to host regional data to support decision making)
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o Housing (the establishment of a regional housing forum and strategy to
support housing provision in the region)

o Roading & Transport (advocacy including data to support decision
making around a fransport network for the region)
Aquaculture including land use diversification
Energy (implementation of the regional energy strategy)

o Addressing the issue of unrestricted forestry (advocacy to government)

¢ In addition to the above mentioned regional pricrities, Great South will consider

individual council areas of focus (as per appendices) when developing the
Statement of Intent.

Funding Commitments

At the 16 June 2023 meeting of the JSC, it was resolved that it would be useful to
move towards a three-year LOE with an annual review to enhance certainty and
consistency for Great South. Therefore, this LOE outlines the anticipated funding and
expectations from shareholders for the next three years, however this does not
preclude potential changes upon the annual review.

The table below outlines the contract funding commitments remaining the same for
the next three years. However, the core funding shows a 4.3% BERL increase, year on
year. As outlined above, these commitments are subject to annual reviews.

= T
y 8 K 3 8 g 3£

2024/25 € ° ° £ o

8 g "3 ° -
ICC 920,000 920,000 TBA
SDC 451,527 250,000 701,527 TBA
GDC 60,000 60,000 TBA
ES - - TBA
TOTAL 1,431,527 250,000 1,681,527 1,981,000* 3,662,527*
2025/26 1,681,527 2,066,183* 3,747,710*
2026/27 1,681,527 2,155,029* 3,836,556

*Note: this amount is not final until all councils have individually confirmed an
increase in core funding for 2024/2025.

Letter of Expectation process

In response to the LOE, we request that Great South produces a SOI as required by
section 64 of the Local Government Act (the Act). Its purpose is to provide a clear
public strategic statement of the Board's intentions and is a key planning document
for both Great South and its shareholders. When developing the draft SOI, Great
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South should have regard to the specific content requirements outlined in Schedule
8 of the Act.

The LOE and SOI process provides an opportunity for dialogue between the Board
and the shareholders and supports a constructive and co-operative working
relationship.

No surprises

We expect that Great South keeps its shareholders informed (through the JSC) on a
‘no surprises’ basis regarding matters that may have financial, political, or public
implications for shareholders, in particular for the funding councils and their
ratepayers.

Core funding
Confirmation of core funding amounts is not provided in this letter of expectation.

Invercargill City Council and Southland District Council have approved an increase
in core funding to $1,981,000. Gore District Council and Environment Southland have
not considered an increase to core funding.

Additionally, as you will be aware, a review is currently being undertaken pursuant to
Schedule 4 of the Southland Regional Development Shareholders Agreement.

Once this review is complete, we will be in a position to provide confirmation of core
funding amounts and their allocations in follow up correspondence.

Next steps

On receipt of this LOE, the JSC requests that the Board provides its draft SOl by 1
December 2024. The JSC, along with its individual shareholders, will then consider the
draft SOI and provide feedback. This feedback will inform the final SOI which is
expected to be received by the JSC by 30 June 2024.

Yours sincerely

Mayor Rob Scott
Chair - Great South Joint Shareholders Committee

cc: Chami Abeysinghe, Great South
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Appendices
Appendix A — Class A Shareholder Areas of Focus
Appendix B - Southland District Council Priorities

Appendix A - Class A Shareholder Areas of Focus
Invercargill City Council
Invercargill City Council supports an increase in provision for core funding to $1,981,000.

Invercargill City Council supports an allocation of $920,000 for contract funding. Great
South are to come back to Council with their breakdown of the costs within the four
areas of Economic, Business, Tourism and Events Development and to include the costs
of Beyond 2025 implementation within this figure.

Invercargill City Council notes that the estimated funding allocation from Council for
Great South for 2024/2025 will be $1.94 million. Council invites the Great South Board to
suggest a different breakdown of funding in their view better achieves outcomes, not to
be greater than $1.94 million.

Additionally, Invercargill City Council specifically requests:

e A no surprises approach between the Great South Board and Joint Shareholders
Committee and Class A shareholders;

e That the Great South Board seek Shareholder agreement ahead of establishing
tfrading organisations;

o The future Great South SOIs meet the legal requirements for a CCTO as outlined
in the Local Government Act, including providing investment return provisions

e That shareholders and Great South Board work together to finalise and execute
the required governance documentation for the financial year 2023/2024.

Southland District Council
Southland District Council supports an increase in provision of core funding to $1,981,000.
Southland District Council has endorsed $701,527 for contract funding for 2024/2025.

The areas of focus which Southland District Council requires Great South to prioritise are
outlined in appendix A.

Southland District Council invites the Great South Board to suggest an allocation of
contract funding that achieve better outcomes for the Southland District. Great South
is invited to outline this in the draft Statement of Intent and Southland District Council
will respond during the feedback process.

Gore District Council
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Gore District Council has endorsed $60,000 for contract funding for 2024/2025 to
advancing specific Gore District Council strategies and initiatives specifically related to
council’s following programmes:

. Workforce Plan
. Welcoming Communities initiative
. Ready for Living strategy

Gore District Council’'s Community Strategy Manager will liaise with Great South to
negotiate project specific deliverables on a contract for service basis to the value of
the $60k contract funding allocation.

Environment Southland

Environment Southland is a contributor to core funding (as opposed to contract funding)
and therefore requests that Great South continue to prioritise its core function of regional
development.

Environment Southland has previously raised process concerns regarding the science
and research being undertaken by Great South and potential overlap of roles and
responsiblities. While there have been attempts by both agencies to improve processes,
these concerns continue to remain relevant. In particular, we are concerned about
potential duplications of effort with Environment Southland undertaking a significant
amount of environmental monitoring and research in the region in accordance with its
regulated responsibilities.

Further, it can be difficult to assess the crediblity of the science and research being done
by Great South as we do not tend to see reports detailing the methodologies used,
credentials of the authors or peer review processes.

We note Great South is yet to have a conversation directly with Environment Southland
regarding potential increases in core funding costs and look forward to this occurring in
the near future.

Additional priorities and comments from the Joint Shareholders Committee (including
from Class B shareholders)

Community Trust South

Community Trust South wishes to reiterate the importance of designing the Statement of
Intent to meet agreed regional priorities as identified in this letter of expectation.

Invercargill Licensing Trust
The thoughts and priorities of Invercargill Licensing Trust are aligned with those of

Invercargill City Council that focus on the promotion and economic development of
Invercargill city.
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APPENDIX B

Southland District Council Priorities

The areas of focus which Southland District Council requires Great South to prioritise

are:

Greater diversification and resilience within the economy and wider
community

o Support to strengthen and retain existing businesses by both assisting
with diversification and encouraging greater self-reliance and long-
term sustainability.

Economic development (without compromising environmental and
community outcomes)

o Bringing new business into the region. This support should be tailored to
encouraging businesses into the south and limited once businesses
have committed to the south. Council would also like to focus on
identifying opportunities to further ‘green’ the region's economy.

Great digital connectivity

o Poor connectivity and access to reliable sources remains a difficulty,
particularly for the rural community. Council considers it a continuing
priority to identify other opportunities that could be explored in this
area.

Tourism projects (including Visit Fiordland)

o Council would like to see a continued focus on positioning Southland
to take advantage of tourism opportunities such as agritourism and
recreational activities.

Continued collaboration and information sharing between shareholders

o Continuing a collaborative process, information sharing and alignment
of activities/shared projects will help avoid duplication of effort and
ensures mutual benefits of access to data and resources. A priority is
also ensuring a continued Ngai Tahu partnership lens on all regional
strategic development.

Transition planning — Beyond 2025 coordination

o Council considers it a priority that Great South ensures its transition
planning for the region remains broadly focused ensuring that
Southland has the ability to be adapfive.

Housing

o Establishment of a Regional Housing Portal and Regional Housing

Forum
Carbon forestry

o Provide SkyTEM water resilience research and assessment.
Partnership/support for information collection, industry/business
perspectives, advocacy with regard to Council direction and
facilitation of implementations.
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Data
o Support improved investment from central government, facilitate
information sharing, collaboration and maintenance of
collected/collated data.
Aquaculture and alternative land use
o Support the EAG and new business. Collaboration and maintenance
of collected/collated data.
Energy
o Establishment of a regional coordinated energy steering group to
implement the Murihiku Southland Energy Strategy 2022-2050. Ensure
planning frameworks and spatial plans incorporate new energy
investment, consider geographical location and resilience of networks.
Roading and transport
o Ensuring industry, roading and transports current and future needs are
enabled through fit for purpose infrastructure.
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Compliance report from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 in accordance with Drinking Water Quality
Assurance Rules 2022, Water Services Regulations 2022 and the Water Services Act 2021.

SDC drinking water supplies

SUPPLY NAME SUPPLY ID

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat EAS002
Edendale/Wyndham EDE001

Lumsden/Balfour L.UMO001

Manapouri MANO006

Mossburn MOS002

Ohai/Nightcaps OHA009

Orawia ORA003

Otautau OTA001

Riverton RIV001

Te Anau TEA002

Tuatapere TUA001

Winton WINO001

APPROVED BY: BILL WITHAM SIGN
TITLE: Asset Manager Water DATE
PREPARED BY: DANICA AMABA SIGN
TITLE: Water Safety Officer DATE
REVIEWED BY: BEVAN MCKENZIE SIGN
TITLE: Three Waters-Project Manager DATE
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Water Supplier
Southland District Council (SDC)

Equipment used for the assessment

Manual sampling and SCADA reporting through WaterOutlook

Assessment method

Drinking Water Quality Assurance Rules 2022

Water Services (Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand) Regulations 2022
Water Services Act 2021

Document and information

Drinking Water Quality Assurance Rules 2022

Water Services (Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand) Regulations 2022
Water Services Act 2021

Post: PO Box 903
Invercargill 9840
Courtier: 15 Forth Street

Invercargill, 9810

E-mail: emailsdc@southlanddc.govt.nz
Phone: 0800 732 732
Fax: 0800 732 329

Int phone: +64 3 211 2500
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1 Introduction

This report contains the drinking water compliance report for Southland District Council (SDC) supplies
for the reporting period of 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024. SDC supplies water to Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat,
Edendale/Wyndham, Lumsden/Balfour, Manapouri, Mossburn, Ohai/Nightcaps, Otautau, Orawia,
Riverton, Te Anau, Tuatapere, and Winton.

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary for the Southland District Council on the Drinking
watet supply schemes compliance in accordance with the Drinking Standard New Zealand 2022.

This report is an internal self-report that is required as per the SDC drinking water safety plans for each
scheme. This report has not been reviewed or assessed by external parties.

2 Terminology

For the 23/24 year, the drinking water supply has been assessed for compliance/non-compliance under
the set standards.

Non-compliance
e from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024

o drinking water supply that does not comply with the requirements of the Water Services
Act 2021 and compliance requirements set in the Water Services (Drinking Water Standard
for New Zealand) Regulations 2022 (DWSNZ 2022) and Drinking-Water Quality
Assurance Rules 2022 (DWQAR 2022).

3  Summary of the Water Services Act 2021 compliance

The duties of the Water Supplier (SDC) under the Water Services Act 2021 section 30 regarding preparing
and implementing drinking water safety plans that comply with legislative requirements have been met.

The water supplier works collaboratively with the drinking watet contractor (Downer Ltd.) to implement

the drinking water safety plans for all the registered drinking water schemes. The 12 drinking water safety
plans have been lodged with Taumata Arowai (New Zealand water regulator) via Hinekorako (self-service
portal for drinking water suppliers) to comply with legislative requirements.

The drinking water safety plans have been updated to align with the DWSNZ 2022 and DWQAR 2022,
including the source water risk management plan, risk assessment, supply emergency tesponse plan,
situation/incident tesponse and improvement schedule.
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4 Compliance report in accordance with Drinking Water Quality Assurance

Rules 2022, Water Services Regulations 2022 and the Water Services Act 2021

4.1  Drinking water quality standards to which drinking-water supplies must monitor

and/or comply
Source water abstraction Water treatment plant Distribution system
Bacterial monitoring Bacterial compliance Bacterial monitoring
Chemical monitoring Protozoal compliance Backflow protection monitoring
Physico-chemical monitoting | Chemical compliance Hygiene procedures monitoring
Cyanobacteria monitoring Cyanotoxin compliance Residual disinfection compliance
Radiological monitoring Disinfection by-product compliance

Plumbosolvent compliance

The drinking water quality assurance rules set the rule modules for the water suppliers to follow to meet
compliance. The rule modules is a structured module covering general rules (G), source water (S),
treatment systems (T) and distribution systems (D)to meet specific drinking water supply categories. SDC
Drinking water supplies fall under networked supplies except for Orawia, as it follows the Very Small
Communities module. (VSC)

The table below outlines the drinking water supply categories and the rule modules to follow to
demonstrate compliance.

Categories of drinking water supplies Rule modules that compliance is

demonstrated against

1. Very Small Communities

Up to 25 people, or up to 50 people for up to 60 | VSC
days in any 12 month period.

If supplying drinking water to a planned event | G + TDWS (for the duration of the
which increases the total population to more planned event)

than 50 people.

2. Networked Supplies
Small (26 — 100 people) G+S1+T1+D1
Medium (101 - 500 people) G+S2+T2+D2
Large (>500 people) G+S3+T3+D3

Figure 1. Very Small Communities and Networked Supplies and Rule Modules that apply to them (Tanmata
Arowai, 2022)

Page |6






image62.png

Drinking water supplies consolidated compliance report

4.2  Summary of drinking water compliance in accordance with Drinking Water Quality
Assurance Rules 2022 for 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 report period

Source water abstraction:
Radiological Monitoring;

The Edendale, Lumsden, Mossburn, Otautau, Te Anau, Tuatapere and Winton source water supplies
complied with the Groundwater Source Monitoring - radiological requirements 2022 to 2032. The
radiological (gross alpha and beta activities) and chemical (potassium) tests were completed on 12 January
2023 for these seven groundwater sources. Tests are required once every 10 years.

The previous radon test (including total alpha and total beta concentration) in Riverton Well 1 was
completed on 13 March 2013, and the results comply with the source radiological requirements under
DWSNZ 2022. The compliance report includes the potassium test and updated radiological results for
Riverton bores was completed on 12 September 2023 and complied with the DWQAR 2022. Water from
the Riverton wells is identified as a secondary supply/backup source and has not been used for the
compliance period. Note that these tests are only completed every 10 years as per the DWQAR 2022.

The monitoring of bactetial, physico-chemical, determinands from July to June 2024 was compliant.
S3 source water monitoring

Figure 2. §3.3 Rule module (Drinking Water Quality Assurance Rules 2022)

All source waters must be monitored for the
determinands and at the frequencies set out in Table

16 and Table 18.

Figure 2. $3.3 Rule module (Drinking Water Quality Assurance Rules 2022)

Table 16. S3 Source Water Monitoring Determinands

Determinand Determinands monitored at each abstraction point® 3¢ Sampling
Group Frequency
Bacterial E. coli and total coliforms 2 per Month
Physico- Iron, manganese, colour, nitrate Monthly
chemical Alkalinity, antimony, arsenic, barium, cadmium, calcium, Annually3s
chloride, chromium, copper, lead, magnesium, mercury,
nickel, sodium, sulphate.

Figure 3. DWQAR 2022 Table 16 (Drinking Quality Assurance Rules 2022)

Page |7






image63.png

Drinking water supplies consolidated compliance report

Table 18. S3 Raw Water Monitoring Parameters

Parameters monitored in raw water from each source or combined Sampling
sources’® Frequency

Class 1 and Interim Class 1

Physico- Conductivity, pH, Turbidity Monthly for 12
chemical months
Every 6 months if
there is no
significant

variation in the
initial 12 months

of samples®®
Classes 2, 3 and 4
Physico- Conductivity, pH, Turbidity Continuous™*
chemical

Fignre 4. DWQAR 2022 Table 18 (Drinking Quality Assurance Rules 2022)

Eight drinking water schemes (with over 500 population) are required to continuously monitor the
conductivity, pH and tutbidity of the source raw water (DWQAR 2022 Rule S3.3, Table 18). Curtently,
these are not being monitored as SDC does not have the equipment/instruments and metets. A project
(10490) has been placed into the Long-Term Plans to install the equipment/instrument and meters for
cach of the eight schemes. It is expected that this monitoring equipment on each of the raw water sources
will be installed 25/26 year to monitor the raw source water as requited in the new rules.

4.2.1 Drinking water plants — treatment

The Edendale/Wyndham, Lumsden/Balfour, Manapouri, Mossburn, Ohai, Otautau, Riverton, Te Anau,
Tuatapere and Winton treatment plants complied with CHEMICAL requirements from 1 July 2023 to
30 June 2024. Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat operates under T2 and no chemical sampling is required.

Ohai Treatment Plant (TP00090) met the bacterial compliance via DWQAR 2022 Disinfection with
Chlorine and used membrane filtration for its protozoal compliance and achieved four log credits.

The following Treatment Plants were compliant with the BACTERIAL requirements through UV
treatment:

e Hdendale/Wyndham Treatment Plant (TP03002);
e Lumsden/Balfour Treatment Plant (TP03001),

e Mossburn Treatment Plant (TP00474);

e Orawia Treatment Plant (TP00471);

e Otautau Treatment Plant (TP00083);

e Riverton Treatment Plant (TP00089);

e Te Anau Treatment Plant (TP00087);

e Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456); and

e Winton Treatment Plant (TP00091);

Ohai Treatment Plant (TP00090) did not meet the bactetial compliance under T3.2 and T3.4 on 20-21
September 2023 for not meeting T10 contact time for at least 5 minutes.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet the bacterial compliance under T3.18 on 11
September 2023 for 66 minutes, on 21 February 2024 for 60 minutes, on 11 March 2024 for 213 minutes,
and on 22 May 2024 for 31 minutes due to high turbidity.
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Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat Treatment Plant (TP00475) did not comply with bacterial treatment due to
high water turbidity.

The following treatment plants were compliant with the PROTOZOAL requirements:

e Edendale/Wyndham Treatment Plant (TP03002);
e Te Anau Treatment Plant (TP00087)

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat Treatment Plant (TP00475) did not meet compliance due to failure to meet
the bacterial and protozoal requirements. There is no treatment process in Eastern Bush other than
chlorine dosing.

Lumsden/Balfour Treatment Plant (TP03001) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 and
T3.90 on 28-29 February 2024 and on 1-4 March 2024 due to UVT failure. On 13 March 2024, T3.89 and
T3.90 non-compliance was shown due to the UVT meter was serviced.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet protozoal compliance under 'T3.88 on 11
September 2023, 21 February 2024, 11 March 2024, and 22 May 2024 due to high turbidity.

Mossburn Treatment Plant (TP00474) did not meet the protozoal compliance under T3.89 and T3.90
on 28-30 September 2023, 1-4 April 2023, 27 November 2023, and 10-15 December 2023 due to low
UVT value.

Ohai Treatment Plant (TP00090) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.74 on 14 July 2023 due
to no integrity test done.

Otautau Treatment Plant (TP00083) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 on 18 July 2023
and 6-7 November 2023 due to UVT meter failure.

Riverton Treatment Plant (TP00089) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 on 26 June 2024,
the non-compliance period was due to the UVT meter was serviced. Non-compliant for 2880 minutes.

Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456) did not meet the 4-log protozoal requirements. 3-log credits
were achieved through UV treatment, and no log credits were claimed from cartridge filters. Although the
filters are in serviced, no log credits were achieved because the old-style cattridge filter housings are not
certified. New UV units are planned to be installed in the 25/26 year that will meet 4-log protozoa
requirements.

Winton Treatment Plant (TP00091) did not meet compliance under T3.89 on 6-7 November 2023 and
on 24 January 2024 due to low UVT.
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4.2.2 Distribution systems
Thete was one microbial E. Coli limit exceedances occurred on 3 November 2023 (Refer to Appendix-
A). This E. Coli exceedance was detected in Eastern Bush distribution zone. SDC notified Taumata
Arowai, Regulatory Team Leader, about the exceedance incident on 15 November 2023. E. Coli re-testing
was done for three consecutive days and indicated no E. Coli and total Coliforms in the Eastern Bush/

Otahu Flat source, treatment plant, Easter Bush, and Otahu Flat reticulation and reservoir. (Refer to

Appendix C)

On March 22, 2024, Dichloroacetic acid exceedance was reported in Nightcaps and Waitio reticulation.
(Refer to Appendix D). SDC notified Taumata Arowai about the exceedance incident on 25 March 2024
and on the same day Dichloroacetic acid and other haloacetic acid determinands as per rule D3.22 in the
DWOQAR 2022 were re-tested. The results were released on 9 April 2024 with no Dichloroacetic acid
exceedances on both Nightcaps and Wairio reticulation (Refer to Appendix E)

All the distribution systems met the bacterial monitoring. The distribution zones below met compliance
for the residual disinfection:

D3 Rules:

e Edendale (EDO01ED);

e Wyndham (ED001WY);

e Lumsden (LUMOO1LU);

e Balfour (LUMO01BA);

e Te Anau (TEAOO2TE); and
e Tuatapere (TUAOO1TU);

D2 Rules:
e Eastern Bush (EASO02EB;
e Otahu Flat (EAS0020F;

e Manapouri (MANOOGMA); and
e Mossburn (MOS002MO).
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Source water rules — assurance purposes
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water.
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7.1 Summary of bacterial and protozoal assessment
(1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024)

The following Treatment Plants were compliant with the bacterial requirements through UV treatment:

e Edendale/Wyndham Treatment Plant (TP03002);
e Lumsden/Balfour Treatment Plant (TP03001),

e Mossburn Treatment Plant (TP00474);

e Orawia Treatment Plant (TP00471);

e  Otautau Treatment Plant (TP00083);

e Riverton Treatment Plant (TP00089);

e Te Anau Treatment Plant (TPO0087);

e Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456); and

e Winton Treatment Plant (TP00091);

Ohai Treatment Plant (TP00090) did not meet the bactetial compliance under T3.2 and T3.4 on 20-21
September 2023 for not meeting T10 contact time for at least 5 minutes.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet the bactetial compliance under T3.18 on 11
September 2023 for 66 minutes, on 21 February 2024 for 60 minutes, on 11 March 2024 for 213 minutes,
and on 22 May 2024 for 31 minutes due to high turbidity. A new plant is currently being constructed,
planned to be operating on October 2024.

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat Treatment Plant (TP00475) did not comply with bacterial treatment due to
high water turbidity.

The following treatment plants were compliant with the PROTOZOAL requirements:

e Edendale/Wyndham Treatment Plant (TP03002);
e Te Anau Treatment Plant (TPO0087)

Eastern Bush/Otahu Flat Treatment Plant (TP00475) did not meet compliance due to failure to meet
the bacterial and protozoal requirements. There is no treatment process in Eastern Bush other than
chlorine dosing.

Lumsden/Balfour Treatment Plant (TP03001) did not meet protozoal compliance under 'T3.89 and
T3.90 on 28-29 February 2024 and on 1-4 March 2024 due to UVT failure. On 13 March 2024, T3.89 and
T3.90 non-compliance was shown due to the UVT meter was serviced.

Manapouri Treatment Plant (TP00473) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.88 on 11
September 2023, 21 February 2024, 11 March 2024, and 22 May 2024 due to high turbidity.

Mossburn Treatment Plant (TP00474) did not meet the protozoal compliance under T3.89 and T3.90
on 28-30 September 2023, 1-4 April 2023, 27 November 2023, and 10-15 December 2023 due to low
UVT value.

Ohai Treatment Plant (TP00090) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.74 on 14 July 2023 due
to no integrity test done.

Otautau Treatment Plant (TP00083) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 on 18 July 2023
and 6-7 November 2023 due to UVT failure.
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Riverton Treatment Plant (TP00089) did not meet protozoal compliance under T3.89 on 26 June 2024,
the non-compliance period was due to the UVT meter was serviced. Non-compliant for 2880 minutes.

Tuatapere Treatment Plant (TP02456) did not meet the 4-log protozoal requirements. 3-log credits
were achieved through UV treatment, and no log credits were claimed from cartridge filters. Although the
filters are in serviced, no log credits were achieved because the old-style cartridge filter housings are not
certified. New UV units are planned to be installed in the 25/26 year that will meet 4-log protozoa
requirements.

Winton Treatment Plant (TP00091) did not meet compliance under T3.89 on 6-7 November 2023 and
on 24 January 2024 due to low UVT.
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8.1 Summary of E. coli and total coliforms sampling results (Distribution zones)
(1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024)

Distribution
zZone name

DWO code

Number of Samples
DWQAR 2022
(1 sample per week)

Number of actual
samples collected

Maximum interval 9
days between
samples

Drinking water supplies consolidated compliance report

Minimum number of
5 days of the week
used

Number of

transgressions

Compliance

D3 Distribution Zones

dendal

Edendale EDE001ED . 55 7 5 0

Wyndham EDE001WY a 55 7 0
5

Lumsden LUMOO1LU 1 5 7 0
5

Lumsden/Balfour | LUMO01BA 1 53 7 5 0

Ohai OHA009OH 1 55 7 s 0

Nightcaps OHAO00NT 1 55 7 s 0

Waitio OHAO09WA 1 55 7 s 0

=
Otautau OTA0010T 1 52 5 0
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Distribution
Zone name

Riverton

DWO code

RIVOOIRI

Number of Samples
DWQAR 2022
(1 sample per week)

Number of actual
samples collected

Maximum interval 9
days between
samples
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Minimum number of
5 days of the week
used

Number of
transgressions

Compliance

Te Anau TEA002TE 1 54 7 5 0
Tuatapere TUA001TU 1 53 7 5 0
Winton WINOOTWIT 1 53 7 5 0

Distribution
zone name

Eastern Bush

D2 Distribution Zones

DWO code

EAS002EB

Number of Samples
DWQAR 2022
(Monthly)

Number of
Samples collected
(Quarterly
samples)

Maximum 12 days
duration between
samples

Compliance period
(1 Month)

Number of
transgressions

Compliance

Otahu Flat EAS0020F 1 12 12 1 0
Manapouri MANOOGMA 1 12 12 1 0
Mossburn MOS002MO 1 12 12 1 0
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Very Small Community DWO code Sampling Frequency DWQAR 2022 Compliance
(Every 6 Months)

Distribution Zone

Owaria ORAO030OR
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9810 Irvercargil Client described sample as: Raw Water
NEW ZEALAND ‘Sampling Point code:  |_DO_MPS_S00300 Sampéing Point name- Manapouri Scurce. 500300
Phaos Recaption Date & Time:  OX/11/2023 9:58 Roception temperature: 77 °C
Emat Ot Wescrnoner oo e ‘Start Date & Time:0a/11/2023 09:58 ‘Analysis Ending Date: ou112023
‘Contact for your orders:  James Thomica “Order code- EUNZO4-00150320 Sampled Date & Time  OW/11/2023 06:51 Temperature when sampled 144
Contract. Downer Souhland DC Sampiing Sampleris) Mumay De Groot Samgiing Purpose Mornitoring
‘Submission Reference:  Morehly 311112023 Purchase Order Number. 2813577 [ RIS o0 STSCICRRORS 1
[[sampLE cooe £17-2023-00099646 ] “ZMINK (MPN) of and coli using Colilert-18 97-Wel Quanti-Tray2000
Coent Reforence ‘Woasburm Source pree— “ 20 m 1
Ciiont described sampie as. Raw Water o @ Jiosionsy Pt < 1 P00 Somtcaton
‘Sampling Peint code: | DO_MES_G02140 - - ! ! e
Racaption Dato & Tana: 0112023 958
Analysis Start Date & Time: 03112003 0058 SAMPLE CODE 817-2023-00099650 ]
Sampled Date 8 Time 0112023 0742 “Cient Raforence 5 - Manapour TP
Samplerts) Murray De Groot Cont described sampts as.: Drinking Water
I RESULTS ] Point code: DO_TPo0&73 Point name. Pant,
TROATS
“ZMUNK MPN) of Total ana ‘Reception Date & Time: 03112023 9:58 Reception lemperature: 77°C
- « Anatysis Start Date & Time:03/11/2023 0058 ‘Analysis Endieg Date. ow112023
Total Cotherr - Date&Time  OX1U2023 0643 Temperaturs when sampled 129
‘Sampierts) Muray De Groot Samgiing Purpose Monorng
[_sameLe cooe 817-2023.00099647 ] | RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS ]
"Cuent Raference: 2 - Mossbum TP “ZMUNS (MPN) of Total Coborms and col using Colilert- 18 51-Well Quanti-Tray
Ciont described sampie as. Drinking Water Encharichia ot @ N30 mi 1 MAY o <TOMPNNOO M ¢ Matioesl Gusdebrn
‘Sampling Poimt code. 1_DO_TP00474. ‘Sampding Point name. Mossbum Treatment Plane. TPODS74 PP— « NP0 1 Mt < 1PN v Chant Spuciicaton
Racoption Dato & Tuna: 03112023 958 Reception temperature. 77 °C
Analysis Start Date & Time:03/11/2023 0.5 Analysis Encing Date. out12023
‘Sampled Date & Time. oa1u2023 07:39 Temperature when sampled 107 [_sampLE cooe #17-2023-00099651 ]
Sampleris) Murray De Groot Samgiing Purpose Monitoring ‘Clant B-
[ RESULTS oa ‘SPECIFICATIONS. ] - Yeater
Point code: 1_DO_MANDOEMA Point name: MANDOEMA
ZMINJ Enumaration (MPN) of Total Coborms and Escherichia col using Colilert-18 51-Well Quanti-Tray Recoption Date & Time: 03112023 9:58 Roception temperature: 77 °C
Eachancee oo - MPN00 1 Lol " 7/ iimd Start Date & Time:03/11/2023 00-58 ‘Analysis Ending Date ow112023
Yot Cothorra - o0 m 1 Pt < 1 m Date&Time  OX1U2023 0634 Temperaturs when sampled 147
Samplers) Muray De Groot Samgiing Purpose
|a-[;cnng 817-2023-00099648 ] [ RESULTS LOQ SPECIFICATIONS |
Caent Reference. 3 - Massbum Reticulaton CZMUNS MPN) of CoWorms and coli using Colilert-18 51-Well
ch-l-.n-..-xﬁ;:..l.- Eacharichia ot @ s M
‘Sampling Poiet code: | DO_MOS00ZMO ‘Sampéing Point name. Mossbum Retcuiation, MOS002MO - .
Reception Date & Tume: 0112023 9:58 Roception temperature: 77 °C TG ! SS—— ' ! i S Clanty
Anatysis Start Date & Time:03/11/2023 09.58 ‘Analysis Ending Date. ou112023
Sampled Date 8 Time  0A/142023 0751 Temperature when sampled 12 &
‘Samplerts) Murmay De Groot Samgiing Purpose Moniorng
| RESULTS Loa 'SPECIFICATIONS ]
ZMINJ Enumaration (MPN) of Total Cobforms and Escharichia col using Colilert-18 51-Well Quanti-Tray
Eucfing ELS Limited Eurofin ELS Limited Phone (Christehurch) +64 3 343 5227
43 Deoit Diive: 142 Esk Swwet Phone finvercargill)  +64 3 214 4040 e Es Les 5:::a:u-m
e Irveraryt 8840 wwrm euroting.co.nz o e
ey ZEALAND Chrisichurch 7614 NEW ZEALAND
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AR-ZINC-03062201  Page 3of 5 AR-ZINC03062201  Page 4of5
Food & Water Testing Food & Water Testing
#17.2023 00099682 ] Log J
7 - Eastern Bush Source
*-‘-*‘_- 1 MA S 1OMPNIIO v Netionel Gusdebne
‘Sampling Peint code: 1_DO_E8S_S00001 Sampéing Point name. Eastern Bush Sousce, 500301 1 Pt < 1 PN it < Chart Spmciicaton.
Reception Date & Time: 03112023 958 Reception lemperature. 77
Anatysis Start Date & Time: 03112023 00 58 ‘Analysis Endg Date ow12023
‘Sampled Dats & Time 0112023 05 54 Temperature when sameled 11 0 I
Sampleris) Muray De Groot Samping Purpose Morarng
[ Loa ] ‘Sampiing Point name: Riverton Treatment Plant, TPO00S0
“ZMUNK 18 97- ‘Reception Date & Time:  OV1V2003 958 Reception e
‘Encrancoes con 2 [r—— 1 Analysis Start Date & Time: 03112023 08 58 ‘Analysis Endng Date N2
vwpw— sr2 "o m . it < 1 x ATime  owivags 0358 Temperature when sameled 147
Samplerts) Murmay De Groot Samging Purpose Momareg.
[(SawPLe cooe #17.2023.00099653 ] RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS ]
Chent Reforence 8 - Eastern Bush TP ONWILT Total Aksminem
‘Cient described sampée as. Drinking Water pr— oo o oo Movel 1mgh ¢ Nationad Gusdebrn
Sampling Peint code:  |_DO_ESP_TPOO4TS Sampéng Point name. Eastern Bush Treatment Plart. @NW148 Total Antimony
TPOTS Aty (30} son2 e aoa MAV o002 gt/ Metiomad Guaduir
Recoption Date & Tume: 0112023 058 Reception temperature. 77 °C
Anatysis Start Date & Time: 03112023 0958 ‘Analysis Endin Date. ow112003 @NW1S4 Total Cadmium
‘Sampled Date & Time 112003 0548 Temperature when sampled 14 1 Comproem () am ot o001 MAY A D004 Yl ¢ Netiomad Cuscuire
Sampleris) Muray De Groot Samping Purpose Montarng @NWIST Total Chromium
) ] Crvamam (C1) o ot o [T T I T—rp——
Total Coppar
1 Ao <1 OMPNI ¢ Nationad Cusdubrn Copper (Cu) ooz —t oo AV oA 2mgt < Nationad Cusdubrn
M Pt < 1 < Chert Total Lead
ey amn o aom AV 001 gt < Nt Gt
] Total Mercury.
Mercury (Mg _—_— ot oo
ONWIET Total Nickel
Sampdng Point name Eastern Bush Retculaton ok o0 - ot e
Easazes
‘Reception Date & Time: 03102023 958 Reception lemper ature 17c
| BEPORT SIFORMATION
Anatysis Start Date & Time: 03/ 112023 00 58 Analysis Endeg Date owr2023
‘Sampled Date & Time. C1V2003 05:18 Temperature when sampled 134 Tt n———-n-a___ .
Sampleris) Muray De Groot Sampeng Purpose Morarng L ”
[ oa | [ st = At vt
2N -n--—-,
Enchancies o »s M0 1 Ao C_{J
Vot Cotborrea. e M0 Mot < 1 MR m X Clart Spucificaton NWIAT Total Aburmirksen: APYA Orde Edition 3125 8 e SIE Toral Asmony: APYA Crirm Eddtion 3125 8 et
NWIS4  Totel Cademium: APHA Onbee Ediion 3129 8 mod. NWIST  Totel Cheomismm: APHA Orsine Esition 3124 8 mos
817-2023-00099655 ] WIS Total Copper: APHA Crine Edtion 3124 8 mod. SWIET Total Laad: APHA Crsine Etion 3128 8 mod.

_:"' ~Clues Pt Rufiniution WIS Total Marcury: APHA Onkes Ediion 3125 8 med SIET  Total Micket: APHA Orie Edition 3125 8 med.
~--* Ortnking Water Dary o DR Enchenichis col-Totel Collorms € (Weter) (NZ) <1 =2
e o Sampang Point name: Ot Pt Retciodason. MPN108 mi @) Cotmrt 18.0. SUEWW 2238 APHA 248 0 T ) ot 160 S 23238 AR
Anatysis Start Date & Time 03/ 11/2023 09 58 ‘Analysis Endng Date owrn023
‘Sampled Date & Time oa1u2003 0625 Temperature when sameled 1 3 Sguatue
Samplerts) Murmray De Groot Samping Purpose Montoarng

[ Loa ]
“ZMUNS Tray
Ewofins ELS Limited Ewrchfins ELS Limied ‘Ewofins ELS Limites. ‘Ewrcfins ELS Limited Phone (Christchurch) +64 3 343 5227
43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Steet b, e 43 Dewoit Dvive: 142 Esk Sweet Phone invercangill 54 3214 4040 o
Roseston Invercargit 9810 =2 Roteston %610
o D> ot | N/
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Appendix B: Follow-up E. colisamples

& eurofins

AR-23-NC-030099-01  Page 10f3 AR-23-NC-030099-01  Page 20f3
Food & Water Testing Food & Water Testing
ANALYTICAL REPORT [ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS
*ZMINJ Enumeration (MPN) of Total Coliforms and Escherichia coll using Collert-18 81-Well Quanti-Tray
REPORT CODE AR-23-NC-030099-01 REPORT DATE 07/11/2023 Escherichia col MPN/100 mi 1 MAVof <LOMPNAOOmI v Netional Guidetine
“Total Coliforms “ MPN/100 mi 1

Attontion  Downer New Zealand Limited

David Wilson | samPLE CODE 817-2023-00121653

158 Liddel Street Reception Date & Time:  06/11/2023 16:23 Reception temperature: ~ 8.3°C

9810 Invercargl Analysis Start Date & Time:06/11/2023 16:23 Analysis Ending Date: 071172023

NEW ZEALAND Sampled Date & Time  06/11/2023 12:10 Sampler(s) ow
Phono Sampling Purpose Follow-Up
Email David. Wilson@downer.co.nz [ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS
:m’_‘” your orders: m;rgm:m DC Sampiing Order code: EUNZCH-00156184 *ZMINJ Enumeration (MPN) of Total Colforms and Escherichia coll using Collrt-18 81-Well QuantTray

Purchaso Ordor Number: 2837298 Eu-v: e col ° MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/100 mi v National Guidoline
Total Colforms MPN/100 mi 1
| sampLE cope 817-2023-00121649
Recoption Date & Time:  06/11/2023 1623 Reception temperature: 83 °C REPORT NFORMATION
Analysis Start Dato :06/11/2023 16:23 Analysis Ending Date: 07/1172023
,:,.,,.:‘M Date & Time e 06/11/2023 10:30 s.m':::m" " ow Tosts with Maximum Allowablo Value (MAV) assigned are measured against the Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand.
Sampling Purpose Follow-Up a Results that exceed a MAV are shown as ** (Un y) g the water may not be safe to drink
[ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS LIST OF METHODS

"ZMINJ Enumeration (MPN) of Total Colitorma and Escharichla coll using Collert-18 1-#ell Quant. Tray
MAV of <1.0 MPN/100ml v/

ZMINJ Escherichia coli-Total Coliforms E (Water) [NZ] <1 >201

Escherichia coll MPN/100 mi 1 National Guideline MPN/100 mi (0) Colllert-18-Q: SMEWW 52238; APHA 24th
Total Collforms “ MPN/100 mi 1 Edition
Signature
| sAmpLE cope 817-2023-00121650
Rocoption Date & Time:  06/11/2023 16:23 Reception temperature: 8.3 °C
Analysis Start Date & Time:06/11/2023 16:23 Analysis Ending Date: 07/11/2023
Sampled Date & Time ~ 06/11/2023 1055 Sampler(s) ow
Sampling Purpose Follow-Up
| RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS Tonia Bulling  Head of Southern
*ZMINJ Enumeration (MPN) of Total Coliforms and Escherichia col using Collet-18 51-Well QuantiTray Laboratory (KT.P)
Escherichia col MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/100ml ' National Guideline EXPLANATORY NOTE
Total Collforms “ MPN/100 mi 1 DTestis not accredited NIA means Not Applicable:
@Test is subcontracted within Eurofins group and is accredited Not Detected means not detecied at or sbove the Liit of
@Test is subcontracied within Eurol d s not accredted Quantiication (LOQ)
| sampLE cope 817-2023-00121651 Tontis o uisido Eurotns group and s accredt LOQ means Linit of Quantiicaton and the unit of LOQ s the same as
Recoption Date & Time:  06/11/2023 16:23 Reception temperature: 8.3 °C ®Tost is subcontracted outside Eurofins group and is not accredited the result unit
Analysis Start Date & Time: 06/11/2023 16:23 Analysis Ending Date: 07/11/2023 ®Test result is provided by the and Is not ’;(Umllh'lﬁnﬂ/) means does not meet the specification
Sampled Date & Time ~ 06/11/2023 11:15 Sampler(s) ow @ Tested at the sampiing paint by Eurofins and is not acoredited y) means meels the
Sampling Purpose Follow-Up ®Tested at the sampling point by Eurofins and is accredited
[ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS @Tost s RLP accrodited
®Testis subcontracted within Eurofins group and is RLP accrediled
*ZMINJ Enumeration (MPN) of Total Collforms and Eschericha collusing Coller-18 51-Wl Quantt-Tray +Tost was performed at Eurofins ELS Limiled, 142 Esk Strest, Invercargil
Escherichia coll MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/100mi v National Guideline
Total Colforms “ MPN/100 mi 1
[ sampLE cope 817-2023-00121652
Roception Dato & Time:  06/11/2023 16:23 Reception temperature: 8.3 °C
Analysis Start Date & Time: 06/11/2023 16:23 Analysis Ending Date: 07/11/2023
Sampled Date & Time  06/11/2023 11:45 Sampler(s) oW
Sampling Purpose Follow-Up
Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited Phone (Christchurch) +64 3 343 5227 Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited Phone (Christchurch) +64 3 343 5227
43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Street Phone (Invercarglll) +64 3 214 4040 e tOire, 43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Street Phone (Invercarglll)  +64 3 214 4040
Rolleston Invercargll 9810 www.eurofins.co.nz Rolleston Invercargill 9810 www.eurofins.co.nz
Christchurch 7614 NEW ZEALAND IANE Christchurch 7614 NEW ZEALAND
NEW ZEALAND 5, y NEW ZEALAND
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AR-23-NC-030099-01 Page 30f 3
Food & Water Testing

The Cusiomer acknowiedges and accepts tha: (a) where Eurofinsis not responsible for sampiing, the testresult) in this report apply only 1 the samp as received.
Customer s solely responsibie for the sampiing process and warants that e sampi provided to Eurofns s reprasenative of the ko / batch from which the samples were
rawn; an (b) Eurofins expresses no opinion and accepts no liabilty i respect of the Customer's production process or homogeneiy of the product.
This document can only be reproduced in ull.
The tests ars identiied by a ive-digh cods, their descrpson is availaie on requeet.

doos ot apply o o graphical
Urioss rwin sotd o s i oot ope (ocept ot sconiactad s r promed 43 Do Drve, Rceson, Chscrurch, NEW ZEALAND.
‘The laboratory i ot responsible for the information provided by the cusiomer which can affect the valiity of the fesult, for example: samphing information such as.
date/ime, fieid data etc.
Eurofins may subconiract the performance of part or all o the Services 10.a third party and the Customer authorises the release of allinformation necessary 1 the third
party forthe provision of he Services.
ANl samples become the property of Eurofins o the extent necessary fo the performance of the Services.
Eurofins wil not b required 1o store samples and may desiroy or otherwise dispose of the sampies orreturn the samples {0 the Customer (atthe Cusiomer's cost n all
respects) immediately folowing analyss of the samples.
1fthe Customer pays for storage of the samples Eurofins wil take commercialy reasonable steps 10 store the samples for the agreed period in lerms of industry practice.
‘The Eurofins water sampling services uses IANZ approved methodology based on AS/NZS 5667 and / or best practics 0 collect and transport samples thatare i for the
purpose of analytical testing. The laboratory is not responsibie for sampling actvities unless explicitly indicated by the statement "Sampled by Eurofins” on the report for

water samples.

Tha ustmar ackonfadge i o Srvices e pidd sng b cure it o iy nd et devlopad sed garsly apl by ot s oo
anaiysis, Eurofns shal use of care in providing the Services.

T ot rdcad s e o ko ot e it sariesproved .o on bl , o Cuser sl o h ene o b
‘Customer who s rsponsibie for acing as it s0es it on the bass o s report. Neither Eurofns nor ny of it oficers, empioyeos, agents o subcontractors shal ba lable
10 the Customer norany tirdparty fo any actons taken or no taken on the basi of i report o for any incorTect resuls arising rom unclear, eoneous,incomplete,
misieacing o faise information provided 0 Eurofns.

Eurofins shall have no kabilty for any indrect or consequential s inclucing, without imitation, oss of production,loss o contracts, 0ss of profits,loss of business or
osts incurred from business interupiion, oss of oppeoriuny, 1098 of goodwil o damage 1 reputaton and costof product recal(incudng any osses sufered as a rsult of
isbution of the Cusiomer’s products subjec of the Servioss prior 1o thereport being released by Euroins). It shal further have o abiy for any loss, damage or
xponses arising rom the clams of any thid party (INCUNG, wilhout miaton, Procuct abikty caims) that may be incurred by the Custome.

Eurofins General Terms and Conditons apply.

'END OF REPORT

Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited Phone (Christchurch) +64 3 343 5227

43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Street Phone (Invercarglll) +64 3 214 4040 T
Rolleston Invercargill 9810 www.eurofins.co.nz N

Christchurch 7614 NEW ZEALAND jlacrA _ 1ANIE

NEW ZEALAND z 3 ¢

o casot”
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Appendix C: Three Day re-tests

&% eurofins &% eurofins

‘AR-23-NC-030275-01 Page 10f3

Food & Water Testing Food & Water Testing
ANALYTICAL REPORT [ L= 10g SPECIFICATIONS ]
“ZMINg Enumeration (MPN) of Total Coliforms and Escherichia coll using Colllert-18 §1-Well Quanti-Tray
REPORT CODE AR-23-NC-030275-01 REPORT DATE 08/11/2023 Escherchia cob MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.OMPN/00m v Naional Guidefine
Attention  Downer New Zealand Limited Total Coliforms bl MPN/100 mi 1
David Wilson
159 Liddel Street [ sampLe cooe 817-2023-00122167
‘Sample described as:  Otahu Flat
9810 Invercargill Reception Date & Time:  07/11/2023 15:45 temperature:  5.7°C
NEW ZEALAND ‘Analysis Start Date & Time:07/11/2023 15:45 ‘Analysis Ending Date: 08/1172023
ignd o Sampler(s) Dale ‘Sampled Date & Time 07/11/2023 14:40
Emal David Wison@downerco nz
Contact for your orders:  James Thomton Order code: EUNZCH-00156331 [ RENNTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS ]
Contract: Downer Soutiand DC Sampling “ZMINY Enumeration (MPN) of Total Coliforms and Escherichia coll using Colllert-18 §1-Well Quanti-Tray
7123 Purchase Order Number: 2856927 Escherichia cok MPN/100 mi 1 M/ of <LOMPNIOOM v Nafional Guideline
@ pie
[CsamprLe cope 817-2023-00122163 ] Total Celforms o !
‘Sample described as: "Eastemn Bush Sample
Reception Date & Time:  07/11/2023 15:45 Reception temperature: s7°C REPORT INFORMATION
Analysis Start Date & Time: 07/11/2023 15:45 ‘Analysis Ending Date: 08/11/2023 Tests with Value (MAV). e ‘against the Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand.
‘Sampler(s) David ‘Sampled Date & Time 0711172023 14:40 Resuts are considered unsatisfactory %) when they d not comaly with the speciied MAV or Aesthesc Vake ncating the waler may nol be safe
[ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS ] Resuts sre considered satafactory (¥) when they comply wih he spercifed MAY or Acsihets Valus
ZMING Enumeration (PN of Total Collforms and Escherichis coll using Colllert18 §1-Well Quanti-Tray
Escherichia cob MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/10OmI v National LIST OF METHODS
Total Coliforms. “ MPN/100 mi 1 ZMINJ - Escherichia coli-Total Coliforms E (Water) [NZ] <1 >201
MPN/100 mi (0) Colilert-18.Q: SMEWV 52235; APHA 24th
[_sampLe cope 817-2023-00122164 Editon
Sample described as:  Paycentre Signature
Reception Date & Time:  07/11/2023 15:45 Reception temperature: 5.7 °C
Analysis Start Date & Time:07/11/2023 15:45 Analysis Ending Date: oa/11/2023
Sampler(s) David Sampled Date & Time. 0711172023 14:20
[ RESULTS Loa SPECIFICATIONS ]
“ZMIN Enumeration (PN of Total Collforms and Escherichis coll using Colllert18 §1-Well Quanti-Tray
Escherichia cob MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/100mi v National Guideline Tonia Bulling h-!d&-m;m
“Total Coliforms “ MPN/100 mi 1 Luis)
SxpuaTORY NoTE
Test is not accredited .‘l—ﬂmw
[sampLe cooe 817-2023-00122165 ] @Test s  within Euroéins group and is. means not at or above the Limit of
.. Bush @Test is subcontracted within Eurclins. and is not accredited wilﬂu)
Reception Date & Time:  07/11/2023 15:45 Reception temperature: 5.7 °C - S A e LOQ means Limit of Quaréification and the it of LOQ is the same as
Analysis Start Date & Time:07/11/2023 15:45 Analysis Ending Date: 08/11/2023 @Testis subcontracted outside Eurofins group and is not accredited ;"_'“"
Sampler(s) David ‘Sampled Date & Time. 0711172023 14:00 @ Test remutis provided by the customer and is not sccrediled % Unasiaciory) mears does ot mes he specicaton
[ RESULTS ) SPECIFICATIONS ] @ested at the sampling peint by Eurclins and i not ) e mecta e
@7esied at the samping pont by Eurofine and is scoredited
“ZMung Enumeration (MPN) of Total Colforms and Escherichia collusing Colllert18 §1-Well Quanti-Tray @Test s RLP accredited
[Escherichia cob MPN/100 mi 1 MAV of <1.0MPN/100mE v National Guideline
Total Coliforms « MPN100 mi 1
[ sampLE cone 817-2023-00122166 ]
Sample described as:  Eastem Bush Plant
Reception Date & Time: ~ 07/11/2023 15:45 Reception temperature: 57 °C
Analysis Start Date & Time:07/11/2023 15:45 Analysis Ending Date: o0a/11/2023
‘Sampler(s) Dale ‘Sampled Date & Time 0711172023 14:20
‘Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited Phone (Christchurch) +64 3 343 5227 Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited
43 Detrot Drive 142 Esk Street Phone (Invercargill) +64 3 214 4040 _ " ATy, 43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Street (B,
Roseston Invercargll 9810 ‘www_eurofins.co.nz Rosestor Invercargll 9810
::n;n-m 7614 NEW ZEALAND 1ANE :-;n;nm 7614 NEW ZEALAND IANE

o
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'END OF REPORT

Eurofins ELS Limited Eurofins ELS Limited
43 Detroit Drive 142 Esk Street
Rosleston Invercargl 9810
Chistchurch 7614 NEW ZEALAND

NEW ZEALAND
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Report Code NC-24-NC-000712-01

Downer New Zealand Limited
158 Liddel Street
Invercargill, 9810
NEW ZEALAND

Attention David Wilson

This is not a certificate of analysis.
Only results not meeting specification limits are shown.

Validated 220032024

‘Submission Reference Quarterly /324
Reception Te 84°c

Product Type Drinking Water
Temperature when 15.8

‘sampled
Sampling Purpose Moritoring

Client Sample Code © - Wairio Reticulation

‘Sampled Date & Time 08/03/2024 04:34:00
‘Sampler(s) Murray De Groot

‘Sampled By Eurofins Faise

Test name: 'NWO1W Haloacetic Acid | Internal Method based on USEPA

Measurement Resuits:
‘Specification Details
—_Dichloroacetic acd 0053 mg_Fail __MAV of0.05 mp/__ Drinking Water Standard for New Zealand
Sample 817-2024-00021561 Client Sample Code 10 - Nightcaps Reticulation
‘Sampling point Nightcaps Reticulation
Supply Component OHAQDSNI

‘Sampled Date & Time 08/03/2024 04:52.00
‘Sampler(s) Murray D Groot

‘sampled
Sampling Purpose Monitoring Sampled By Eurofins Faise
Test name: 'NWO1W  Haloacetic Acid | Internal Method based on USEPA
Measurement Resuits:
‘Specification Details
Dichloroacetic acid 0.074 mg! Fail  MAVOf0.05mgl  Drinking Water Standard for New Zealand
‘Signature
Tonia Bulling Hesd of Southem
Laboratory (KT.P)
= s Gy GO paraon o GOy Ty
‘9N n 35 gt 70 C358 S EWOENS be 130 o CONSEQUENES CMSgES INCAING. 1. o6 pofs, e to meet

procuction anising fom 23 fepart Th document shal not e FEproOUCEY EXCept In A and reiates G 1 e Nems iested. Unless Nacated cerwise e tests were.
petomed on e sampies 36 received.
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Food & Water Testing
REPORT CODE AR-24-NC-015290-01 REPORT DATE 1610512024
Attention  Downer New Zealand Limited
David Wilson
159 Liddel Street
9810 Invercargill
NEW ZEALAND
Phone Copy to: De Groot (muray degroot@downer.conz)
Email __David Wison@downercorz
Contact for your orders:  James Thomton Order code: EUNZCH-00177633
Contract: Downer Southland DC Sampiing
Submission Reference:  Wairia/Nightcaps HAA Testing Purchase Order Number: 2858027
[ sampLE cope 817-2024-00057490 ]
Product: Drinking water
Sampling Point code:  |_DO_OHADDIWA Sampling Point name: Wairio Reticulation, OHAOOGWA
Reception Date & Time: 13052024 10:15 Reception temperature:  05°C
Analysis Started on: 1310672024 13:30 Analysis Ending Date: 1610672024
Sampled Date & Time 12052024 04:38 ‘Sampler(s) Murray de Groot
Sampling Purpose Monitoring
[ RESULTS (UNCERTAINTY) LOQ SPECIFICATIONS
@NWO1X HAA MAV Sum Ratio
‘Sum of halososte acds " =01) 03
®NWOIW Haloacetic Acid
Bromochioroacetic acd <0005 (£0.002)mg? 0005
Chioroacetic ackd s mgl 0005
Dibromoacetic acid <0.005 (£0.002)mgh 0005
DicH tic acid 0034 (£0.004) mgA 0005 MAV of0.05mg! v National Guideline
Monabromaaces acd <005 mgl 0005
Trichloroacetic acid. 008 (£0.01) mgt 005 MAVOf02mgl ¥ National Guideline
[ sampLE cope 817-2024-00057491
Product: Drinking water
Sample Reference Reticulation
Sampling Point code:  |_DO_OHAQ08. Point name: 2 OHADORNI
Reception Date & Time: 13052024 10:15 05°C
Analysis Started on: 1310672024 13:30 Analysis Ending Date: 1610672024
Sampled Date 8 Time  13,05/2024 0453 ‘Sampler(s) Murray de Groot
‘Sampling Purpose Monttoring
[ RESULTS (UNCERTAINTY) _L0Q SPECIFICATIONS
@NWOIX HAA MAV Sum Ratio
‘Sum of haloscste acds 09 =01) 03
@NWOIW Haloacetic Acid
Bromochioroacetic acd <0.005 (£0.002)mgh 0005
Chloroacetic acid <0005 mgl 0005
Dibromoacetic acid <0005 (£0.002) mgt 0005
Dichloroacetic acid 0028 (£0.003) mgA 0005 MAV of0.05mg1 ~  National Guideline:
Monobromoacstie acd <05 mgl 0005
Eurofins ELS Limited Phone +64 33435227
43 Detroit Drive www.eurofins.co.nz
Rolleston
Christchurch 7814
NEW ZEALAND

Drinking water supplies consolidated compliance report

& eurofins
Food & Water Testing

‘AR-24-NC-015290-01 Page 20f3

[ RESULTS (UNCERTAINTY) LOQ SPECIFICATIONS

Trichloracetic acd 005 (£0.01) mgt 005 MAVGf02mgl v National Guidsiine

Tests with Value (MAV) are ‘against the Drinking Water Standards for New Zealand.
Results are considered unsatistactory() when they do not comply with the specified MAV or Aesthetic Value indicating the water may nt be safe to
drink.

Resus are () when they comply with MAV or Value.
LIST OF METHODS
NWOTW Haloacetic Acid: Intemal Method based on USEPA. NWOTX  HAA MAV Sum Ratio: Intemal Method based on USEPA
LC-MSMS Calculation
Signature
Tonia Bulling  Head of Southem
Laboatory (KTP)
EXPLANATORY NOTE
@Testis not accredted NIA means Not Applicable:
@Test s subcontracted within Eurofins group and s ‘means not at or above the Limit of
@Test s subcontracted within Eurofins group and i not accredited Quantficaton (LOQ)
@Test s subcontracted outside Eurofins group and is acoredited $0Qmeans Lmé of Quantfcation and e unt o LOG s e same 25
result unt.
®Test is subcontracted outside Eurofins group and is not accredited
x
@Test resuit s prowidd by the customer and is not accredited ,““‘f“"”'"""""""""“""‘“’""
DTested atthe by Eurofins and is not. means mests the.
®Tested at the sampling point by Eurofins and is accredited.
@Test is RLP accredited
and is RLP accredited
Eurofins ELS Limited Phone +64 33435227
43 Detroit Drive www.eurofins.co.nz
Rolleston
Christohurch 7814

NEW ZEALAND
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AR-24-NC-012397-01
Food & Water Testing
ANALYTICAL REPORT

Page 10f2

REPORT CODE AR-24-NC-012397-01 REPORT DATE 2010412024
Attention  Downer New Zealand Limited

David Wilson

159 Liddel Street

9810 Invercargill

NEW ZEALAND
Phone ‘Copy to: De Groot (mutay degroot@downer conz)

Email ‘David Wison@downer conz

& eurofins

‘AR-24-NC-012397-01 Page 2of 2
Food & Water Testing

ToniaBulling  Head of Southem

Laboratory (KTP)
EXPLANATORY NOTE

@Testis not accredted /A means Not Applicable

@Testis subcontracted within Eurcfins group and s accredited Not Detected means not detected a or above the Limit of
@Test is subcontracted withn Eurcfins group and s not accredited Quantficaton (LOQ)

Contact for your orders:  James Thomton ‘Order code: EUNZCH-00173056
Contract: "Downer Southland DC Sampling
‘Submission Reference: ‘Ohai WTP Metals 10/4/24 Purchase Order Number: 2856027
[ samPLE cone 817-2024-00043907 ]
‘Ohai WTP - TPO0020

i
§

‘Sampling Point name: Ohai Treatment
Reception temperature: 226 °C

é
]
E

@estis outsde Eurofins group and is accredited
®Testis subcontracted outside Eurofins group and is not accredted

LOQ means Limé of Quantfication and the unt of LOQ s the same s
the result unt

@Test result is provided by the customer and s not accredited
@Tested atthe samping point by Eurofins and is not

®Tested atthe samping point by Eurofins and is acoredited
@Test is RLP accredited.

@ Test s subcontracted within Eurofins group and is RLP accredited
The Cusiomer 3cAnOWISO3e5 33 3C0Ep'S Tat (3) W EWTDITS S ot FESPONSIe ox S3Mping, e ¢ FSUs) 1 114G 1e00r 3pgsy O 1 The Samp 3 Fecehved.

X (Unsatistactory) means does not meet the specfication
vi meets the

Analysis Stated on: 100042024 Analysis Ending Date: | 2004/2024 o 7 ) S s o o 4 S iy R s s gy T
Sampler(s) David Wiison Sampled Date & Time 10042024 1050 T Gt oy o roams - o=
hetests.  Teigtcade, mer s request
[ RESULTS [T) i et 9 s oo e et
®NW147 Total Aluminium uriess 3t mesin s 2t £3 Dt e, Rovesion, ChviSEUER, NEW ZEALAND.
y 1 can $act e vy f e, o S fomaton such 25
Auminum 0z mgt 0005 e, feig cata e -
y o 1 paty 20 e Customer aunorses he reease of 31 ot necessay b e
®NW148 Total Antimony oy e e e at Land
tmony (58) ! e o sore ‘oeetry i e e Customer (a the Cusiomer's costin al
’ oo = o
®NW154 Total Cadmium pary wemat iy ey Bt o e
Cadmium (Cd) <0001 mgl 0001 lnu-m-pqnunn_;u sess e
5557 2 orbest practce ‘e prpose of
@NW157 Total Chromium aaytcastng. 3 rping s oy Eurotns” on e repart o water saries.
Chromium (Cr) <0001 mgt 0001 The Cusiomer acknOWSa0es tiat he Senvioes are provided Using he curTent state of technoiogy and apoledy
®NW153 Total Copper Thi report s procuced Son e ';'mmu..u—_--qnn-nun
Copper (Cu) 0008 mgl 0002 Customer ‘acing 2s  sees . any of 1 ofcers, ‘agents o supcortractors nal e Ik
bnmmwmmhm’mmwrﬁmmn—muﬂuhm’m_ﬁmmmmm
@NWIE1 Total Lead miseatng o tase Informaton rovies o
Lesd (b) 0005 ot am n—smmmuqlnq-nu of contracs,
i bt e i, e eyl Gl nge o sy e (g o i a2 st o
ONWI65 Total Mercury snea Eurtr) 1 ooty oy o danage
Merary o) am ot oo T " ~
@NWIE7 Total Nickel
Nickel (N) oom ! oot
LIST OF METHODS END OF REPORT
NWI47 Total Aluminium: APHA Onine Editon 3125 8 mod. NW148 Total Antimony: APHA Oniine Editon 3125 8 mod.
NWIS4  Total Cadmium: APHA Onéine Edition 31258 mod. NWIS7 Total Chromium: APHA Oniine Edtion 3125 8 mod.
NW152 Total Copper: APHA Online Edition 3125 B mod. NW181 Total Lead: APHA Online Edition 3125 B mod.
NWIES Total Mercury: APHA Orfine Editon 3125 B mod. NWIE7 _Total Nickel: APHA Oriine Edion 3125 8 mod.
Signature
Eurofins ELS Limited Phone 8433435227 Eurofins ELS Limited Phone +64 33435227
43 Detrot Drive: www.eurofins.co.nz 43 Detroit Drive: ‘www.eurofins.co.nz
Rolleston Rolleston
Christohurch 7614 Cruisichrch 7614
NEW ZEALAND

NEW ZEALAND
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Summary of submissions received on the Initial Representation Proposal

reorganisation in the Southland region.

Southland Did not Supports review of local government Local government reorganisation is outside of the

Federated Farmers | indicate reorganisation in the region. The scope of the representation review.
representation review is an opportunity
to engage with the community on options
for the future.

Peter McDonald Yes Council should consider its role in Support and oversight of the community boards is
supporting community boards to outside of the scope of the representation review.
encourage local democracy and local
voice and ensure there is oversight of the
boards.

Candidate profiles should indicate an This is outside of the scope of the representation
intent to adopt the code of conduct. SR
The number of appointed members on
larger community boards should be
1ncres.ised so dtmiel v comellom et | g, p., engagement showed thete is community
appointed.
support for the current number of members
appointed to community boards.

Robina Johnston Yes Otamita Valley Representation should unify as a Some of these areas are outside of the Southland
community: Waitane, Waimumu, Te District and within the Gore District and therefore
Tipua, Upper Charlton and Otamita. outside of the scope of the representation review.

Bruce Ford Yes Expressed support for local government | Local government reorganisation is outside of the

scope of the representation review.
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Annabel Riley No Should reduce number of elected Earlier engagement showed there is community
members support for the current number of elected members
Local government reorganisation is outside of the
Expressed support for local government | S¢°P¢ of the representation review
reorganisation
Te Ao Marama Yes Nga Runanga are seeking a long-term There was an option prior to the representation
Incorporated pattnership approach and that review for Council to establish a Maori ward. The
opportunities for Mana Whenua to participation of Mana Whenua in governance is
patticipate in decision making at a outside of the scope of the representation review as
governance level would be welcomed and | set out in the Local Electoral Act 2001.
encouraged. Staff support a long-term partnership approach to
enable Maori participation in decision making, in
accordance with section 81 of the Local
Government Act.
David and Eileen | No Drummond A community of interest exists between | Community engagement and research indicated that
Lewis Drummond and Otautau and Riverton Drummond’s community of interest is with Winton
and the Oreti Ward and Community Board and
most of the submissions received support the
boundary change to move Drummond to the Oreti
Ward and Community Board.
Atrdlussa Yes Otamita Valley,
Community Board Nokomai Station
Fiordland Yes
Community Board
Northern Yes Nokomai Station
Community Board
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Oraka Aparima Yes Taramoa
Community Board
Tuatapere Te Yes
Waewae
Community Board
Stewart Yes Stewart Island/Rakiura needs Staff support this theme. Stewart Island/Rakiura is
Island/Rakiura representation as a community of special | both an isolated and island community and its
Community Board interest. current representation was supported in the
community engagement.
Wallace Yes Dunearn, Drummond
Community Board
Waihopai Toetoe Yes
Community Board
Batry McDonald Yes Drummond Has social and business connections to Staff suppott this theme. Community engagement
the east and Winton. Supports and research indicated that Drummond’s
Drummond and Oreti Plains ateas being | community of intetest is with Winton and the Oretl
incorporated into Oreti Community Watd and Community Board and most of the
boatd. submissions received support the boundary change
to move Drummond to the Oreti Ward and
Community Boatd.
Grant Kincaid Yes Drummond More in common with Winton Staff support this theme. Community engagement

and research indicated that Drummond’s
community of interest is with Winton and the Oreti
Ward and Community Board and most of the
submissions received support the boundary change
to move Drummond to the Oreti Ward and
Community Board.
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Lisa Beatson Yes Drummond
Petra Laughton Yes
Stephen Keach Yes Boundary changes seemed logical to Staff support this theme. Feedback was that the
improve the groups of communities of boundary changes were necessaty to ensure that
interest communities were not divided between wards or
community boards or not grouped together without
sufficient commonalities.
Greg Boyle Yes Dunearn
Marilyn Allen Yes Dunearn
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Public Notice of the Final Representation Proposal

Southland District Council has reviewed its representation arrangements and on 16 July 20924 resolved to
adopt an initial representation proposal for public consultation. Public consultation on the initial
representation proposal ran from 26 July to 2 September 2024 and 22 submissions were received, 19 of
the submissions supported the proposal.

All submissions that were within the scope of the representation review were considered by Council. A
number of submissions requested changes to the proposal; the themes of these submissions and the
reasons why Council did not accept them are as follows:

That the number of councillors Council did not accept this submission because it received
appointed by Council to the community | other feedback expressing supporting for maintaining the
boatds be increased for some of the current number of councillors appointed to community
community boards boards

That the number of elected members be | This was not accepted by Council because there has been
reduced community support for the current number of elected
members, and Council considers that the current number of
elected members is approptiate to provide effective
representation across the District

That the current ward and community | This was not accepted by Council because there was

boatd boundaty near Drummond be feedback and submissions from the community in support of
maintained this boundary change. Council considers that the boundary
change is necessaty to ensure that communities are grouped
together appropriately and not divided between community
board or ward areas

On 23 October 2024, after considering all of the submissions received, Council resolved to adopt the
initial representation proposal as its final representation proposal with no amendments.

Council representation

Council will comprise 12 councillors and the mayor.

The District will be divided into five wards and the members of Council, other than the mayor (who will
be elected at large), will continue to be elected by ward.

The names of the wards, the number of members elected by each ward and the population that each
member will represent is as follows:

Mararoa Waimea 8,940 3 2,980
Waiau Aparima 7,870 3 2,623
Oreti 9,200 3 3,067
Waihopai Toetoe 6,600 2 3,300
Stewart Island/Rakiura 430 1 430
Total 33,040 12

*based on Statistics New Zealand 2023 population estimates
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The boundaries of the five wards are shown in the attached map.

The five wards reflect the following communities:

Mararoa Waimea Ardlussa, Athol, Balfour, Benmore, Caroline, Cascade Creek, Castlerock,
Cattle Flat, Dipton, Dipton West, Five Rivers, Freshford, Garston, Glenaray,
Glenure, Hollyford, Jamestown, Josephville, Kingston Crossing, Lintley,
Longridge, Longridge North, Lowther, Lumsden, Manapouri, Mandeville,
Milford Sound, Mossburn, Nokomai, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Parawa, Potters,
Riversdale, Saint Patricks, Sandstone, Te Anau, The Dale, The Key, Waikaia,
Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside

Waiau Aparima Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Colac
Bay/Oraka, Crawfords, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Ermedale, Fairfax, Feldwick,
Five Roads, Gladfield, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Happy Valley, Hazletts,
Heddon Bush, Isla Bank, Longwood, Merrivale, Monowai, Nightcaps, Ohai,
Opio, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Otahuti, Otaitai Bush, Otautau, Pahia,
Papatotara, Piko Piko, Port Craig, Pourakino Valley, Pukemaori, Raymonds
Gap, Ringway, Riverton/Aparima, Round Hill, Ruahine, Scotts Gap, Spar
Bush, Taramoa, Te Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Thornbury, Tihaka,
Tinkertown, Tuatapere, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waikouro, Waimatuku,
Waipango, Wairio, Wakapatu, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush, Wrights Bush

Oreti Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton
West, Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope,
Heenans Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel,
Lorneville, Mabel Bush, Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo,
Oreti Plains, Otapiri, Otapiri Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush,
Ryal Bush, South Hillend, Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock
Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown, West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton.

Waihopai Toetoe Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale,
Fortification, Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Haldane, Kamahi, Kapuka,
Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry,
Mimihau, Mokoreta, Mokotua, Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara,
Oteramika, Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills,
Redan, Rimu, Seaward Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka,, Timpanys, Titirog,
Tokanui, Tuturau, Waiarikiki, Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka,
Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands, Wyndham.

Stewart Island/Rakiura | All of Stewart Island Rakiura, the surrounding Islands and Ruapuke Island

Section 19V(2) of the Local Electoral Act 2001 (LEA) requites the population each member represents be
within the range of 2,753 +/- 10% (2,478 — 3,029), unless particular community of intetest considerations
justify otherwise. The wards comply with section 19V (2) of the LEA with the exception of:

o the representation of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Ward, but as provided by section 19V (3)(a) of the
LEA, Council considers that it warrants one councillor as it is an island community.

o the representation of the Oreti and Waihopai Toetoe Wards, but as provided by section 19V(3)(a)
of the LEA, Council considers that compliance would limit the effective representation of
communities of interest either by dividing communities of interest or uniting communities of
interest with few commonalties.
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Community board representation

The current community board arrangement with nine community boards will be retained. The boundaries
of the nine community boards are shown in the attached map.

The names of the community boards and the communities that they represent are set out in the table
below:
Ardlussa Community Ardlussa, Balfour, Cattle Flat, Freshford, Glenaray, Glenure, Kingston Crossing,

Board Longridge, Longridge North, Mandeville, Potters, Riversdale, Saint Patricks,
Sandstone, Waikaia, Waimea, Waiparu, Waipounamu, Wendon, Wendonside

Fiordland Community Cascade Creek, Hollyford, Jamestown, Manapouri, Milford Sound Piopiotahi, Te
Board Anau, The Dale, The Key

Northern Community Athol, Castlerock, Five Rivers, Garston, Josephville, Lintley, Lowther, Lumsden,
Board Mossburn, Nokomai, Parawa

Oreti Community Board | Benmore, Branxholme, Browns, Caroline, Centre Bush, Dipton, Dipton West,
Dunearn, Drummond, Gap Road, Glencoe, Grove Bush, Hedgehope, Heenans
Corner, Hokonui, Kauana, Lady Barkly, Limehills, Lochiel, Lorneville, Mabel Bush,
Makarewa, Makarewa Junction, Northope, Oporo, Oreti Plains, Otapiri, Otapiri
Gorge, Pukemutu, Rakahouka, Roslyn Bush, Ryal Bush, South Hillend,
Springhills, Te Tipua, Thomsons Crossing, Tussock Creek, Waitane, Wallacetown,
West Plains, Wilsons Crossing, Winton.

Wallace Takitimu Aparima, Avondale, Bayswater, Crawfords, Five Roads, Gladfield, Heddon Bush,
Community Board Isla Bank, Nightcaps, Ohai, Opio, Otahuti, Otautau, Ringway, Scotts Gap, Spar
Bush, Tinkertown, Waikouro, Wairio, Woodlaw, Wreys Bush

Tuatapere Te Waewae | Birchwood, Blackmount, Clifden, Cromarty, Eastern Bush, Feldwick, Happy
Community Board Valley, Merrivale, Monkey Island, Monowai, Orawia, Orepuki, Otahu Flat, Pahia,
Papatotara, Piko Piko, Port Craig, Pukemaori, Raymonds Gap, Round Hill, Te
Oneroa, Te Tua, Te Waewae, Tuatapere, Waihoaka.

Oraka Aparima Colac Bay Oraka, Ermedale, Fairfax, Gropers Bush, Gummies Bush, Hazletts,
Community Board Longwood, Otaitai Bush, Pourakino Valley, Riverton Aparima, Round Hill,
Ruahine, Taramoa, Thornbury, Tihaka, Waianiwa, Waihoaka, Waipango,
Wakapatu, Wrights Bush.

Waihopai Toetoe Ashers, Brydone, Bush Siding, Chaslands, Curio Bay, Dacre, Edendale,
Community Board Fortification, Fortrose, Glenham, Gorge Road, , Haldane, Kamahi, Kapuka,
Kapuka South, Kennington, Longbush, Mataura Island, Menzies Ferry, Mimihau,
Mokoreta, Mokotua, Morton Mains, Niagara, Ota Creek, Otara, Oteramika,
Oware, Pine Bush, Progress Valley, Pukewao, Quarry Hills, Redan, Rimu, Seaward
Downs, Slope Point, Te Peka,, Timpanys, Titiroa, Tokanui, Tuturau, Waiarikiki,
Waikawa, Waikawa Valley, Waimahaka, Waimatua, Waituna, Woodlands,
Wyndham.

Stewart Island/Rakiura | All of Stewart Island Rakiura, the surrounding Islands and Ruapuke Island
Community Board

The Oreti Community Board will comprise eight members. Seven members will be elected and one
member will be appointed by Council representing the Oreti Ward. The Oreti Community Board will have
three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each subdivision will represent
is show in the table:
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Oreti Community Hokonui 1,240 1 1,240
Board Midlands 5,630 4 1,408
Makarewa 2,330 2 1,165
Total 9,200 7 1,314

*based on Statistics New Zealand 2023 population estimates

The population represented by each member elected by the Makarewa subdivision of the Oreti
Community Board does not fall within the range of 1,314 +/- 10% (1,183-1,445) in accotdance with
section 19V(2) of the LEA. Council considers, as provided under section 19V(3)(a), that compliance with
section 19V(2) would limit the effective representation of communities of interest either by dividing
communities of interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

The Northern Community Board will comptise seven members. Six members will be elected and one
member will be appointed by Council representing the Mararoa Waimea Ward. The Northern Community
Board will have three subdivisions for electoral purposes. The population the members of each
subdivision will represent is shown in the table:

Northern Parawa-Fairlight 260 1 260
Community Board =t Dome 800 2 400
Mid Dome 1030 3 343
Total 2090 6 348

*based on Statistics New Zealand 2023 population estimates

The population represented by each member elected by electors of the Parawa-Fairlight and West Dome
subdivisions of the Northern Community Board does not fall within the range of 348 +/- 10% (312-382)
in accordance with section 19V (2) of the LEA. Council considers, as provided under section 19V (3)(a),
that compliance with section 19V (2) would limit the effective representation of communities of interest
cither by dividing communities of interests or uniting communities of interest with few commonalties.

The Waihopai Toetoe Community Board will comprise eight members. Seven members will be elected and
one member will be appointed by Council representing the Waihopai Toetoe Ward. The Waihopai Toetoe
Community Board will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

The Fiordland, Ardlussa, Tuatapere Te Waewae, Oraka Aparima, Wallace Takitimu and Stewart
Island/Rakiura Community Boards will ecach comprise seven members. Six members will be elected and
one member will be appointed by Council representing the ward in which the boatd is situated. These
boards will not be subdivided for electoral purposes.

Further information:

Further information including the initial representation proposal and maps may be viewed and obtained
from the Southland District Council’s head office 15 Forth Street, Invercargill and from any Southland
District Council area office.
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Relevant information is also available on Council’s website www.southlanddistrictcouncil.govt.nz

Appeals

Any person who made a submission on Council’s initial representation proposal may lodge an appeal
against Council’s decision. An appeal must relate to matters raised in that person’s submission on the
initial representation proposal.

Appeals must be made in writing and received by Council no later than 5pm on Friday, 29 November
2024.

1. email to submissions@southlanddc.govt.nz

2. post to: Southland District Council, PO Box 903, Invercargill 9840 ATTN: Representation Review

3. drop off to: Southland District Council, head office, 15 Forth Street, Invercargill, or at any
Southland District Council area office.

Cameron Mclntosh, Chief Executive

25 October 2024
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

SOUTHLAND REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY LIMITED
TRADING AS GREAT SOUTH

PO Box 1306

Invercargill 9810

(03) 211 1400

www.greatsouth.nz

DIRECTORS

Ian Collier (Chair)
Jason Franklin
Jeff Grant

Lucy Griffiths
Peter Heenan
Rachel Lindsay
Maria Pera

REGISTERED OFFICE
Southland Regional Development Agency Limited
143 Spey Street, Invercargill

BANK
Westpac New Zealand

AUDITORS
KPMG (on behalf of the Office of the Auditor General)

SHAREHOLDERS

Class A Shareholders
Invercargill City Council
Southland District Council
Gore District Council
Environment Southland

Class B Shareholders

Invercargill Licensing Trust
Mataura Licensing Trust
Southland Chamber of Commerce
Southern Institute of Technology

MEMBERS
Community Trust South

LEGAL STATUS

Southland Regional Development Agency Limited ("SRDA")
was incorporated in New Zealand on 29 March 2019 under the
Companies Act 1993 (NZBN 9429047359185)

COMPANIES OWNED BY THE SOUTHLAND REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY LTD.

Space Operations New Zealand Limited - 100%

New Zealand Functional Foods Limited — 49%

PURPOSE OF THIS STATEMENT OF INTENT

In accordance with the requirements of Section 64(1) of the Local
Government Act 2002, this Statement of Intent publicly states

the planned activities, intentions and performance measures for
Great South, Southland Regional Development Agency, for the next
three years. It is written in response to the shareholders’ letter of
expectation, received 10 November 2023.

Great South is tasked with leading the future growth aspirations of
Southland on behalf of its shareholders, stakeholders and the wider
Southland community.

Great South Statement of Intent - 2024

- 2027
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Foreword

We are pleased to present our Statement of Intent
for 2024 -2027.

With the recent news confirming the future of the New Zealand Aluminium
Smelter at Tiwai Point for the next 20 years, Southland has good reason to look
forward with certainty and confidence rather than living with the uncertainty
we have endured over the last few years. There are also a number of new
large-scale projects in the pipeline, all which will contribute to a resilient local
economy.

Whilst | will always be an optimist by nature, there is no doubt that we are all
facing challenging times as New Zealand responds to and recovers from a
recessionary economic cycle. We enter this new financial year with each of our
shareholding councils looking at ways to keep rates increases to a minimum
Great South are not immune to these measures, and we have also made
operationally structural adjustments in light of this changing landscape

Along with our partners, we are progressing the various pieces of work that
make up our guiding document, Beyond 2025 Southland. Data storage, Space
Operations, housing, and an aquaculture strategy are key projects we will work
on this year.

Great South is leading the design and development of a Data and Insights
Southland Hub (DISH), which will be a definitive tool for anyone requiring in-
depth understanding of our region. It will be accessible to our residents as well
as prospective businesses, investors, and those charged with decision making
for our region

Tourism continues to be a key diversification opportunity for Murihiku
Southland, and we have an incredibly exciting opportunity to make a nationally
significant mark in this space. The concepts for Te Taurapa o Te Waka —
Motupohue Visitor Experience are now public, and this is exactly the kind of
tourism opportunity we need that will get people talking about our region and
further encourage high value visitation.

As a result of work that Great South has done in the energy sector, we have also
been approached by multiple parties regarding renewable energy generation,
which is exciting for the development of our economy.

As your regional development agency, we will continue to advocate on behalf
of our wonderful region. This work includes liaison with our local members
of parliament, forging new relationships with government ministers and their
departmental managers, making sure Southland is front of mind as they
progress their decision making

e lan Collier

q Great South Board Chair

Great South Statement of Intent -
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About Us

Great South, Southland Regional Development
Agency, is responsible for economic
development and promotion of Murihiku
Southland.

This involves managing Murihiku Southland’s Regional
Tourism Organisations (RTOs), central government’s
Regional Business Partner (RBP) network, Callaghan
Innovation R&D Experience grants, as well as delivering
arange of events, regional initiatives and government-
funded contracts that pave the way for development
Through the essential support provided to Murihiku
Southland, Great South provides a united voice for the
region, establishes a strong platform for regional success
and takes strides towards its vision of even better lives
through sustainable regional development.

Great South is a council-controlled organisation, jointly
owned by Invercargill City Council, Southland District
Council, Gore District Council, Environment Southland,
Invercargill Licensing Trust, Mataura Licensing Trust,
Southland Business Chamber, SIT | Te Pikenga, and
member organisation Community Trust South.

Established in March 2019, we began full operations in
July that year. We receive funding from our shareholding
Councils to cover core operational costs as well as
contract service delivery. Great South also works with
Central Government agencies as well as private sector
partners to deliver on contracted services.

We have a memorandum of understanding, which
underpins our relationship with all four Papatipu Rinaka
in Murihiku Southland — Awarua, Hokonui, Oraka-Aparima,
and Waihopai, which was signed on 8 August 2022.

WHO WE ARE

Great South wholly owns Space Operations New Zealand
Ltd., which is a council-controlled trading organisation as
defined in section 6 of the Local Government Act 2022.
It has its own board of directors and CEO and produces
its own Statement of Intent. Great South also has a 49%
share in New Zealand Functional Foods

CONSTITUTION OBJECTIVES

1. Achieve the objectives of our shareholders, both
commercial and non-commercial, as specified in this
Statement of intent

2. Be agood employer

3. Exhibit a sense of social and environmental
responsibility

4. Conduct our affairs in accordance with sound business
practice

GREAT SOUTH GOVERNANCE

A board of up to seven independent directors are
responsible for the strategic direction of Great South and
the initiatives it is involved with. The Board oversees the
business undertaken by Great South in accordance with
the Local Government Act 2002, Companies Act 1993, the
Company’s Constitution and the Statement of Intent

The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of Great South, including the management of
staff and reporting to directors on the performance
against set priorities.
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What we value

KAITIAKITANGA

We see ourselves as guardians of this region we call
home and are serious about our responsibility to protect
our home for future generations. We are committed to
ensuring our people, place and environment continue to
thrive

HERITAGE

Murihiku Southland has a rich history. It is this history that
has led us to where we are today and, as we move forward,
we will continue to recognise and pay respect to our
heritage and the journey we have taken

so far.

SOUTHLAND PROUD

At the core of every successful region, you will find great
people who passionately contribute to the growth of the
place they call home. Murihiku Southland is no different
We are proud of where we come from, what we stand for
and are excited to play a part in helping Murihiku Southland
achieve its potential.

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

We know that it is only with the support of our
communities that we will achieve our ambitious goals.
We're committed to working together to develop a vibrant,
diverse and thriving region and to provide our communities
with a strong foundation for the future

th Statement of Intent -

BEING REAL

We will embrace the region's strong entrepreneurial spirit,
where if you can dream it, you can do it. We're not about
the flashy stuff, we're real, down to earth, and committed
to making great things happen.

QUALITY OVER QUANTITY

We will focus on doing a smaller number of things

well, rather than spreading ourselves too thinly across
everything. The nature of our involvement may vary across
different regional initiatives, but we will at all times be
committed to the development of the place we call home.

SUSTAINABILITY

Our natural environment is unique, attracting people from
all over the world. We're realistic about our future and
know that adopting a sustainable approach, from both an
environmental and longevity perspective, is fundamental
for the future success of this region

SHAREHOLDER CONFIDENCE

We are committed to working with our shareholders to
instil in them a confidence in both Great South and the
future of this region. Together, we'll make great things
happen for Murihiku Southland.

WHO WE ARE






image12.png

Our vision

Even better lives through
sustainable regional development

Our vision of ‘even better lives through sustainable
regional development’ frames all the work we do, ensuring
Southland is the best place to live, work and visit. We
want our region to be the best place to start and sustain

a business, the best place to travel in, to host an event or
conference, to study, migrate to, or invest in. By creating
aregion that is the best place in New Zealand to live, visit
and work, we create a platform for the region to prosper -
economically and in terms of vibrancy and liveability.

New Zealand has seen a shift in government, which means
there will be changes to government policies. This will
likely provide opportunities for regional development which
Great South will pursue on behalf of the region. However,
major industry changes driven by climate effects will
continue to force a shift in activity and taking a sustainable
approach in its widest sense (environmental, economic
and social), will continue to be critically important.

WHO WE ARE Great South Statement of Intent -
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Southland snapshot
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Advocate

We advocate on behalf of the
region, sharing Murihiku Southland’s
point of view as members of various
national and regional organisations
and boards.

Facilitate

We work with various organisations
on behalf of our shareholders

and Murihiku Southland. This
includes our work implementing
key deliverables from the Beyond
2025 Southland Regional Long-term
Plan, regional promotion activities
and events, and leading carbon
emissions reduction for Murihiku
Southland.

WHO WE ARE

How we operate

Great South works for the benefit of the
whole region, placing equal importance on
Southland’s people, place, environment and
economy.

With the future of New Zealand's Aluminium Smelter

at Tiwai Point now confirmed for the next 20 years, we
understand this will be a time of unprecedented change for
Southland and strong leadership is required

ROLES OF GREAT SOUTH

Our role varies depending on the nature of the project

or initiative we are involved with. We are always building
on relationships with sector representatives and key
Southland stakeholders, and now that we are more
established as an organisation, increasingly our role is to
lead.

Our roles may be:

Advocate Facilitate

PARTNERING FOR SUCCESS

The future success of Murihiku depends on partnerships
Great South works closely with stakeholders and the wider
community and is committed to telling the shared stories
of Murihiku Southland - people and place. Great South

is committed to meeting its obligations under Te Tiriti o
Waitangi and collaborates with the four Murihiku-based
Rlnaka on numerous projects

SUSTAINABLE FOCUS

Great South is a certified carbon conscious organisation
and is taking positive action towards becoming carbon
neutral and integrating sustainable considerations into all
activities, including purchasing decisions and operational
practises. We will set an example for the region including
for businesses, stakeholders and communities we work
with.

uth Statement of Intent - 202






image15.png

TE REO MAORI

We will seek opportunities to support and raise the
presence of Te Reo Maori through our activities and our
day-to-day operations. This includes:

A commitment to facilitating the upskilling of our
team in both Te Reo and Tikanga Maori

Introducing Te Reo into communications and
marketing material where appropriate

Incorporating Te Ao Maori into our business growth
work as appropriate

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

The most valuable asset at Great South is our people.
We are committed to creating a positive work
environment and ensuring staff skills are relevant and up
to date, allowing our people to thrive. A key focus will be
to embed our internal organisation values:

respect each other's contribution
work together to achieve great things for our region
care for each other and our place

enjoy work and have fun

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Great South will take every practicable step to ensure the
health and safety of our employees, contractors, visitors
and attendees at events we manage.

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES

In line with best management practice, we seek
continuous improvement, improving processes and IT
systems, to allow staff to operate in the most effective
manner.

We continue to assess each purchasing decision and

th Statement of Intent

contract negotiation to ensure it can withstand a level of
scrutiny as expected in the public sector.

HOW WE ARE FUNDED

Great South receives its primary funding from its
shareholding councils. It has also successfully secured
funding from commercial and government partners.
Examples of this include:

MBIE and Callaghan Innovation for the Regional
Business Partner Network (RBP)

Commercial engagements

Great South also recieves funding from Community Trust
South to undertake impetus and investigation activities.

Our revenue sources for 2024-2025

73%

SHAREHOLDER
FUNDING

WHO WE ARE
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Our priorities

Regional development
leadership

Great South provides leadership for the region
by facilitating the implementation of the
Beyond 2025 Southland Long Term Plan and
through advocacy, writing submissions and
representing Murihiku Southland nationally.

Regional
promotion

Great South promotes Murihiku Southland

as a great place to live, work and visit. We
prioritise destination management and work
1o develop our regional tourism sector in a way
that brings benefit to our people and place. We
also manage and support events that attract
visitors to our region

OUR WORK
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Business support
and diversification

Great South supports the growth of the busi-
ness sector in Murihiku Southland and inves-
tigates and aids opportunities to diversify the
economy. We also support the attraction and
retention of a skilled workforce to our region
which will support new and existing industries

=An.

A
v

Net Zero
Southland

Great South works with businesses across
Murihiku Southland to address carbon
emissions. Subject to external funding, we
will facilitate and suppor businesses to make
reductions, as the region heads towards being
carbon neutral by 2050

outh Statement of Intent - S OUR WORK 11
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Regional development leadership

Advocate Facilitate Manage

Regional strategic planning

Great South will continue to facilitate implementation of
the Beyond 2025 Southland Regional Long Term Plan
with a focus on aligning regional development aspirations
with the rules and infrastructure that will enable them to
happen. Aquaculture, Housing and Data will continue to
be areas of focus and Great South will continue to work
towards alignment of regional planning to ensure a clear
regional voice.

As required by shareholders, Great South will facilitate
and deliver new regional strategies, feasibility
assessments and plans, and will seek to align these with
central and local government planning, policy and funding
as appropriate.

Advocate Facilitate Manage

Data and insights

Up-to-date data is essential for successful regional
planning and for attracting new investment to the region.
Great South has access to regional data and insights that
it will continue to share with regionwide decision makers
It will also continue to analyse regional trends and liaise
with Central Government on areas of our economy that
require support.

Information will be available to decision makers via Data
and Insights Southland Hub (DISH) which is a single
point of reference data repository including multiple
dashboards. Development of this tool which will be
available via a website will continue over time and as
funding allows.

Murihiku Southland
representation

Great South is an ambassador for Murihiku Southland,
participating on various regional and national forums,
organisations and boards. We also attend conferences
and trade shows to promote the region.

OUR WORK Great

Facilitate Manage

Communications

Great South shares information about our activities

and services with stakeholders, shareholders and the
wider community via a range of channels including its
website greatsouth.nz, social media, newsletters and via
presentations. We see this as an absolute priority.

The Great South website will be redesigned to ensure
up-to-date and accurate information is easily accessible.

h Statement of Intent -
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Advocacy

On behalf of the region, Great South will continue to
advocate to government and regulation setting bodies

on issues within its priority areas, to ensure Murihiku
Southland is resourced appropriately and that the
nuances of the region are understood. We will continue to
advocate for agriculture, housing, roading, policy changes
to unrestricted forestry, and infrastructure investment

We hope to engage with central government agencies
biannually, including with MBIE, NZTE, Ministry of
Housing and Urban Development, Ministry for the
Environment and Ministry for Primary Industries.
Submissions will also be completed on issues that arise
in the aforementioned areas

—

th Statement of Intent - 2024 - OUR WORK 13 -
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Regional promotion

Murihiku Southland
regional story

Great South will continue to develop the Murihiku Southland
regional story to ensure a cohesive and regionwide
approach is taken to attract people to live, study, work

and visit. Capturing the region's essence, its people and
distinctive qualities, this story will be used to support
communications and marketing by organisations that
represent and promote our region.

Facilitate Manage

Tourism product and
destination development

As a core focus for Great South, we will continue to deliver,
develop and progress various projects identified within the
Murihiku Southland Destination Strategy 2023 - 2029. These
include establishing Murihiku Southland as a food tourism
destination, Fiordland National Park as an International Dark
Sky Sanctuary, Murihiku Southland as a sustainable tourism
destination and tourism development within Motupohue
Bluff.

OUR WORK

Facilitate Manage

Deliver and support
major events

Major and iconic events are a key reason why New
Zealanders travel. Dependent on funding, Great South
intends to deliver the iconic family event, ILT Kidzone
Festival and hopes continue to provide delivery support
to the Burt Munro Challenge, another iconic event
celebrating our region’s heritage. We will continue to
implement the Southland Murihiku Events Strategy, with
a focus on building event organiser capability and event
marketing.

Advocate Facilitate Manage

Business events

Business events are an important opportunity for Murihiku
Southland, particularly to attract visitors during tourism
off seasons. To realise this opportunity, Great South will
complete a business events strategy. Acting as Business
Events Southland, Great South will continue to prospect
for national and international events that could be held in
our region. We aim to put Murihiku Southland on the map
as a business events destination.

h Statement of Intent -
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Facilitate Manage

Invercargill City Centre
activation

A thriving Invercargill city centre is essential for the benefit
of the whole of Murihiku Southland. In partnership with
Invercargill City Council, Great South delivers city centre
activities and events. We also partner with organisers

of existing events to support them with event design

and promotion to create vibrancy in the city centre We

will continue to specifically promote these city centre
events widely and keep CBD stakeholders informed about
them. All events will be listed on our promotional website
southlandnz.com.

outh Statement of Intent -

Advocate Facilitate Manage

Destination marketing

Great South will continue to profile Southland and
Fiordland as unique visitor destinations, utilising
southlandnz.com as the primary destination promotion
website, as well as fiordland.org.nz, along with each
brand’s associated social media platforms. The focus will
be on reaching our key markets, which are domestic, plus
Australia, North America, Europe and Asia.

Southlandnz.com is our key tool to promote Murihiku
Southland as a great place to live, work and visit. It is

a valued promotional platform for local businesses

and event organisers who list on this site and provides
practical information to support decision making and
travel for international and domestic visitors. We will
continue to work closely with key national tourism
partners, including Tourism NZ, and will continue to
partner with Air New Zealand and Invercargill Airport to
advocate for flights into Invercargill, as the gateway to
Murihiku Southland. Marketing and trade initiatives will
be targeted at visitors from key international markets as
well as domestic visitors. Familiarisation opportunities
will continue to be held for tourism operators, travel media
companies and business events organisers.
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Business support and diversification

Advocate Facilitate

Business diversification

Great South will support businesses within Murihiku
Southland to identify opportunities for diversification

and to develop plans to implement these opportunities.
Through contracted work, we will also undertake
feasibility studies to attract new and complementary
businesses to the region that support existing and/or new
business opportunities.

Advocate Facilitate

Economic diversification

While continuing to support Space Operations New
Zealand Limited, hydrogen, aquaculture and data centre
opportunities, Great South’s focus will be on encouraging
new investment to support new and existing businesses.

OUR WORK

Advocate Facilitate

Support the
agriculture sector

Acknowledging that agriculture is the main economic
contributor to our region, we will continue working to
support farmers with land-use change opportunities
and decision making. Working with Councils, we will
also support further investigation of the impacts of
unrestricted forestry in our region and will undertake
ongoing analysis and monitoring of livestock numbers,
forestry growth and water allocation.

Facilitate Manage

Support CBD businesses

Activations in Invercargill's CBD will support business
activity in that area (see ‘Invercargill city centre activation’,
under Regional Promotion).

h Statement of Intent -
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Advocate Facilitate

Building business
capability

Great South supports small to medium-sized businesses
in Southland through delivery of the Regional Business
Partner Programme. We work on behalf of MBIE and
Callaghan Innovation, building capability through
connections to expertise and resources, and occasionally
offering workshops and training opportunities. We often
work in partnership with COIN South and Southland
Business Chamber to deliver these opportunities and
meet with business owners one-on-one to identify their
needs and how they can best be supported.

h Statement of Intent -

Facilitate Manage

Southland Youth Futures
and the Mayoral Taskforce
for Jobs

Subject to funding, Great South aims to continue to
deliver the Southland Youth Futures Programme in 2024.
The programme is important for young people to get
exposure to the variety of jobs available within the region
and is of benefit to employers in connecting them with a
future workforce.

The Mayoral Taskforce for Jobs (MTFJ) is a new
contract Great South entered into with Southland District
Council. MTFJ is a network of New Zealand’s Mayors,
administered by LGNA, who work together towards

the vision of all young people under 25 being engaged

in employment, education, training and other positive
activities in their communities.

OUR WORK
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Net Zero Southland

Encourage low impact
industry

To support the region towards meeting net zero
emissions goals by 2050, Great South will provide data
and insights that enable major decisions to be made on
behalf of the region and encourage new industries to

address climate change and emissions reduction targets.

Facilitate Manage

Monitor emissions

The region's annual emissions have been monitored by
Great South since 2018. We will continue to measure our
regional emissions reporting against the 2018 baseline.
Our progress will be shared with regional leaders and the
public.

Facilitate Manage

Sustainable tourism
destination management

Sustainability is one of the key pillars of the Murihiku
Southland Destination Strategy and Great South will
continue to offer the Murihiku Southland Sustainable
Tourism Programme. The programme takes a holistic
approach, supporting businesses to look at reducing
their carbon emissions, while also improving their
sustainability from an economic, visitor, community, and
environmental perspective. In addition to this, Great South
will work with key partners to implement environmental
stewardship projects within the Murihiku Southland
Destination Strategy 2023 — 2029.

Advocate Facilitate

Energy planning

Following the release of the Southland Murihiku Regional
Energy Strategy 2022-2050, Great South will continue to
facilitate implementation of the strategy.

Reports will be prepared on biogenic capture and use, as
well as woody biomass availability.
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Performance measures

DESCRIPTION

Data and Insights

Provide up-to-
date and accurate
data and insights
to inform decision
making via regional
data dashboards and
repository

LTP CONNECTION

Economic Development

KPI2024-25

* Launch DISH - Digital
Insights Southland Hub
including 6 dashboards,
awebsite and a cloud-
based processing
system.

« Prepare a shared service
proposal for councils to
use and support DISH

KPI 2025-26

* Shared services
proposal for DISH is
accepted and Councils
are supporting this data
hub.

- Two new dashboards
identified and developed

KPI2026-27

* Shared services

proposal for DISH is
accepted and Councils
are supporting this
data hub.

- Two new dashboards

identified and
developed

Advocacy and
Submission

Advocate for and/
or prepare submissions
and funding applications
for issues of importance
to the region

Economic Development

+ Hold bi-annual
meetings with central
government officials
at MBIE, NZTE, MHUD,
MfE, MPI etc

+ Prepare a minimum
of two submissions
on issues of regional
significance.

- Support councils and
stakeholders to apply
for RIF as applicable

«Hold bi-annual
meetings with central
government officials
at MBIE, NZTE, MHUD,
MfE, MPI etc.

Prepare a minimum

of two submissions

onissues of regional
significance.

« Support councils and
stakeholders to apply
for RIF as applicable

« Hold bi-annual

meetings with central
government officials
at MBIE, NZTE, MHUD,
MfE, MP! etc.

+ Prepare a minimum

of two submissions
on issues of regional
significance.

« Support councils and

stakeholders to apply
for RIF as applicable

Housing

Implement
priorities from the
Murihiku Southland
Housing Action Plan

Economic Development

+ Deliver four projects
from the Housing
Action Plan.

- Support individual
Councils with their
housing planning
considering current and
future community and
industry needs

« Deliver two further
projects from the
Housing Action Plan

- Support individual
Councils with their
housing planning
considering current and
future community and
industry needs

« Deliver two further

projects from the
Housing Action Plan.

- Support individual

Councils with their
housing planning
considering current
and future community
and industry needs

Aquaculture

Facilitate and
develop a regional

approach to realise the
benefits of Aquaculture
as a diversification
opportunity

Economic Development

+ Facilitate development
of a Regional
Aquaculture Strategy.

+ Support local and
central government
and Iwi, to provide
enabling regulation and
infrastructure to build
an aquaculture industry
in Southland.

Produce and distribute
regular reports
Source additional
datasets (subject to
funding)

Produce and distribute
regular reports

* Source additional

datasets (subject to
funding)

Agriculture

Support
agricultural sector land-
use and support farmer
decision making

Economic Development

+ Analysis of relevant
agricultural sector
data to feed into the
Regional Emissions
Report for 2025

Undertake analysis of
relevant agricultural
sector data to feed into
the Regional Emissions
Report for 2026

- Undertake analysis of

relevant agricultural
sector data to feed
into the Regional
Emissions Report for
2027

Forestry

investigation of the
impacts of unrestricted
forestry

Economic Development

+ Provide data and
insights regarding
changing land use and
the impacts of carbon
forestry.

« Provide data and
insights regarding
changing land use and
the impacts of carbon
forestry.

« Provide data and

insights regarding
changing land use and
the impacts of carbon
forestry.

Connectivity

connectivity in the region

Economic Development

- Deliver the Digital
Connectivity Report
which tracks mobile
phone coverage across
the region.

« Deliver the Digital
Connectivity Report
which tracks mobile
phone coverage across
the region.

« Deliver the Digital

Connectivity Report
which tracks mobile
phone coverage
across the region.
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DESCRIPTION

LTP CONNECTION

KP12024-25

KP12025-26

KP12026-27

Communications

Continue to
connect with businesses
within the region to
provide information

on RBP and Callaghan
Innovation opportunities.

Business Development

year.

businesses achieving
success

- Publish Beyond Great —
Great South's Business
Newsletter 6 times per

+ Showcase 6 Southland

- Publish Beyond Great —
Great South's Business
Newsletter 6 times per
year.

+ Showcase 6 Southland
businesses achieving
success

- Publish Beyond Great -
Great South's Business
Newsletter 6 times per
year.

+ Showcase 6 Southland
businesses achieving
success

Business in
Southland - A
regional guide

Business Development

- Develop and publish
a regional guide
to SUDpOﬂ new

- Maintain the regional
quide to support
new businesses to

+ Review and change
the regional guide as
needed

Marketing

Promote Murihiku
Southland as a year-
round destination for
travellers from New
Zealand, Australia

and other key markets,
resulting in more visitors.

Asia
- 3 digital campaigns

traffic comes from key
markets in NZ, Australia,
North America, Europe,

traffic comes from key

markets in NZ, Australia,

North America, Europe,
Asia

- 3 digital campaigns

businesses to Southland
Resource document Southland
that outlines useful
information for new &
potential businesses to
the region,
Consumer Tourism Development - Ensure 85% of website « Ensure 85% of website - Ensure 85% of website

traffic comes from
key markets in NZ,
Australia, North
America, Europe, Asia

- 3 digital campaigns

Content
Development

Increase
awareness and
preference for Murihiku
Southland as a year-
round destination
for travellers through
improved marketing
materials

Tourism Development

updated including

Fiordland.

- 3 Marketing collateral

Murihiku Visitor Guide,
Murihiku Eats and Hike

- 3 Marketing collateral
updated

- 3 Marketing collateral
updated

Media
Increase positive

travel media coverage
for Murihiku Southland,
promoting the region's
diverse activities and
experiences and drive
visitor numbers.

Tourism Development

+ 3 media famils
+ 15 media results

+ 3 media famils
+15 media results

+ 3 media famils
*15 media results

Showcasing our
region

Trade Events,

Trade Famils and
TRENZ

+ Attend 5 trade shows.

+ Attend 2 partnered
famils

* 2 Murihiku itineraries

adopted from Milford

Opportunities Project

+ Attend 5 trade shows.

+ Attend 2 partnered
famils

+ 2 Murihiku itineraries

adopted from Milford

Opportunities Project

+ Attend 5 trade shows.

- Attend 2 partnered
famils

+ 2 Murihiku itineraries
adopted from Milford

Opportunities Project

E New Experiences

Tourism Development

- Develop 1 new iwi
experience

- Develop 1 new iwi
experience

- Develop 1 new iwi
experience

E Business Events
Develop Murihiku
Southland as a Business
Events destination

« Attend 3 conference
events

« Attend 3 conference
events

+ Attend 3 conference
events

OUR WORK
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DESCRIPTION LTP CONNECTION KP12024-25 KP12025-26 KP12026-27

W Destination Destination Development | - Develop an « Progress 3 projects « Progress 3 projects
B8 Development Implementation Plan from MSDS which from MSDS which
o " for MSDS includes delivering the includes delivering the
rogress projects . Murihiku Southland Murihiku Southland
from the Murihiku progress 3 projects Sustainable Tourism | Sustainable Tourism
Southland Destination includes delivering the programme programme
Strategy (MSDS) 9
Murihiku Southland
Sustainable Tourism
programme
Regional Events Event Development +10% increase on - 10% increase on - 10% increase on
Calendar number of events listed | number of events listed | number of events listed
Maintain (baseline: 690) - 10% increase on - 10% increase on
southlandnz.com +10% increase on number of overall page | number of overall page
Website calendar listings number of overall page | views views
for regional events views (baseline: 40,000) | . 159 increase on +15% increase on
+15% increase on number of overall page | number of overall page
number of overall page views from within views from within
views from within Southland Southland
¥ Southland (baseline:
14,000)

Unmissable Event Development * Support delivery of Burt | + Support delivery of Burt § - Support delivery of Burt
Regional Events Munro Challenge Munro Challenge Munro Challenge
« Deliver ILT Kidzone - Deliver ILT Kidzone - Deliver ILT Kidzone
Festival Festival Festival
(Subject to external (Subject to external
funding) funding)

Regional Event Development « Six cluster events - Six cluster events - Six cluster events
Marketing of « Four seasonal « Four seasonal « Four seasonal
Events campaigns campaigns campaigns

- Marketing of - Marketing of - Marketing of

unmissable events unmissable events unmissable events

Monitor Emissions | Economic Development | - Produce the Regional | + Produce the Regional | + Produce the Regional
E Emissions Report for Emissions Report for Emissions Report for
Complete annual 2024 2025 2026
regional emissions
reporting
Energy Planning | Economic Development | - Review and update the | + Implement Net Zero « Implement Net Zero
E Net Zero Southland - Southland Strategy Southland Strategy
Implement the Net Economic Mitigation and support regional and support regional
Zero Southland Report Pathways Analysis to climate change climate change
Net Zero Emissions strategic planning strategic planning

for Southland Report
(March 2021)

« Implement 2 actions
from the reports

« Implement 3 actions
of the Regional Plan to guide from the reports.
Energy Strategy implementation of

the Regional Energy

Strategy.
- Prepare two technical
reports to support the
development ‘biogenic
methane capture and
use’ opportunities
and ‘woody bio-mass’
market growth
« Prepare a spatial plan
identifying favourable
locations for renewable
energy generation

E Implementation | Economic Development | + Prepare an Action
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Space Operations New Zealand

Great South founded Space Operations New Zealand Limited (SpaceOps NZ)
in 2021 as a standalone company that now owns the Awarua Satellite Ground
Station. As a 100% subsidiary of Great South, SpaceOps NZ is a Council-
Controlled Trading Organisation (CCTO) and as such will present its own
Statement of Intent and associated financials to the shareholding councils.

SpaceOps NZ's role is to meet demand from rapid growth in the international small satellite (smallsat)
community.

The Awarua Satellite Ground Station hosts antennas for international customers and has its own
antennas to provide southern hemisphere ground segment support for space agencies and commercial
satellite operators.

Customers’ satellites are used for all manner of purposes, including tracking shipping containers,
measuring the atmosphere, imaging the Earth, calibrating satellite navigation systems and providing
internet services.

Some of the antennas provide downrange support for international launch companies, including Rocket
Lab, founded by Invercargill's Peter Beck. It is the first station with spacecraft visibility on the western
side of the Pacific Ocean and is New Zealand’s only commercial low Earth orbit satellite ground station.

On the strength of its services, there are now two international space businesses based in Invercargill.

Two new 11 metre antennas have been added to the station as part of a collaboration with Lockheed
Martin Australia. This is part of the broader Trans-Tasman SouthPAN (Southern Positioning
Augmentation Network) project, that will allow New Zealanders and Australians centimetre accuracy
positioning from their smartphones. The antennas are supported by a mission operations centre in
Invercargill.

In July 2023, SpaceOps NZ took over Auckland University of Technology's radio astronomy operations
at Spark’s Warkworth Satellite Earth Station. As a result, it now operates a 12 metre and a 30 metre

in diameter antenna. The 12 metre antenna is used to pinpoint New Zealand to within a couple of
millimetres by tuning into radio waves emitted by some of the most distant objects in the universe.
SpaceOps NZ's core business has until now been providing telecommunications to spacecraft orbiting
400 to 600 km above the Earth but the 30m antenna is used for radio astronomy and communicating
with spacecraft in deep space.
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Statement of comprehensive
revenue and expense

For the 12 months to June

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Budget Budget Budget

Core 1,981,000 2,066,183 2115029
Contract 1,609,027 1,609,027 1,609,027
Total 3,590,027 3,65,210 3,764,056
Service Revenue 1,112,453 531,675 531,675
Project Revenue 220197 200,000 200,000
Total Other Revenue 1,332,650 731,675 731,675
Project and Service Expenditure
Regional Economic Development 1,048,839 1,012,183 1,040326
Business Support Services 534,088 82616 85683
Regional Tourism Development 724116 721,788 740,322
Regional Event Delivery 667,642 679,065 687,794
Total Project Expenditure 2,974,685 2,495,653 2,554,126
Core expenditure
Directors Fees 176,000 183,568 191,461
Employee Expense 1,017,255 1,027,189 1,062,614
Depreciation and Amortisation 60,000 47628 38317
Other Expenses 736,871 718,344 747,728
Total Core Expenditure 1,990,097 1,976,729 2,040,120
Taxation
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Statement of financial position

As at 30 June
2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Budget Budget Budget
Cash and cash equivalents 1,823,542 1,660,168 1,549,822
Receivables and accruals 640,408 640,408 640,408
Prepayments 88,622 88,622 88,622
Total Current Assets 2,522,572 2,389,198 2,278,852
Investments 1,072,589 1,072,589 1,072,589
Deferred Tax 31,071 31071 31071
Property, plant and equipment 182,480 144852 116,535
Total Non-current Assets 1,286,140 1,248,512 1,220,195
Payables and accruals 185441 187,684 192,047
Income tax payable (41,201) (41,201) (41,201)
Income Received in Advance 581,956 531,956 481,956
Employee entitlements 285,536 285536 285,536
Other current liabilities (421,750) 334,001 339,488
Total Current Liabilities 1,433,482 1,297,976 1,257,826
Contributed capital 1,338,421 1338421 1,338421
Retained earnings 1066810 1,001,314 902,799
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Statement of cash flows

For the 12 months to June

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Budget Budget Budget

Receipts of Shareholder investment 3,590,027 3675210 3,764,056
Receipts from other operating activities 2,381,164 1,392,708 1,406,035
Income tax paid
Payments to employees (2:823761) (2:676.289) (2,667,450)
Payment to suppliers (2829,020) (2,543,503) (2,601,487)
Purchase of fixed assets and intangibles (11,500) (11,500) (11,500)
Borrowings
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at beginning of period 1,516,632 1823542 1,660,168
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of period 1823542 1,660,168 1,549,822
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Accounting policies

REPORTING ENTITY

Southland Regional Development Agency Limited is a New Zealand
registered company under the Companies Act 1993, and is deemed
to be a Council Controlled Organisation under section 6 of the Local
Government Act 2002.

Southland Regional Development Agency (trading as Great South) was
established as Southland's regional development agency in March 2019,
The registered office for Southland Regional Development Agency is 143
Spey Street, Invercargill

Committed to driving economic, social and cultural growth, Southland
Regional Development Agency has a clear mandate to leverage
opportunities for Southland in the areas of economic and business
development, tourism and events. This involves incorporating Southland's
Regional Tourism Organisations, central government's Regional Business
Partner (RBP) Network, delivering a range of events, regional initiatives,
and government-funded contracts that pave the way for regional
development.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
and the accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout
the year.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002, the Companies Act 1993,
and the Financial Reporting Act 2013. This includes the requirement to
comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand (NZ
GAAP)

These financial statements comply with Public Benefit Entity International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (PBE IPSAS) Reduced Disclosure
Regime (RDR). Southland Regional Development Agency is eligible and
has elected to report in accordance with Tier 2 PBE standards RDR on the
basis the entity has no public accountability and has expenses > $2m
and < $30m.

PRESENTATION CURRENCY AND ROUNDING

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest dollar. The functional currency of
Southland Regional Development Agency is New Zealand dollars.

MEASUREMENT BASE

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost or fair
value basis as per the following policies

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following particular accounting policies, which materially affect the
measurement of the results and financial position, have been applied:

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received

Where funding is not conditional and Southland Regional Development
Agency has no obligation to deliver a specific event or service, the revenue
will be recognised when receipted. Where the funding has conditions
attached to it, the funding is recognised as revenue upon entitlement

as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled. The
funding is held as a liability until the specific conditions are met. In certain
circumstances funding is not received until after the event, in which case
the revenue will be accrued when it is highly probable the funding will

be received

Revenue from ticket sales is recognised upon receipt unless the terms
and conditions for the ticket state that Southland Regional Development
Agency is required to repay the customer if the event does not take place.
Where the terms and conditions contain a refund clause, the revenue will
be recognised upon completion of the event.

Great South Statement of Intent -

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion at the balance sheet date, based on the actual service
provided.

Products held for sale are recognised when a product is sold to the
customer. Sales are usually in cash or by credit card. The recorded
revenue is the gross amount of the sale, including credit card fees payable
for the transaction. Such fees are included in other expenses.

Southland Regional Development Agency acts as an agent for third
parties for some transactions. When incurring expenditure as an agent,
this is accounted for via the Statement of Financial Position, and not as
revenue and expenditure on the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue
and Expense. Any revenue component within these transactions will be
treated accordingly.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method

Volunteer services received are not recognised as revenue or expenditure
as Southland Regional Development Agency is unable to reliably measure
the fair value of the services received

Revenue in Advance

Revenue in advance is recognised where amounts received are in excess
of the amounts recognised as revenue.

Expenditure

All expenditure is recognised as incurred unless the liability is known and
can be reasonably estimated, in which case the expenditure is accrued

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into NZ$ (the functional
currency) using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except
for receivables and payables, which are stated on a GST-inclusive basis.
Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, then it is recognised as part of
the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland
Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of receivables or payables in
the Statement of Financial Position. The net GST paid to or received from
the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is
classified as an operating cash flow in the Statement of

Cash Flows.

Income Tax

Income tax expense in relation to the profit or loss for the period
comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable
profit for the current year, plus any adjustments to income tax payable in
respect of prior years. Current tax is calculated using rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by balance date.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset
and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by balance date.

Current tax and deferred tax is charged or credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense, except when it relates to items

charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is dealt with
in equity.
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Equity

Equity is the shareholders interest in Southland Regional Development
Agency, as measured by total assets less total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at cost, amortised where necessary, using the
effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

A receivable is considered impaired when there is evidence that Southland
Regional Development Agency will not be able to collect the amount due
The amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrying
amount of the receivable and the present value of the amounts expected
to be collected

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment consists of the following asset classes:
buildings, furniture and fittings, IT equipment, ILT Kidzone equipment,
vehicles, and land. All asset classes are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Individual assets
are capitalised if they meet the definition of an asset and the cost
exceeds $1,000

Additions

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as

an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to Southland Regional
Development Agency and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it
is recognised at fair value when control over the asset is obtained. Work in
progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated

Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Subsequent Costs

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when
itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to Southland Regional Development Agency and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant, and equipment are
recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant
and equipment at rates that will write off the cost of the assets to their
estimated residual values over their useful lives. The useful lives and
associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been
estimated as follows:

Buildings: 3%-7% 14.3-33.3 years
Furniture & Fittings: 6% - 33% 3-16.7 years

IT Equipment: 17.5%-67% 1.5-5.7 years
ILT Kidzone: 13.5% - 33% 3-7.5years
Vehicles: 13.5% 7.5 years

Land. 0%

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if
applicable, at each financial year end. An annual review for impairment is
also undertaken on all assets and any impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held that have a finite useful life are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

uth Statement of Intent -

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount. The recoverable
service amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. If an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service
amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carrying amount is
written down to the recoverable service amount. The total impairment loss
is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit
Value in Use For Non-Cash Generating Assets

Value in use is the present value of the asset's remaining service potential
Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated
replacement cost approach, restoration cost approach, or a service units
approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use
depends on the nature of the impairment and availability of information.

Value in Use For Cash Generating Assets

Southland Regional Development Agency does not hold any cash
generating assets

Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of businesses and subsidiaries is included in
“intangible assets”. Goodwill on acquisition of an associate is included in
“investment in other entities” and impairment is considered as part of the
overall investment balance

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purposes of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units
or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Goodwill has been assessed to have an infinite useful life on the basis the
business is ongoing. Goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for
use, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Joint Venture

The Company's 49% share of its associate NZ Functional Foods Limited is
equity accounted for in the Companies financial statements.

Ajoint venture is an entity over which the Company has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an associate. The Company’s investment
is accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method. The
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost and the carrying
amount in the financial statements is increased or decreased to recognise
the Company’s share of the surplus or deficit in the joint venture after the
date of acquisition. Distributions received from a joint venture reduce the
carrying amount of the investment in the financial statements.

If the share of deficits of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest

in the joint venture, the Company discontinues recognising its share of
further deficits. After the Company’s interest is reduced to zero, additional
deficits are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently
reports surpluses, the Company will resume recognising its share of those
surpluses only after its share of the surpluses equals the share of deficits
not recognised

Leases
Operating Leases

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of an asset. Payments
under these leases are recognised as expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in periods in which they are
incurred. Lease incentives received are recognised

Finance Leases

Afinance lease transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset, whether or not title is
eventually transferred. At the start of the lease term, finance leases are
recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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at the lower of the fair value of the leased item and the present value of
the minimum lease payments

The finance charge is charged to the surplus or deficit over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. The amount recognised as an asset is
depreciated over its useful life. If there is no reasonable certainty as to
whether the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term,
the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
useful life.

Payables

Short-term payables are recorded at their fair value.

Financial Instruments

Southland Regional Development Agency is party to financial instruments
as part of its normal operation. These financial instruments give rise

to financial assets and liabilities and include cash and on-call deposits,
accounts receivable, investments, and accounts payable, deposits held,
other financial liabilities and financial guarantees. They also include equity
interests in other entities

All financial instruments are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position on the basis of Southland Regional Development Agency
Limited's general and, where applicable, particular accounting policies.

All financial instruments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position
are recorded at fair value or amortised cost. Revenue and expenditure
arising from these financial instruments is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash includes cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Operating activities include cash received from all revenue sources of
Southland Regional Development Agency and cash payments made for
the supply of goods and services. Investing activities are those activities
relating to the acquisition and disposal of non-current assets. Financing
activities comprise the change in equity and debt capital structure of
Southland Regional Development Agency.

Personnel Costs

Salaries and Wages

Salaries and wages are recognised as an expense as employees provide
services

Defined Contribution Superannuation Schemes

Employer contributions to KiwiSaver, the Government Superannuation

Great South Statement of Intent -

Fund, and the State Sector Retirement Savings Scheme are accounted for
as defined contribution superannuation schemes and are expensed in the
surplus or deficit as incurred.

Employee Entitlements

Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are
measured based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. These
include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave
earned to, but not yet taken at balance date. No liability is recognised for
sick leave.

Aliability and an expense are recognised for bonuses where Southland
Regional Development Agency has a contractual obligation or where there
is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the
financial year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing these financial statements, Southland Regional Development
Agency has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual
results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
recognised in the financial statements are described in the notes to the
financial statements.







image35.png

Shareholder requirements

STATEMENT OF INTENT

By 1 December each year Great South will deliver a draft
Statement of Intent to the joint shareholders as required
by the Local Government Act. The Joint Shareholders will
provide feedback to the Great South Board by 1 March
each year, and the final document will be delivered by 30
June each year.

REPORTING

Half Yearly Reporting

By the end of February each year the board must deliver
to the shareholders a report on the organisation’s
operations during that half year. The report must include
the information required to be included by the LGA 2002
and the Statement of Intent and any other information
requested by the shareholders.

Annual Report

By the end of September each year, the board must
deliver to the shareholders and make available to the
public a report on the company's operations during the
year. This will include audited financial statements and
the performance targets and other measures by which
performance was judged in relation to the organisation’s
objectives.

SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

An annual general meeting will be held before the end of
September each year to present the annual report. The
notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be no
less than 10 working days before the meeting, unless
agreed by all shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting.

SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL

Any subscription, purchase or acquisition by Great
South of shares in a company or organisation require
shareholder approval by special resolution as will the
other matters outlined in Great South's constitution

Great South Statement of Intent -

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Great South Board is not authorised to approve any
dividends.

COMPENSATION FROM LOCAL
AUTHORITIES

The Directors do not envisage any circumstances arising
that would give rise to any claim from any local authority
during the year other than those already stated in the

financial statements.

NO SURPRISES

Great South, through the Joint Shareholders Committee
will work with the shareholders to develop trust and a
common understanding on a “no surprises” basis. The
board will be sensitive to the demands for accountability
placed on the Councils from their respective ratepayers.

PUBLIC EXPECTATIONS

Great South is very mindful of the public scrutiny that
comes with being a CCO. Great South will:

+ Build accountability and constructive working practices
between their organisation and the shareholders

+ Commit to transparency and accountability to the
public. This includes fulfilling the planning, reporting and
disclosure requirements of the Local Government Act
2002 as it applies to CCOs, and the requirements of the
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act
1987 as it applies to CCOs.

+ Ensure the organisation is fiscally disciplined with
expenditure.

- Embrace the Shareholder Councils’ strategic priorities
as set out in their Long-term Plans 2018-2028 and any
other relevant documents.

Great South is tasked with leading the future
growth aspirations of Murihiku Southland on
behalf of our shareholders, stakeholders and
the wider Murihiku Southland community.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GREAT SOUT

Southland Regional Development Agency

www.greatsouth.nz

Visit our website to find out more about us and sign up for our newsletters to receive regular updates
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SPACE OPERATIONS NEW ZEALAND LIMITED
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

SPACE OPERATIONS NEW ZEALAND LIMITED
— TRADING AS SPACEOPS NZ

Hargest House, 62 Deveron Street
PO Box 1306, Invercargill 9810

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clo Southland Regional Development Agency Limited
143 Spey Street, Invercargill

BANK

Westpac New Zealand Limited

AUDITORS

KPMG for Audit New Zealand (on behalf of the Office of the
Auditor General)

LEGAL STATUS

Space Operations New Zealand Limited was incorporated in New
Zealand on 18 July 2016 under the Companies Act 1993 (NZBN
9429042426585, Company Number 6033648).

Space Operations New Zealand Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Southland Regional Development Agency Limited,
which is a council-controlled organisation. This makes Space
Operations a council-controlled trading organisation (CCTO) as
defined in Section 6 of the Local Government Act 2002
SHAREHOLDER

Southland Regional Development Agency Limited
DIRECTORS
John Yaldwyn (Chair), Chami Abeysinghe, Peter Heenan

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Robin McNeill

Space Operations New Zealand Statement of Intent 2024-2027
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GOVERNANCE & STRUCTURE

SPACEOPS NZ BOARD

The SpaceOps NZ Board comprises a minimum of two Directors
and a maximum of seven Directors who are responsible for the
strategic direction and control of SpaceOps NZ's activities.

The Board will oversee the business undertaken by SpaceOps
NZ in accordance with the Companies Act 2002, the company’s
Constitution and this Statement of Intent.

OPERATIONS

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of SpaceOps NZ, including the management of staff
and reporting to Directors on the performance against set priorities.

NO SURPRISES
The SpaceOps NZ Board will keep our shareholder informed on
a"no surprises” basis

The SpaceOps NZ Board will be sensitive to the demand for
accountability placed on its shareholder by Councils and their
ratepayers.

PUBLIC EXPECTATIONS

SpaceOps NZ is very mindful of the public scrutiny that comes
with being a CCTO and will

Build accountability and constructive working practices
between their organisation and the shareholders

Commit to transparency to the public, including fulfilling
the planning, reporting and disclosure requirements of the
Local Government Act 2002 and Local Government Official
Information and meeting Act 1987 as they apply to CCTO's

+ Ensure the organisation s fiscally disciplined with expenditure

Space Operations New Zealand Statement of Intent 2024-2027

POLICIES

DIVIDEND POLICY
Each year the Board will review its ability to pay dividends after
considering the ongoing needs of the business, the riskiness of
the market environment, the requirements of the Companies Act
2002 and the statutory obligations imposed on Directors.
Declared dividends, if any, will be paid in two instalments in
February and August.

No dividend is to be declared in the 2024 - 2025 financial year.

ACQUISITION PROCEDURES
The undertaking by SpaceOps NZ of any activity of a nature
or scope not provided for in this Statement of Intent would be
subject to the prior approval of the Shareholder

SpaceOps NZ will not establish any new company or other
organisation or acquire shares, equity, voting interests or
memberships of any company or organisation without the
Directors having gained prior approval of the Shareholder,

SHAREHOLDER INVESTMENT

The Directors estimate that the commercial value of the
shareholders’ investment in SpaceOps NZ as at 1 July is
represented by the opening balance of shareholder’s funds

COMPENSATION FROM LOCAL AUTHORITIES

The Directors do not envisage any circumstances arising that
would give rise to any claim from any local authority during the
year other than those stated in the financial statements
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OUR PURPOSE

To deliver sustainable,
innovative services to the
global space market.

OUR VISION

In an industry that calls for a high-trust operating
environment, we are already highly trusted. The
expertise to be found within SpaceOps NZ and our
contractors compares favourably with anywhere in the
world. We have identified and are exploiting the exciting
opportunities arising from our natural advantages and
the talent of our staff.

SpaceOps NZ’s vision is to utilise our
strategic advantages to profitably and
sustainably...

« Provide space operations services and
facilities

« Create and develop new opportunities in
the space sector

- Foster space activity within New Zealand

NATIONAL INTEREST

SpaceOps NZ strongly supports and advocates for the
peaceful use of space and recognises that the company
needs always to be recognised as a responsible
international citizen in the space domain

SpaceOps NZ is responsive to and complies with the
Outer Space and High-altitude Activities Act 2017 and
international space treaties.

SpaceOps NZ's work has enabled two well-known
international companies in the space sector to establish
themselves in Invercargill, helping build a space economy
in Southland

SpaceOps NZ maintains outreach to Southland youth, to
excite them to consider careers in science, technology,
engineering and mathematics that would likely otherwise
remain unfamiliar to them

REGIONAL INTEREST

SpaceOps NZ is firmly rooted in Southland: with an
established international reach and a national ambit,
SpaceOps NZ is proud to belong to all Southlanders.

The Awarua Satellite Ground Station enjoys international
standing for its unique location in New Zealand that

is unsurpassed almost everywhere else in the world.
Notwithstanding SpaceOps NZ’s large aperture antennas
at Warkworth, Awarua SGS will always be the jewel in
SpaceOps NZ's crown







image41.png

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

At Awarua Satellite Ground Station

(SGS), SpaceOps NZ currently

exploits its geographically unique and
globally significant location to provide
telecommunications for spacecraft in Earth
orbit through hosting others’” antennas and
leasing time of its own antennas.

The recently acquired large aperture
antennas at Warkworth are used for
undertaking radio astronomy and space
geodesy observations.

SpaceOps NZ currently has four
business lines:

1. Hosting customer-owned satellite
ground stations, including installing
and maintaining these ground stations

2. Leasing its own ground stations to
satellite operators and others

3. Undertaking space geodesy and radio
astronomy observations

4. Providing technical expertise to the
space community

Space Operations New Zealand

At present, hosting others’ antennas forms
the company’s prime revenue stream. This
is now a mature operation with steady
growth forecasted. Nearly all hosting
revenue is derived from the Awarua SGS.

Leasing and operating its own ground
stations will become important to
SpaceOps NZ as its antennas become
qualified and the services are more widely
marketed.

Much of the leasing revenue from 2024
forward will come from the proposed use of
the Warkworth 30metre antenna to support
deep space telecommunications. Because
of the quantum of this operation, the
Warkworth operation is treated as a
stand-alone business centre.

AUWARUA SGS™
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GROWTH & INVESTMENT

There are four priority growth areas for the
period to 30 June 2027:

1. Further develop the facilities at
Awarua and elsewhere in response
to growing demand for hosting
and leasing of ground stations, and
associated services

2. Develop and bring into service
additional antennas for leasing to
customers

3. Upgrade the equipment at Warkworth
Space Centre to provide lunar, and
near- and deep-space antenna leasing
services.

4. Developing a commercial near real-
time satellite Earth observation
operation.

In addition, for strategic reasons, and driven
by demand and opportunity, SpaceOps NZ
may also:

« Establish additional ground stations at
new sites

« Expand the scope of the present space
geodesy services to provide value-
added services to New Zealand and
overseas customers.
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RISKS

Risks to SpaceOps NZ's operations have
been identified. The risks most demanding
attention are:

« Covid-19 related supply chain issues for
our customers has seen installation of
new antennas delayed by as much as 9
months. Such delays directly impact on
when we can start charging hosting fees,
and thus our revenue. It is not possible to
mitigate this risk.

« Revenue is somewhat sensitive to
variations in the $NZD-$USD exchange
rates and forward-exchange contracts
can only ameliorate short to medium term
effects. SpaceOps NZ will be purchasing
equipment from overseas as part of its
expansion plans. This expenditure will be
sensitive to exchange rate fluctuations
and forward cover will be taken to hedge
against adverse currency movements.

The space industry is dynamic and quickly
evolving, meaning new opportunities
sometimes present themselves
unexpectedly. Such opportunities may
demand immediate attention to either
secure them, or to prevent other parties

Space Operations New Zealand

exploiting them to gain competitive
advantage. Therefore, a nimble and
responsive approach by SpaceOps NZ is
required.

While currently considered to be of lower
priority than the proposed immediate
work programme for SpaceOps NZ, the
company will need to monitor and be able
to react quickly to:

- Customer demand for optical ground
stations and telescopes

- Customer demand for ground stations in
other parts of New Zealand

- Opportunities to broaden activities
relating to near real-time satellite Earth
observation

- Commercial interest in hardware and
software developed in-house.
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Performance Targets

SpaceOps NZ’s performance targets for the year ending
30 June 2025 and subsequent two years follow.

NON-FINANCIAL

2024/25

Health, Safety and
Risk Management

the workplace

No lost-time injuries for staff.

No Reportable Incidents in

2025/26
No lost-time injuries for staff.

No Reportable Incidents in
the workplace.

2025/26
No lost-time injuries for staff.

No Reportable Incidents in
the workplace

Infrastructure No contractual penalty

is payable to customers
caused by the failure of
SpaceOps NZ infrastructure.

No contractual penalty
is payable to customers
caused by the failure of
SpaceOps NZ infrastructure.

No contractual penalty

is payable to customers
caused by the failure of
SpaceOps NZ infrastructure.

Less than 15%
turnover of staff.

Human Resources

Less than 15%
turnover of staff.

Less than 15%
turnover of staff.

FINANCIAL

2024/25

Revenue Annual revenue
growth to exceed 15%

2025/26

Annual revenue
growth to exceed 15%

2025/26

Annual revenue
growth to exceed 15%

Budget Meet budgeted surplus.

Meet budgeted surplus

Meet budgeted surplus.
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STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE
REVENUE & EXPENSE

For the 12 months to June

Revenue

Expenditure

Taxation

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

2024/25
Budget

3,285,590

3147888

38,557

2025/26

Budget

3,848,935

3,690,324

44,41

For the financial year ended

Consolidated
Assets

Consolidated
Liabilities

Contributed Capital

Retained Earnings

2024/25
Budget

5,026,635

2,933,320

1,072,588

1,020,732

Space Operations New Zealand S

2025/26
Budget

7,274,982

5,067,461

1,072,583

1134,932

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the 12 months to June

2024/25 2025/26

Budget Budget
2026/27
Budget
Total Cash Flow
from Operating 462,988 693,850
4,464,733 Activities
4,032,387 Total Cash Flow
from Investing (2,882771) (2,821,614
Activities
11087 Total Cash Flow
05 from Financing o 0
Activities
Cash, Cash
Equivalents and
Overdraft at 456,032 (1,963,751
Beginning of Period
Cash, Cash
Equivalents and - -
Overdrafte at (1963751 (4,091,515)
End of Period
2026/27
Budget
10,160,012
7,641,203
1,072,588
1,446,221

2026/27
Budget

1,083,695

(3,650,273)

(4,076,571)

(6.643149)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, and the accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the year.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2002, the
Companies Act 1993, and the Financial Reporting Act 2013. This
includes the requirement to comply with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP).

These financial statements comply with Public Benefit Entity
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (PBE IPSAS)
Reduced Disclosure Regime (RDR). Space Operations New
Zealand Ltd is eligible and has elected to report in accordance
with Tier 2 PBE standards RDR on the basis the entity has no
public accountability and has expenses > $2m and < $30m

PRESENTATION CURRENCY AND ROUNDING

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar. The
functional currency of Space Operations New Zealand Ltd is
New Zealand dollars

MEASUREMENT BASE

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical
cost or fair value basis as per the following policies,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies, which affect the measurement
of the results and financial position, have been applied

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received
Where funding is not conditional and Space Operations New
Zealand Ltd has no obligation to deliver a specific event or
service, the revenue will be recognised when receipted.

Where the funding has conditions attached to it such as the
provision of hosting services, the funding is recognised as
revenue upon entittlement as conditions pertaining to eligible
expenditure have been fulfilled. The funding is held as a liability
until the specific conditions are met. Revenue from the rendering
of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
at the balance sheet date, based on the actual service provided

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Revenue in Advance

Revenue in advance is recognised where amounts received are
in excess of the amounts recognised as revenue.

Expenditure

All expenditure is recognised as incurred unless the liability
is known and can be reasonably estimated, in which case the
expenditure is accrued.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into NZ$ (the
functional currency) using the spot exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the surplus or deficit

10 Space Operations New Zealand Statement of Intent 2024-2027

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Allitems in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST,
except for receivables and payables, which are stated on a GST-
inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, then it
is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,

the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of
receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position
The net GST paid to or received from the IRD, including the GST
relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an
operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Income Tax

Income tax expense in relation to the profit or loss for the period
comprises current tax and deferred tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the
taxable profit for the current year, plus any adjustments to income
tax payable in respect of prior years. Current tax is calculated
using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
balance date.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition
of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit. Deferred tax is calculated at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by balance date.

Current tax and deferred tax is charged or credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the tax is dealt with in equity.

Equity
Equity is the shareholders interest in Space Operations
New Zealand Ltd, as measured by total assets less total liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at cost, amortised where necessary, using
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

A receivable is considered impaired when there is evidence that
Space Operations New Zealand Ltd will not be able to collect
the amount due. The amount of the impairment is the difference
between the carrying amount of the receivable and the present
value of the amounts expected to be collected

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment consists of the following asset
classes: antenna, buildings, furniture and fittings, IT equipment,
plant and equipment, site development, tools and equipment,

and land. Individual assets were capitalised based on Inland
Revenue guidelines. An asset was capitalised if the purchase
price was greater than $500 up until 17 March 2020, when the IRD
temporarily increased the low-value assets threshold to $5,000.
The threshold decreased on 16 March 2021 from $5,000 to $1,000.
Additions

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item
will flow to Space Operations New Zealand Ltd and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is
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recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or
for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value when control over
the asset is obtained.

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not
depreciated.

Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses
on disposals are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense.

Subsequent Costs

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised

only when it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to Space Operations
New Zealand Ltd and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant, and equipment
are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property,
plant and equipment at rates that will write off the cost of the
assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives.
The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major
classes of assets have been estimated as follows:

Antenna: 10.0% 10 years
Buildings: 3.0% - 7.0% 3-143 years

IT Equipment: 0% -10.0% 10 Years or more
Furniture & Fittings:  15.6% 6.4 years

Plant: 7.0% 14.3 years

Site Development:  7.0%-10.0%% 10 - 14.3 years
Tools & Equipment  10.0% 10 years

Land: 0%

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and
adjusted if applicable, at each financial year end.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held that have a finite useful life
are reviewed for impairment whenever changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount.
The recoverable service amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service
amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carrying
amount is written down to the recoverable service amount. The
total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus
or deficit.

Value in Use For Non-Cash Generating Assets

Value in use is the present value of the asset’s remaining service
potential. Value in use is determined using an approach based

on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration
cost approach, or a service units approach. The most appropriate
approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature of
the impairment and availability of information

Leases

Operating Leases

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially

all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of an asset.
Payments under these leases are recognised as expenses in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in periods in
which they are incurred. Lease incentives received are recognised.

Payables
Short-term payables are recorded at the amount payable.

Space Operations New Zealand Statement of Intent 2024-2027

Financial Instruments

Space Operations New Zealand Ltd is party to financial instruments
as part of its normal operation.These financial instruments give

rise to financial assets and liabilities and include cash and on-call
deposits, accounts receivable, investments, and accounts payable,
deposits held, other financial liabilities and financial guarantees.
They also include equity interests in other entities.

Al financial instruments are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position on the basis of Space Operations New Zealand
Ltd’s general and, where applicable, particular accounting policies.
All financial instruments disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position are recorded at fair value or amortised cost.Revenue and
expenditure arising from these financial instruments is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Statement of Cash Flows
Cash includes cash and cash equivalents as defined above

Operating activities include cash received from all revenue sources
of Space Operations New Zealand Ltd and cash payments made
for the supply of goods and services. Investing activities are those
activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non current
assets. Financing activities comprise the change in equity and
debt capital structure of Space Operations New Zealand Ltd.

Personnel Costs
Salaries and Wages

Salaries and wages are recognised as an expense as employees
provwde services.

Defined Contribution Superannuation Schemes

Employer contributions to KiwiSaver, the Government
Superannuation Fund, and the State Sector Retirement Savings
Scheme are accounted for as defined contribution superannuation
schemes and are expensed in the surplus or deficit as incurred.

Employee Entitlements

Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service are measured based on accrued entitlements at
current rates of pay. These include salaries and wages accrued
up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at
balance date. No liability is recognised for sick leave.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There are no other changes in accounting policies during the
financial year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing these financial statements, Space Operations New
Zealand Ltd has made estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from
the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations or future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities recognised in the financial statements are described in
the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements

Revenue (timing of revenue is assessed under Tier 2 PBE RDR
guidance).

Assumptions

Property, Plant and Equipment (includes assumptions around
useful life of assets).
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